Public Document Pack

Scottish LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Borders
MONDAY, 15 AUGUST, 2016
COUNCIL

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL
HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 15 AUGUST, 2016 at
10.00 AM

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

8 August 2016
BUSINESS
1. Apologies for Absence.
2. Order of Business.
3. Declarations of Interest.
4. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect

of change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to form
dwellinghouse on land east of Flemington Farmhouse, West
Flemington, Eyemouth. 16/00136/FUL 16/00016/RREF

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 1 -
36)

Including:-
Decision Notice (page 25)
Officer’s report (page 27)

(b)  Consultations (Pages 37 -
44)
(c) Emails regarding Decision Notice date (Pages 45 -
46)
(d) List of policies (Pages 47 -
58)
5. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect

of erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff
facilities and erection of animal feed silo at Kirkburn, Cardrona.
16/00114/FUL. 16/00017/RREF.

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 59 -
64)




(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 65 -
66)

(c) Officer's report (Pages 67 -
72)

(d)  Previous application referred to in report (Pages 73 -
80)

(e) Consultations (Pages 81 -
88)

() List of policies (Pages 89 -
96)

Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect
of erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant
room and staff welfare provision at Kirkburn, Cardrona. 16/00205/FUL,
16/00020/RREF.

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 97 -
104)

(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 105 -
106)

(c)  Officer's report (Pages 107 -
112)

(d)  Previous applications referred to in report (Pages 113 -
138)

(e) Consultations (Pages 139 -
144)

) List of policies (Pages 145 -
152)

Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect
of replacement windows and door at 62 Castle Street, Duns.
16/00126/FUL 16/00019/RREF

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 153 -
178)

(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 179 -
180)

(c)  Officer's report (Pages 181 -
184)

(d)  Consultation (Pages 185 -
186)

(e) List of policies (Pages 187 -
192)

Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect
of erection of dwellinghouse and garage in garden ground of
Lindisfarne, The Loan, Gattonside. 16/00162/PPP 16/00021/RREF

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 193 -
250)




(b)  Decision Notice

(Pages 251 -
252)

(c) Officer's report (Pages 253 -
260)
(d)  Paper referred to in report (Pages 261 -
270)
(e) Consultations (Pages 271 -
276)
() Objection (Pages 277 -
278)
(g) List of policies (Pages 279 -
290)
9. Any Other Items Previously Circulated
10. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent
NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.
2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any

item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors R. Smith (Chairman), J.Brown (Vice-Chairman),
M. Ballantyne, J. Campbell, J. A. Fullarton, I. Gillespie, D. Moffat, S. Mountford and B White

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling 01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4a

Scottish

Borders
>~ COUNCIL

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA Tel: 01835 825251 Fax: 01835 825071 Email: ITSystemsAdmin@scotborders.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100014757-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

on behalf of the applicant in conneclion with this application) D Applicant |Z|Agent
Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation; | 0 Design Lid
Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: ¥ lain Building Name: New Harbour Building
Last Name: * Dunn Building Number:
Telephone Number: * 018807 50111 ?Sdtfer:f')?J Gunsgreen Quay
Extension Number: Address 2:
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Eyemnouth
Fax Number: Country: * UK
Postcode: * TD14 55D
Email Address: * irddesign@aol.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

X individual [] organisation/Corporate entity

Page 1of5
Page 1




Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Other You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Tille: Mrand rs Building Name: Lilybrook
First Name: * James Building Number:

Last Name: * Cook ?Sdt?erzf)f ] West Flemington
Company/Crganisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * Ayton
Extension Number: Country: * Scotland
Mabile Number: Postcode: * TD14 55Q
Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Scottish Borders Council

Full postal address of the site {including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 660866 Easting 394121

Page 2

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the pianning authority: *
(Max 500 characlers)

Proposed conversion of storage building into dwelling house.

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit fo the planning authority? *

@ Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.

D Further application.

D Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

X Refusal Notice.
D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require te be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Notle: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of dppeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of detarmination), unless you ¢an demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

See Aftached Appeal Statement

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the D Yes No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5

Page 3




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Drawing Refs 001 - Existing Building - Plans section and elevations (incl photos) 004A - Ground Floor Plan as proposed
005A - First Floor Plan as Proposed 00B8A - Elevations as proposed 007 - Drainage and site plan as proposed 008 - 3D
views and elevations Qriginal Planning Application form Design Statement Case Officers report Refusal Notice Appeal Staterment

Application Details

Please provide details of the application and decision.

What is the application reference number? * 16/00136/FUL
What date was the application submitied to the planning authority? * 07/02/2016
What date was the decisicn issued by the planning authority? * 220242016

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

D Yes g No

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your review. You may
select more than one option if you wish the review to be a combination of procedures.

Please select a further procedure *

By means of inspection of the land to which the review relates

Please explain in detail in your own words why this further procedure is required and the matters set out in your statement of appeal it
will deal with? {Max 500 characters)

We think it important for the Review Board to meet on site (along with the Agent/applicant/Planning Officers) to see for themselves
how the building sits within the current building group and help understand how the chosen materials would not be detrimental to
the character of the area. This visit (when red in conjuction with the appeal documentation) will show that the building which is
already on site can be converted successfully and in our opinion, does in fact comply with Policy D2.

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * |Z Yes |:| No
Is it possible for the sile to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * |Z| Yes I:l Na
Page 4 of 5

Page 4




Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subjectofthis ~ [X] yes [ No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name |E Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or cerrespondence required in connection with the
review should be sent o you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what X ves [ no
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further oppertunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please aitach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any)} from the earlier consent.

Declare — Notice of Review
IiWe the applicant/agent cerlify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name: Mr lain Dunn

Declaration Date: 01/06/2016

Page 5 of 5

Page 5



Page 6



N IRD DESIGN Ltd

Chartered Building Engineers
Architectural Consultants

IRD DESIGN Ltd New Harbour Building, Gunsgreen Quay, Eyemouth, Berwickshire, TD14 55D

Chartered Building Engineers Tel: +44 (01890) 750111
Architectural Consultants Email: irddesign@aol.co.uk

Date:- 27" May 2016

APPEAL STATEMENT

DETAILED APPLICATION CONVERSION OF STORAGE BUILDING INTO SINGLE DWELLING

CLIENT:-
MR & MRS J COOK

SITE ADDRESS:-

WEST FLEMINGTON

BURNMOUTH
SCOTTISH BORDERS

m b IRD Design Ltd
I ca e Company Registered in Scotland under Registration No SC427416 "m”tBUildE
chartered association Page 7 charterad building engi

of building engineers



CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION

2.0 THE SITE, SURROUNDINGS & THE PROPOSAL

3.0 PLANNING POLICY

4.0 RESPONSE TO REASONS FOR REFUSAL

5.0 ENERGY EFFICIENCY

6.0 CONCLUSION

Page 8



1.0 INTRODYETION
The original proposal was for the conversion of an existing portal framed storage building into a singie
dwelling house in a rural area of West Flemington under planning This application was subsequently
refused permission by Scottish Borders Council Planning Department based on the following reason: -

“The proposed development is contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that the
building has no architectural or historic merit which would justify its retention by means of securing a
non-rural agricultural use. In addition, the level of intervention proposed to the fabric of the structure
exceeds what would be regarded as a conversion of a non-residential building to dwellinghouse.”

It is our belief that the application does in fact comply with the requirements of Policy D2 of the
Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and that the Planning Authority should have approved the
application.

In addition to this, we feel that the Planning officer cannot have properly assessed the application given
that it was received on the 8" February 2016 and registered on the 9% February 2016 and refused on the
22™ February 2016, all of 10 working days! Surely an application of this nature requires a little more
time to properly assess it!.. The application drawings which have been returned to us are stamped with
the applicable dates which clearly indicate that the application could not have been properly assessed
within this timeframe. Consultee responses were not returned until after the officer refused the
application, and the case officers own report which outlined the reasons for refusal was written on the 1%
Aprit 2016.....some 30 days after the drawings had already been stamped as being refused.

We would ask that the Local Review Body assess this application properly on its own merits and not
simply disregard the application with only a cursory assessment, as what appears to have been done in
this instance.

2.0 THE SITE, SURROUNDINGS & THE PROPOSAL

This application is also supported by the provision of the following information:-

Full layout plans, 3D Images, ail elevations, drainage and site plans were submitted for consideration at
Planning stage.

001 Existing Building — Plans sections and Elevations (inc! Photos)
004A Ground Floor Plan

005A First Floor Plan

00BA Elevations

007 Drainage and site plan

008 3D Views and elevations

The subject site is situated at West Flemington, which in itself is a small building group comprising
several dwelling houses, together with stone steading buildings and agriculturai buildings in the
immediate vicinity. It is situated between Ayton and Burnmouth and the application site extends to
approx 0.87 Hectares.

At present the application site has a large portal framed storage building which is to be retained and
converted into a 5 bedroom family home.

There are two modern bungalows (“Lilybrooke” and “the Bungalow”) that are situated to the East and
West of the appiication site. The site has a large concrete area to the west of the buiiding which is to be
retained and used for parking for the development. The existing access will be retained for vehicular
use which gives access to a tarmac road leading down over the main East Coast Railway line to the A1
trunk road. The remainder of the site is laid to grass and is bounded by fences / mature hedging / stone
wall. The proposals will retain all the existing boundary treatments.

Care was taken to ensure that the detail features of the scheme are sympathetic to and recognise the
overall character of the area. The use of fibre cement boarding was proposed to reflect the existing
appearance while the existing blockwork walls would be finished in roughcast sympathetic to the
adjacent properties. The old corrugated roof sheeting would be removed and replaced with a highly
energy efficient insulated board covered with a slate effect system, again to further aid blending in with

the adjacent buildings.
Page 9



The large

It was hoped that the use of energy efficient, sustainable design sympathetic to the existing building and
area as a whole would be considered acceptable to the Council's Planning Officers.

Under the current Local Plan, the existing building group also has the possibility for future expansion,
something that was supported by the Planning Dept when approving application ref 04/02006/0UT
(Currently expired without being implemented).

Despite this support for a new build dwelling, the applicants saw the potential of the existing portal frame
building to be converted into a highly energy efficient luxury home and it was hoped that as the building
already has its own “sense of place”, it would minimise any complaints from adjacent property owners
about development of the building. This was further supported when the formal application was
submitted as there was no complaints from any persons regarding any aspect of the proposals.
Notwithstanding the above comments, the applicant remains willing to discuss all aspects of the proposal
with the Council.

3.0 PLANNING POLICY

A number of Planning Policies apply to this development, however, it is only Policy D2 that the Case
Officer has specified that the proposals did not comply with, therefore we have concentrated our
response in this area.

Policy D2 states
{C} Conversions
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided that:

1. The Council is salisfied that the building has architectural or historical merit or is suitable for
residential use,

2. The building stands substantially intact (nommally at least to wallhead height) and the existing
structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required where in the
opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of conversion, and

3. The conversion and any proposed exfension or alteration is in keeping with the scale and
architectural character of the existing building.

RESPONSE TO REASON FOR REFUSAL

The Case Officer concluded that the proposals failed to address the criteria outlined in Policy D2.

It is our opinion that the proposals do in fact comply with the above policy and the foliowing information
will hopefully clarify that we have met the three criteria of Policy D2 and enable the Local Review Body to
approve the application.

Policy D2 Criteria 1

Whilst we agree that the barn “has no architectural or historic ment.” (as was stated in the Supporting
Statement submitted with the original application), we do not agree with the Case Officers statement that
the “level of intervention proposed to the fabric of the structure exceeds what would be regarded as a
conversicn of a non-residential building to dwelling house.”

The interventions stated by the Case Officer are as follows:

1. The external cladding of the structure, which would extend beyond the existing external
dimensions of the building.
In reality, the cladding only extends 100mm (4"} from the existing building. This is caused by the
insertion of timber battens to provide the ventilation space needed to meet the requirements of the
Building Standards. This effects only the first floor portion of the building and in no way is
detrimental to the character of the building or surrounding properties.

2. The insertions of fenestration and door openings which puncture the fabric of the original
structure. Page 10



Whilst new openings have been formed, | do not agree with the Case Officer that these “go beyond
what would constitute a conversion”. Much thought was put into the design to ensure that the
openings proposed would enable the building to retain its original identity and not detract from the
overall character. It has to be minded that this building is much larger than the more traditional
stone steading conversion, therefore the ratio of new openings to wall space is similar to that of a
smaller conversion and in our opinion strikes an acceptable balance.

Forming the new openings is also significantly easier in a portal frame building than one which has
800mm (2) thick stone walls. The fact that the cladding is also being replaced with new fibre
cement boarding makes it less invasive to the structure and therefore less detrimental to the
building as a whole.

The new large door and window openings on the North and South sides of the building are also
common to a lot of agricultural buildings and do not look out of place on this conversion.

3. Insertion of floor space.

The size of the building was such that the installation of an additional floor was possible without
raising the height of the building. This is entirely an internal issue that does not cause overlooking
issues as the building is set forward of the adjacent bungalows “Lilybrooke” and “the Bungalow”.
The building is also sitting at a lower level than the adjacent bungalows due to the ground
topography which further supports that there are no privacy issues. The small extension to the
Master Bedroom on the East of the building was to make use of the views over to Ayton Castle and
also enabled a larger balcony to be formed at first floor level. It was thought that this small
extension would not be detrimental to the character of the building, however the applicants remain
open to adjusting this should the Review Panel decide that it is unacceptable.

4. Creation of internally insulated walls.
This is standard practice on any conversion and therefore cannot be used to support any refusal.
The fundamental problem with old buildings is the lack of insulation, which has to be upgraded to
comply with the stringent standards of the Building Regulations. Every conversion therefore has to
meet this requirement and the most common solution is to provide a timber frame inside the
existing structure and fill it with the required level of insulation. This not only ensures compliance,
but also protects the external appearance of the existing structure.

Policy D2 Criteria 2

The building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the existing
structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required where in the
opinion of the Council it appears that the buiiding may nof be capable of conversion.

The building wiil not be demolished and will remain the same size and height. The steel portal frame
will be retained and will only require new ciadding panels to the walls and roof.

As the Planning Department have not requested a Structural Survey to be done on the existing building,
it would appear that in their opinion, the building is indeed suitable for conversion.

Policy D2 Criteria 3

The conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale and
architectural character of the existing building.

As stated above, the building will retain the same footprint with only a small extension to the Eastern side
which will be in keeping with the scale and architectural character of the building. The first fioor balcony
area above the extension is mainly formed within the existing roof structure, therefore should not pose
any detrimental impact on the existing building or surrounding area.

5.0 ENERGY EFFICIENCY

The level of insulation proposed to the walls, roof and floor will far exceed the requirements of the very
stringent Building Standards whilst the use of solar PV and solar thermal panels will further reduce the
carbon footprint of the building. A large glazed area to the South elevation will enable large amounts of
solar gain into the pool area, effectively turning this into a “solar space” from which the already warmed
air can help support {(via a heat exchanger) F;(g?; eAilrlSource heating system which in turn provides



underfloor heating throughout the property. The building will be made extremely air tight to minimise
draughts and retain the heat much more effectively.

In addition, a woodburning/peltet stove will be fitted in the first floor lounge area as secondary heating to
further reduce the demand on the air source heating system.

in the summer months, the velux roof windows installed on both sides of the roof can be opened to
provide an effective natural ventilation system to keep the building cool.

It is hoped that the level of energy efficiency provided will make the building effectively “self sustaining”
and provide a home that will continue to meet the the Government standards for energy efficiency for
many years to come.

6.0 CONCLUSION

As you will see from the above information, it is our opinion that the Local Planning Dept have wrongly
refused the application and should be looking to re-use existing structures wherever possible that are
within existing Building Groups, and should not look to dismiss the possibility of converting the more
unusual portal frame barn which, if done correctly, can offer some interesting aiternatives to the
countryside whilst retaining the original identity of the former barn.

That said, not all portal frame buildings will be suitable of course, however, as stated previously, this
particular building has an applicant who, rather than impiement his former approval to build a new
property, had the foresight to spend that little extra time and effort to retain an existing structure and
convert it into an energy efficient home. This building already lies within an established building group,
has no access problems, has all utilities at hand and will have suitable treatment of foul drainage. To
top this off, there were no objections from any neighbour, Consultee, or indeed any member of the public
whatsoever.

In addition to the above, Local Plan Housing in the Countryside Policy also advises that consideration be
given to the rehabilitation of any available existing buildings in rural areas as an alternative to new
development. Surely this development epitomizes that statement!

It is hoped that the Review Panel, when assessing this Appeal, will agree that when judged against the
Development Plan and all relevant Government Guidance, the proposal is considered to be acceptable
and will overturn the Planning Authorities decision to refuse the development.

Whilst it is considered that the development is acceptable the applicant remains willing to further discuss
all aspects of the proposal with the Planning Authority.

END OF APPEAL STATEMENT

Your Faithfully,

tain Dunn c¢.BuildE MCABE
Director
IRD DESIGN Ltd

Page 12



APPENDIX
Photographs of Existing Building

Page 13



ail
.. ||| | .




T

| ..||! I ml I







SCOtti S h For Office Use Only: |

Borders es7 (as amennen) | Application Number: 1t | o 12|t
Lo ;

COUNCIL 8 FFR 20% | Date Registered:  “ z__|

- ---»---....
'

PLANNING APE

J lfmu:;

1. Name and Address of applicant

MR EMRS T Lok,
th:l’&zom wf:.i:T Fl.EMNG‘[CN

ANTORS . ..Post Code. .
Teb No. ...........
E-mail address...... ... ........

Hame and Address of Agent
\RD DESGR LT ...,

NEW) HARBCOR BOILDING,, &uuﬁqﬁ&@éw
JBEMoUTH ..Post Code. TIR'4 S5D

Tel. No. ora/\m ‘;;C)Hl e
E-mail address. . \X dddeSign, @_ao\ €0 uk

Sreeace. BARN | (WEST FAramnemos

2. Fuli Postal Address of Application Site (edged in red on the site plan)

; AMTORS | ENEMOUTH

is this address a flat?

YesD No B

3. Brief Description of Proposed Developmerit
PROPLEED (DMVERSION CF STORAGE BUW-DING INTO DwelLINg House

4. Type of Appfication (tick one box onl}:F,l

(a)
(b)
{©
CH
(e}

Planning permission in Principle

{Flease indicate reference number of previous application)

Application for renewal of a limited period permission
{Please indicale reference number of previous applicalion)

M

Application for renewal of an unimplemented permission
You need only answer Questions 17 and 18)
(Please indicate reference number of previous application)

(9)

Full application for new building works and/or a change of use and/or engineering works

Full application for a change of use not involving any building works

Approval of matters specified in conditions (pursuant to 2 Planning Permizzion in Principle)

Application for removal or variation of a condition on a planning pemnission previously granted

5. Applications for Matters Specified in Conditions {if you ticked (d) in Q.4, please complete)

| |
I ]

00 DOOR

l |

{a) State the reference number and date of the planning permission in prnciple ..o,

(b) State which of the conditions are submitted for approval as pan of this application:

Al Conditions (please tid) || or Gondifion Numbers |

Page 17



_6. Pre-Application Discussion and Consultation

(a) Has assistance or prior advice been sought from Scottish Borders Council about this application?

Yes [] No [A”

if yas, please complete the following information about the advice you were given:

Officer Name: Date:

Council Reference:

(b) Has Pre-Application Consultation taken place {for MAJOR devetopments: See Notes for Guidance)?

YesD NOE’

If Yes, a Pre-application Consultation Report should accompany this application

8. State whether applicant owns ar confrols any
adjoining land {edged in blue on submitted plans)

.............................................. : Yes bt oo [ |

7. Site Area

9. Existing/Proposed Use;f:

Please indicate all existing and proposed uses that are the subject of this application:

[ Existing _ Proposed .
STORAGE BARN DerTacien 5 BED Dwetting
HOUSE .

10. Commerce and Business

e
{A} Floorspace /
| Please indicated the total amount of flcorspace (in square metras) to which this application relates

Existing — Proposed
(A) Employment ] ] /
Please indicate the number of staff employed (induding part-time).
Existing - z
{B) Traffic Flow
What is the anticipated traffic flow 10 the site during a n working day? (No. of vehides moving in and out of the site)
(Include afl vehicles except those used by individual oyees driving to work)
Existing - / Proposed -

(G) Industrial Processes
In the case of industrial development, please give a description of the processes to be carried on and of the end products, as
well as the type of machin installed:

(D) Hazardous Substances
Wil the involve the use or storage of any materials of a type and quantiy defined as hazardous substances? If YES,

please state materials and guantities below:
e -

Page 18



THRCE Pt M S . L LSRN S

Please indicate car parking faciliies/spaces:
Existing: &t Proposed: b T

12. Accesses and Rights of Way (Please tick those that apply

{A) There will be no new access io a highway (either vehicle or pedestrian), no alteration E’
1o an existing access to a public road and no alteration to any public right of way or other public path

(B} There wili be a new or altered access to a public road Vehicular I:] Pedestrian [:J

{C) A public right of way or cther public path will be affected by the proposed developmen D

13. Tresk

Wil the proposed development involve the falling of any trees? Yes [ ] N [A
{if YES, please indicale positions on plan)

14. Drainage and Waler Supplj,*

(A) Please state how surface water will be disposed of ... SR X e

(B) How will foul sewage be dealt with?

Mains sewer D Septic Tank and Soakaway Z Other (Please specify)..........ccccrriir e v e,
{C) From where will the proposed development receive its water supply?
Public mains supply Z Private source D

Where the water supply is from a private source, has any testing or analysis been undertaken?

YesD No |:|

Please indicete position of source on location/site pian, and where possiie provide defails of the source (e.g. borehole, spring elc.), end of eny
refaled pipework or apparatus

15. Materials

Flease siate type and colour of materizls te be used (if known)

EXISTING PROPOSED
Exterior Wakis Rt BLcOllODRY. WALLS ErNDERED B Lo LORILS
W TH TVWEER L ADDING £ EDRAL LIEATHERBOARDI NG
Roof LERRVEATED SHEET MSOLATED SBEET RODF WiTH

P SLATE LOJERING
POLODER, COOTED MEDMIMNIWA

Windows I CINE

_16. Additional Intormatio

Is there any additional information you wish to give in support of this application?

MAACATION WAKES DUSE OF AN BXSTING BOLDING RATHER THAN BOI-DING
LEWW ODWEAANEG,. SITE 15 IARGE EVNOURH TO ALOMODATE ML cONSTRICTT

VEHCLES AND MATERALS O mHoUT BEINR DETRWENTAL TO SURRLUNDI
CROPERTIES . AN BXISTING NEHICULAR AUESS S AReADT 1N PLACE

£ toleic Ba REe-USED. PROFERTY WILL BE &rTREMEL ENERay
EFFICABNT 1N &rcess DfF <CLRPET STANDARDS AUWD Wikt ENHANCE
THE LORKEWT DOILDING  CROUT .

Page 19



17. Declaration ]

| hereby apply for planning permission and declare that, to the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this
application and on the submitted plans is comect.

| attach FOUR copies of the application forms and enclose the applicationfee of £........70. M. , together with:
Four seis of the necessary plans and drawings
]:] In the case of MAJOR developments, a Pre-Application Gonsultation Report
B’ A Design and Access Statement or Design Statement, where the application site is situated within 2 conservation area,

iandscape, a National Scenic Area, the site of a scheduled menument or the curtilage of an
lor Guidance for further information)

18. Please complete Certificate A and Certificate B (please tick ONE box in each'f}

CERTIFICATE A under Section 35 of the Town and Country Planning {Scolland) Act 1997, as amended

I certify that:

IZ/ At the beginning of a period of 21 days ending wilh the date of this application, nobody olher than the applicant was the owner' of all
of the land Lo which the application relates

OR

I:l The applicant hes given the required nohue o everyone who, al the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the
accompanying application, was the owner' of any part of the land to which the application relates, as listed below:

COwner's Name Address at which notice was served Date on which notice was served

onbonat M2 MRS \ (006 pae SV2\zoWe

CERTIFICATE B under Section 35 of the Town and Gourtry Planning (Scotiand) Act 1997, as amended

| certify that:

At the beginning of a period of 21 days ending with the date of this planning application, none of the land to which the application
g refates is, or is pant of, an agncukural holding;

OR

The gpplicant has given the required notice to every person other than the applicant who, at the begmn ending with
D the date of the application, was a tenant of an agricultural holding on all or part of the land to iczadi

follows:
Tenant's Name _:‘_’:E__“,.?t was served Date on which notice was served

onbehat of.... MR MBS N CODIK, pase.. \ \Zolé

T A owner inChides anyone with @ lesse on me land that has at least seven years feft fo run

Signed.....

Page 20



IRD DESIGN Ltd

[ r N 4 Chartered Building Engineers
: Architectural Consultants
IRD DESIGN Ltd New Harbour Building, Gunsgreen Quay, Eyemouth, Berwickshire, TD14 55D
Chartered Building Engineers Tel: +44 (01890) 750111
Architectural Consultants Email; jrddesign@aol.co.uk

DESIGN AND ACCESS
SUPPORTING STATEMENT

CONVERSION OF STORAGE BARN
INTO
SINGLE 5 BED DWELLING HOUSE

WEST FLEMINGTON, AYTON, EYEMOUTH

esi td
mabe Company Registered in Sco aﬁﬂéﬁ[chistraﬁon No 8C427416 mCBU i ld E

chartered assodation

i 6 chartered building engineer
of building engineers



SITE DETAILS

Scheme Name:
Conversion of storage building into dwelling house

Client:
Mr & Mrs J Cook

Date:
Jan 2016

Local Area:
Northumberland

Proposed Use:
Dwelling House

Size Of Site (approx.):
0 - 0.5 hectares

Anticipated Scale (approx.):
Single Dwelling House

Type:

Conversion

Will your project receive funding from any organizations:
No.

Designations of Site and Surrounding Area:
Site is of an existing steel portal frame storage building on a large rural site at West Flemington.

Site covered by design/planning/development brief or masterplan?:
Yes

Brief or Masterplan Title:
SBC Local Plan is applicable

Where is your site located?
The site is situated at West Flemington which is situated midway between Ayton and Burnmouth.

Size and Shape:
The site is rectangular in shape with the existing storage building being situated towards the middle of the site.
The size of existing building is approx. 15.5m x 23m.

How large is your site (in hectares/sq.m) and what is its basic shape?
The overall site on which the property stands is approx. 8724sqm. { 0.87Ha )

Describe the general history of your site, what has it been used for? Any possibility of contamination should be noted
under other.

The building is presently used for storage of packaging materials relating to the applicants business and has no known risks of
contamination.

History:

What is the planning background to the site? Are there any existing/extant planning permissions or current proposals
other than your own? Are there any known covenants on the land?

Previous Outline Planning has been gained for the adjacent site for a single dwelling house under Ref 04/02006/0UT. This
site will now be used as garden/drive/parking under this new application.

Buildings and Structures: Page 22



What grade is the listed building(s)? What is the architectural and historical interest of the building(s). See About
Listed Buildings for more information,

"Buildings can be listed because of age, rarity, architectural merit, and method of construction. The architectural and
historic interest of the building must be carefully considered before any alterations, either outside or inside, are
agreed."”

The building is not listed and does not have any archaeological merit.

Are there any desire lines affecting the site, that is formal or informal routes connecting places which pedestrians
find/or would find convenient to travel between easily?
N/A

Are there any other constraints/opportunities that need to considered in your design i.e. overhead wires, tunnels
underneath the site, landforms, ground conditions etc?
There are no constraints on the site that would affect the design proposals.

relationship with existing uses will be crucial. Day, night, seasonal variation of use should be noted.
The predominant land use is generally agricultural with several domestic dwelling houses in the immediate location. The
proposals will not have a detrimental effect on the surrounding buildings or businesses.

What type of road does your site front onto i.e. residential street, dual carriage way?

"The type of road and volume of traffic using it will have implications for your design solution."

The existing property is situated off an existing narrow tarmac roadway that has previously been upgraded in the past with 2No
passing places. The proposals will not affect the existing road or traffic.

How is parking dealt with along the road that your site fronts onto i.e. on road parallel /echelon parking, off road?

"If appropriate, your design solution may look to reflect the existing car parking arrangement to as this may assist in
achieving continuity with neighbouring developments.”

Parking in this area is all off road parking and will not be affected by the proposals. All materials etc will be stored on site via
the existing access and can easily accommodate the construction materials / accommodation and vehicles.

ment Object

Objectives:

‘What are your development objectives i.e. accommodation requirements, development quantum, minimum floorspace /
number of units, financial outlay, creation of an iconic building?

The applicants wish is to create a single very energy efficient quality home at West Flemington. However, rather than take an
easier option to build a new property, the applicants wanted to try and see if they could retain the existing storage barn already
on the site, and see if this could be converted to achieve the accommodation that they wanted. The building needed to have 4
large bedrooms at ground floor level and an open plan layout at first floor to make the most of the stunning views over the
surrountding countryside around the site. A small indoor plunge pool was also requested along with steam room/sauna to add
a little bit of luxury. The proposed building will essentially use the existing structure of the original building, with cnly a
small extension to the East side off the master bedroom. The cost of the conversion will be significantly more than the cost of
a new build property, however the applicants thought that they would rather make use of the existing building that was already
on the site and try to create a stunning home whilst retaining the overall character of the building and surrounding area.

Design Solutions

Layout (i.e. context, orientation, connections, car parking):

The layout of the building is generally open plan lounge kitchen to first floor with a couple of offices off the main space.
Ground floor houses the bedrooms and bathrooms along with a large utility room. Due to the raised ground level to the rear, a
new floor level will be formed approx. midway between the ground and first floors housing a plunge pool with sauna area and
wc with large glazed windows to the south to make the most of the solar gain and further reduce the heating of the property.
Windows will be of powder coated aluminium windows which will be fitted with thermally efficient glazing to further reduce
the energy used to heat the property. A timber frame will be erected within the building which will be filled with high quality
insulation. Heating can be provided by an efficient air source heating system providing underfloor heating thronghout the
property. Solar PV panels are proposed to the west facing roof to further supplement the energy demands whilst solar thermal
panels will aid to provide hot water for the property. Thq;i%g i ill be clad in fibre cement weatherboarding to retain the
appearance of the existing property whilst the roof will be clad with energy efficient insulation panels covered with slate effect
clip on sections made from recyclable materials used successfully throughout the country. The concrete block base wall will



be rendered to blend in with the surrounding properties. The large concrete area to the West of the building will provide
numergus car parking facilities and the existing road access will be retained. Visibility is excellent in both directions.
Foul waste will be treated by a septic tank and surface water taken to soakaway in the adjacent ficld.

Details and materials (i.e. facade treatment, roofscape, materials, colours):

The existing building structure will be retained and clad in Cedral Weatherboard fibre cement boards in a blue/green colour.
Roof will be clad in insulated cladding panels covered with Steadmans META-Slate roof covering to give the appearance of a
slate roof without the added weight. Aluminium windows and external doors will be finished in white powder coated finish.
The existing block walls will be covered with a render finish and a large decked area provided to the rear (South) of the

property.

ency, resourte conservation, flexibility/silaptability);

All structural elements to be fully insulated whilst Air source heating, Solar PV and Solar thermal panels will ensure that the
property is energy efficient well in excess of the current standards.

Impact (i.e. on neighbours, travel patierns, historic features, character or regeneration of area):
Not affected

Other (list):

End of Supporting Statement

Page 24



: %g?ﬁ%f_l's\ Regulatory Services

COUNCCI

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure) {Scotland) Regulations 2013

[Application for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00136/FUL

To: MrAnd Mrs J Cook perIRD Design New Harbour Building Eyemouth Scottish Borders TD14
58D

With reference to your application validated on 9th February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development -

Proposal : Change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to form dwellinghouse

at: Land And Storage Barn East Of Flemington Farmhouse West Flemington Eyemouth Scottish
Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated Gth April 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headguarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TDG 0SA

Visit http:feplanning. scothorders. gov. uk{online-applications/
Page 25




Eg?até?_l'sl Regulatory Services

=2 COUNC

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00136/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
o Existing Layout Refused
0044, Floor Plans Refused
DOBA, Floor Plans Refused
00BA Elevations Refused
oo7 Other Refused

oos Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development is contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that the
building has no architectural or historic merit which would jusiify its retention by means of securing a
non-rural agricuttural wse. In addition the level of intervention proposed to the fabric of the structure
axceeds what would be ragarded as a canversion of & non-residential building to dwellinghouse.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

if the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respact of the proposed development, or io grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1987 within thrae months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed io Corporate Administration, Council Headguariers, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TDB OSA.

if permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planring Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably bensficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may sewve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part & of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Visit hitp:/feplanning. scotborders. gov, uk/online-applications/
Page 26



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART lll REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00136/FUL

APPLICANT : Mr And Mrs J Cook

AGENT : IRD Design

DEVELOPMENT : Change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to form

dwellinghouse
LOCATION: Land And Storage Barn East Of Flemington Farmhouse West Flemington

Eyemouth
Scottish Borders

TYPE : FUL Application
REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
001 Existing Layout Refused
004A Floor Plans Refused
005A Floor Plans Refused
006A Elevations Refused

007 Other Refused

008 Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads: No objection subject to condition in respect of parking and turning.

Education: The development is located within the catchment area for Eyemouth Primary School and
Eyemouth High School. A contribution of £3209 is sought for the Primary School and £4512 is sought
for the High School, making a total contribution of £7721.

Ecologist: No objection subject to condition in respect of breeding birds.

Environmental Health Officer; Previous use as agricultural land may have resulted in land
contamination. Questionnaire has been issued seeking further details. Should this not be returned a
condition is advised in respect of a requirement for a scheme to investigate and remediate potential
contamination.

Burnmouth Community Council: No objection

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

G1  Quality Standards for New Development

Page 27



G2 Contaminated Land

NE3 Local Biodiversity

H2 Protection of Residential Amenity

Inf4 Parking Provision and Standards

Inf5 Waste Water Treatment Standards

Inf6 SUDS

D2 Housing in the Countryside (Part C: Conversions)

Supplementary Planning Guidance:

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Recommendation by - Lucy Hoad (Planning Officer) on 1st April 2016

The application seeks full planning permission to convert an agricultural barn into a 5 bedroom residential
dwellinghouse. There have been no pre-application discussions in respect of the proposals.

Site and Location

The shed forms part of the layout of a small building group at West Flemington to include West Flemington
House (B Listed), West Flemington Farm Steading, now derelict (B Listed), and properties The Cottage, The
Bungalow and Lilybroke. The building group lies in an elevated position in the hillside 1.3Km east of the
village of Ayton and overlooking Ayton Castle The hillside features agricultural enclosures of pasture and
arable crops which are interspersed by mature tree bslts and hedged field boundaries. The Eye Water lies
in the valley floor hidden by semi-ancient deciduous tree cover.

The site (0.87ha) includes a parking and turning area adjacent to the shed. Access is taken from a mincr
road over the rail line near the junction with the A1. Records indicate that outline consent for a single
dwelling on the site (to the immediate west of the shed)} was granted in 2005. This consent has now timed
out.

The barn (22.5 x 15m) is a steel portal framed building used for storage purposes, displays agricultural form
with low pitch roof, being constructed of concrete block walls to 1.8m with timber clad walls above. The roof
is covered in corrugated sheeting. The access door is located on the north-west elevation of the building.

It is proposed to retain the barn. Externally the building is to be clad in fibre cement weatherboarding
(blue/green} with a render finish to the concrete blocks, and the roof is to be covered in Meta slate roof
system over insulation roof panels. New fenestration and door openings are proposed on the south gable
and east and west elevations. Upper floor window openings are proposed for the north gable. A small
extension with balcony is proposed to the east elevation. A timber decking area is proposed to the south of
the shed. Internally it is proposed to erect a timber frame within the building which will be filled with
insulation. A new floor level will be formed to provide accommaodation at upper level. The building is to be
heated by an air source heat pump system and solar panels are proposed for the roof,

Local Plan Housing in the countryside policy advises that consideration be given to the rehabilitation of any
available existing buildings in rural areas as an alternative to new development. The Council must be
satisfied that the building has architectural or historical merit or is physically suited to residential use. There
is no presumption in favour of redevelopment particularly where the housing is of a different scale and
character to that which has existed previously.

The aim of conversion is to retain traditional rurat architecture (such as the adjacent listed former farm stone
buildings at West Flemington) as part of the history and character of an area, as explained in the justification
for local plan policy D2.

In this case the existing structure is a relatively modern steel portal framed building constructed of breeze
block and timber having an agricultural form with neither architectural nor historic merit which would justify
its retention by means of securing a residential use. No evidence has been provided to prove the building is
redundant for agricultural purposes. The application states that the existing use of the building is for storage
of packaging material for the applicants business but does not confirm the nature of the business. The EHO

Page 28



has advised a condition be applied in respect of contamination and potential mitigation given historic use of
the land as agricultural unit.

In terms of assessing conversions the emphasis is on the characteristics and quality of the original building.
The design statement advises the intention is to use the existing building on site to create an energy efficient
quality home whilst retaining the character of the building and surrounding area. Whilst the design proposed
reflects the existing shape of the barn, it is neither regarded as a being a conversion, nor successful
response to the local landscape in terms of domestic housing provision.

The construction of the barn is of poor quality without architectural or historic merit. The interventions
proposed to the structure in order to bring iy to a standard acceptable for residential use include the external
cladding of the structure, which would extend beyond the existing external dimensions of the building, the
insertions of fenestration and door openings which puncture the fabric of the original structure, insertion of
floor space, and creation of internally insulated walls. In effect the level of intervention proposed in order to
create a dwelling unit would go beyond what would constitute the conversion of the existing building. On
these principles the application cannot be supported as it would be contrary to the fundamental
requirements of policy D2 in that the building is not considered to be of a suitable quality for conversion in
order to contribute to the historic character and appearance of the locality.

Access and parking
There is ample space available within the site for parking and turning provision. The Roads Officer has
reviewed the application plans and raised no concerns in respect of access or parking provision.

Protected species

The Ecologist has reviewed the ecological report and is satisfied that there are no implications in terms of
bat presence in the building but seeks for works to be undertaken outwith the bird breeding season given the
presence of nesting material. Any works within the season would require further surveys and potential
mitigation

Services
it is intended to connect to the public mains network. Foul waste is to be treated by septic tank with surface
water to soak away in the adjacent field.

Developer Contributions
The proposal for a dwelling would attract a requirement for contributions towards lifelong learning/school
provision.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development is contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that the building
has no architectural or historic merit which would justify its retention by means of securing a non-rural
agricultural use. In addition the level of intervention proposed to the fabric of the structure exceeds what
would be regarded as a conversion of an existing building.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposed development is contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that the
building has no architectural or historic merit which would justify its retention by means of securing a
non-rural agricuftural use. In addition the level of intervention proposed to the fabric of the structure
exceeds what would be regarded as a conversion of a non-residential building to dwellinghouse.

Page 29



“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 30



Camened e pto ol

Tirber daddiagia vals

—
— e oa =
L= o
© s —
— — i

SOUTH ELEVATION

TE abed

Cormgad shycing o roat

Timbar cudng bown

conorale Lk walls ta haight

FLODH LENEL

EAST ELEVATION

LOCATICN PLAN
1:1250

STORAGE BARN

=

RAISED GARDEN AREA

O

Mceuilge  Mcabe
dnrhmdcbgdygllmd.g £f barlding enainoors

S < X4

TR1Y DESIGN Lid

Sten Thsetear Puildoy
Fundin

Pevnnck i

TP TD

b Vg (HPOT R
Taat, - oiteagntonol e gk

Cheat
MR & MRS J Caok
Provsee
‘Gonversian of storage ham o dweling
hauss
V¥sst Fleminglon
Aytan
Sysmauth
Urawizg ilkr
SURVEY DRAWING

Plan, Section and Elevasar: ax propossd .

Bope up b rere 4 |
o |

Lnte

Al

Jan 2016
Thawa bs RO
Prioc’ amhur 15192
Suak 1-100

001



Fa ustar akaa bo Trice Ferte Septc Tank insiz3ad i feld
N U A 1K NG Al AL

N S wsrivn o e

l" £

f
IR DESIGN §id

-]

.

i Mc nmcabe
! * charceted bul hgmglmr drn engineers |
| ) e -

1

-]

-]

k.

MR & MRS J COOK

CONVERSION OF FORMER BARN TO
i DWELLING HOUSE

— PR
S et B
: = =
PRI M (TN IS e, T rem e ,-‘:Z - g
e S =
: | e I
o, 5 : * £ o 4 : RIS > v 7 TH A
£ L L 1| — - — P ———
| T I
| EN-SL‘J{TE l 7
? i
| | | — !
4 ! R
L — oRoGH BEDROOM2 | | sEDRooMs ; I
| e 1l e
41 i ] .- g - !
A : I L !
{WALK IN WARDROBE : o |
! I
|
- st
&) I
«Q DECKING
(]
w
N
t BEDROOM 4 e :
{ i T £
gl | — l wary e 1
| N : iheedly 1k
g i BHOWER STEAM |||
| | : ||| room [
= '.] Wt i i I,
i = e
I TN B _._.,A,Lf : ‘/\ s \ L J i ,
BOOY ittt ——, A £ = rd & e i L b o t
- o i
: T TR | | ==
e P ! e
| '
i . N
15 = 11
L Lt
GROUND FLOOR PLAN ]
1:50

WEST FLEMINGTON
BURNMOUTH

¢+ Drmwing inle
GF PLAN AS PROPOSED

NOVEMBER 2015
Tiwwr by \RD
15197

Sone 150

A1 004A



c¢ abed

PIPED LAID AT SHALL

Q
b 2 q
— - r—— [
OFFICE l
' LINE OF 2m HEATROOM
T F
J |
ol !
i i
=1 DINING AREA
rol e |
H 1 e pool table
|5
=
o ] |
{
L | | VME CF dm MEAZIODY
QOFFICE ’J \.‘
e |
r 1 e ] —]

jele]

I

s

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:50

RO A

FERER TR,

i I

TRICEL FORTIS SEPTIC TANK INFO

mﬁru@:ﬁ?unu!!g.g R g e

Lot

‘No. . Description : Date

.

ih!"' CHSPLS Lt

MR & MRS J COOK

CONVERSION OF FORMER BARN TO
CWELLING HCUSE

WEST FLEMINGTON
BURNMOUTH

Dt
FF PLAN AS PROPQSED

NOVEMEER 2tri5

Dreanby .
P jou mmbar 150187

150

A1  005A



mooe:
:.:::T:KT i) i e 513 i . Bk e :"”"‘j‘m:“w‘ 2 e p ek
TR B R oo e =] | e 3
= B T ————— ==l
) : ==
bl - = ST = e
FRITFLG0% | Z L L S S PRaT oo
I _! EET‘.» :l == ChE mmw-z-
CROCHG FLEER: ! =t joRouD.
= ——
WEST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION
A0wrm bougiand Facwlem giar
Biscion 5 00n oA
T 3 N\
‘ncrmen will firad wrrcows lo jop aad ki faidng o o wan
il P e e ot T don P v e e | LA '
R e AR BT = e B = 2
g
N
| . o o T Colgurwhiiel
- 2 ; : STEADMANS META-SLATE PLUS
o FLaon = B ros ==t B e N )
o8 0 ok it bl ic /{ s B m = Mbe
e nens : i DR 7 | Ip— BUIldE  ‘wersimcor
ST ELEVATION \ 1 chartared bullding enginesc o buking atgrweons
Powder couled {Colur whiie).a kaninkem
ol
= 2
g Redhall
Coltage
Deniegummens: =
w i R Aylon
D cxorn ;
[ e Mains I3
E NIRRT, F IR
= Ll wo..- B soaze
ﬂ e I P e T
n ——— Netherbyres /
Mill 4 "
| i » o
N S 7 ¥
B 7 o
vy
4 Farrmesid: l;::;l“:nd:‘r:“‘}:lfwl.
= "o
B MR & MRS J CODX
Flemington '
Mill Cottage 'OON\.'ERgggLOLIFNED:gLiBEBARNYO
Henderson's
» Bridge WEST FLEMINGTON
/ . BURNMCUTH
) ) - Dnawace Lls
;ﬁr&. West e E‘ECTI%:NRDEOLEVATIUNS
2 CPOSED
/ Uemmgton
NOVEMBER 2015
Dranaaty IRD
n Cocklaw
‘oitages —
1:50

OS Map 1:20,000 '
00B6A

A1l




FIELD

Quiall cormected
Into a minimum of

Gg abed

septic tank (4000Litres capacity) chamber

4No field tiles o B soakawey
\ |
1
: _'_,_,_o-'-"'_"_-'_ﬂ-.
inspection
chamber * .ﬁ"fﬁ
M |
Tricel Foriis 10 person L inspection

DRAINAGE LAYOUT

1:500

{————_.

LILYBROCKE

THE
BUNGALOW,

consant of IRD Design Lk
| g R

Mcpuige Teabe
| tH : o
i chartersd bullding engineer  of bukinggngmars:,
-
s 12 10 gemtiy that ths drawing s a truc
frepny of ths aromal arawing sefetred o in
b apoiaton

%S*gne:

MR & MRS J COOK
Conversion of slorage bullding
into dwelling house
West Flemington
Ayton
Eyamouth

Drainags proposals

Jan 2016

- Bl IRD

151197
1:200

AL 007



Jubet bakorry formard in Hamm kaughened irameess
giozng -~ - B

R S L f—
5 T

T P — —
i e e B

g gy s

NORTH ELEVATION T B b et

Blwr Scker PY oy om ol
2Kve ecler Ihermal amay on roo!.

WEST ELEVATION
1100

= RO secess e ot €354

9g¢ abed

- L
g

%!!_ T

i L e

3D IMAGE. 2

SOUTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

B S (g4
JEIT 3 RHCN Lt
“Thia drawing. or part thereof i i

tectad by
‘Copyright and must not be: rapreduced withamt
‘the prior written carsenl of IRD Design Lid.

Mcauige Teabe

BETTTEITS

IRD DESIGN Ltd
Uarwrrd ekl F g
AR RIS
Naw Harbour Bikng
GUAGNN Cliy

Berwickshire
TO1436D

Tel. 01880 780411

emad inidesipnimal o s

MR & MRS J COOK

Thoiet
" Proposed conversion of storaga
buyliding Inta dwelling house

-
WEST FLEMINGTON
AYTON BERWICKSHIRE
i Drwing The
. ELEVATIONS AND 3D VIEWS
-
Eirt 2014
.,
S
T
i
1:100
[ | Tt

008

A1




Agenda’.llegﬁjg.:

iINERS
Scottish
e Borders =3 MAR 2016

—— COUNCIL LM
Officer Lucy Hoad L
= 01835825113 et
Our Ref : 16/00136/FUL LTl R o
Date : 11th February 2016

NAME OF APPLICANT: Mr And Mrs J Cook

NATURE OF PROPOSAL; Change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to

form dwellinghouse

SITE: Land And Storage Barn Adjacent Flemington Farmhouse West

Flemington Eyemouth Scottish Borders

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997
REQUEST FOR OBSERVATIONS OF: Burnmouth Community Counell

We have no objections to this planning application.

Sign Reply Date: 4/ 3/ 2o/t

PLEASE RETURN TO PRS@SCOTBORDERS.GOV.UK OR REGULATORY
SERVICES, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, MELROSE,
TD6 OSA

@ Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA é-:-\}

www. scotborders.gov. uk INVESTOR IN PEOPLE
Page 37




REGULATORY —~IScottish

Borders
SERVICES COUNCIL
To: Development Management Service Date: 24 March 2016

FAO Lucy Hoad

From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: Keith Patterson Ext: 6637 Ref: 16/00136/FUL

Subject: Change of Use From Storage Barn to Form Dwellinghouse,
West Flemington, Eyemouth.

| shall have no objections to this proposal provided two parking spaces and turning are
provided within the curtilage of the site prior to occupation of the dwelling and retained
thereafter in perpetuity.

JAF

Page 38



Rob Dickson
Director of Environment & Infrastructure

Head of Planning & Regulatory Services
Brian Frater

IRD Design Please ask for: Gareth Stewart
gew Harﬁour Building Our Ref: 16/00136/FUL
yemout )
Scottish Borders Your 'Ref.
TD14 58D E-Mail: gareth.stewart@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 03 March 2016
By Email
Dear Sir,

LAND AND STORAGE BARN EAST OF FLEMINGTON FARMHOUSE WEST FLEMINGTON, EYEMOUTH
CHANGE OF USE FROM STORAGE BARN, ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO FORM
DWELLINGHOUSE

There is an indication within this Planning Application that the site has had a previous use as
agricultural land. Such use may have resulted in land contamination. | therefore recommend that
you complete and return the attached questionnaire providing information relating to the previous
use of the site.

Once the questionnaire has been returned for my attention, | will be able to advise Planning
colleagues on whether any further action is needed to investigate or assess potential
contamination issues at the site. Please note the completed questionnaire will be publicly
accessible on the Council's website.

If the questionnaire is not returned, it is important that the potential for contamination is considered
in any Planning Permission given. In such circumstances it will be our recommendation that the
following condition is attached to the Planning Permission in order to ensure that the development
is suitable for its proposed use:

Unless otherwise agreed in writing and in advance by the Planning Authority, prior to any
development commencing on site, a scheme will be submitted by the Developer (at their expense)
to identify and assess potential contamination on site. No construction work shall commence
until the scheme has been submitted to, and approved, by the Council, and is thereafter
implemented in accordance with the scheme so approved.

The scheme shall be undertaken by a competent person or persons in accordance with the advice
of relevant authoritative guidance including PAN 33 (2000) and BS10175:2011 or, in the event of
these being superseded or supplemented, the most up-to-date version(s) of any subsequent
revision(s) of, and/or supplement(s) to, these documents. This scheme should contain details of
proposals to investigate and remediate potential contamination and must include.-

a) A desk study and development of a conceptual site model including (where necessary) a
detailed site investigation strategy. The desk study and the scope and method of
recommended further investigations shall be agreed with the Council prior to addressing
parts b, ¢, d, and, e of this condition.

and thereafter
(IRD DesignRe 16/00136/FUL03Mar16 Page 1 of 2)

Council Offices, Paton Street, GALASHIELS, Scottish Borders, TD1 3AS
Tel: Galashiels (01896) 662706 Fax: Galashiels (01896) 750329
LP — 8 Galashiels www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 39



(IRD DesignRe 16/00136/FUL 03Mar16 Page 2 of 2)

b) Where required by the desk study, undertaking a detailed investigation of the nature and
extent of contamination on site, and assessment of risk such contamination presents.

¢) Remedial Strategy (if required) to treat/remove contamination to ensure that the site is fit for
its proposed use (this shall include a method statement, programme of works, and
proposed validation plan).

d) Submission of a Validation Report (should remedial action be required) by the developer
which will validate and verify the completion of works to a satisfaction of the Council.

e) Submission, if necessary, of monitoring statements at periods to be agreed with the Council
for such time period as is considered appropriate by the Council.

Written confirmation from the Council, that the scheme has been implemented completed and
(if appropriate), monitoring measures are satisfactorily in place, shall be required by the
Developer before any development hereby approved commences. Where remedial measures
are required as part of the development construction detail, commencement must be agreed in
writing with the Council.

Reason: To ensure that the potential risks to human health, the water environment, property, and,

ecological systems arising from any identified land contamination have been adequately
addressed.

Should you have any concerns regarding the completion of the questionnaire or wish to discuss
potential land contamination issues please contact me directly.

Yours faithfully,

Gareth Stewart

Contaminated Land Officer

Page 40



Scottish Borders Council
Redevelopment of Agricultural & Other Buildings Questionnaire

Planning Application Number: 16/00136/FUL Yes/No

Is asbestos known or suspected to be present in the fabric of any buildings present?

Has any part of the site been used for the storage of liquid fuel, such as petrol, diesel,
DERYV, kerosene?

Has any part of the site been used for the storage or use of agricultural chemicals, such
as preservatives or pesticides?

Has any part of the site been used for sheep dipping, storage or disposal of sheep dip
chemicals?

Has any part of the site been used for disposal of solid farm waste?

Has any part of the site been used for the disposal of liquid wastes or washings other
than to an approved drainage system?

Has the site been used to store/maintain vehicles?

Has there been any building fires or bonfires onsite?

Please give the source of all available information used to answer these questions and an
indication of the time period which it covers (continue on separate sheet/reverse side if required):

Source Time Period Covered
e.g. Previous farmer/operator e.g.1975-1890

If you have answered yes to any of the above questions please give details below (continue
overieaf if necessary):

PLEASE NOTE - YOUR RESPONSE WILL BE PLACED IN THE PUBLIC DOMAIN
Signed Date

Name
(Block Capitals)

Thank you for completing this questionnaire, please return it to :-
Gareth Stewart, Contaminated Land Officer, at the address below.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 41




PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Ecology Officer
From: Development Management Date: 11th February 2016
Contact: Lucy Hoad & 01835825113 Ref: 16/00136/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION

Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 3rd March 2016, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 3rd March 2016, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.

Name of Applicant: Mr And Mrs J Cook

Agent: IRD Design

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to form
dwellinghouse

Site: Land And Storage Barn Adjacent Flemington Farmhouse West Flemington
Eyemouth Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS OF: Ecology Officer

CONSULTATION REPLY

It is recognised that a formal recommendation for a decision can only be made after consideration
of all relevant information and material considerations. This consultation advice is provided to the
Development Management service in respect of natural heritage issues (biodiversity).

| am satisfied with the Bat Roost Assessment (Findlay Ecology Services February 2016). The
existing structure is unsuitable for bat roosts and no evidence of bats or their roosts was found.
There is some limited tree and hedgerow habitat within 50m of the existing agricultural barn. The
wider landscape is largely arable fields with some shelter belt plantations and a policy/mixed
woodland area.

On balance | am satisfied that no further assessment and mitigation for bats is required.
Evidence of a bird nest (species not identified) was found. Mitigation will be required for breeding
birds.

Recommendation:
e No works shall be carried out during the breeding bird season (March-September’) without
the express written permission of the Planning Authority. Supplementary checking surveys

and appropriate mitigation for breeding birds will be required if works are to commence

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.qov.uk

Page 42



during the breeding bird season.

Dr Andy Tharme
Ecology Officer
11 March 2016

' Breeding bird season identified as 1 March-31 August in BS 42020, but is extended in this case to account for
potential breeding by barn swallow.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.qov.uk

Page 43



PLANNING CONSULTATION

On behalf of: Director of Education & Lifelong Learning

From: Head of Property & Facilities Management
Contact: Marc Bedwell, ext 5242

To: Head of Planning & Building Standards Date: 17 June 2016
Contact: Lucy Hoad @& 01835825113 Ref: 16/00136/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Name of Applicant: Mr And Mrs J Cook
Agent: IRD Design

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from storage barn, alterations and extension to form
dwellinghouse

Site: Land And Storage Barn Adjacent Flemington Farmhouse West Flemington Eyemouth
Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS ON BEHALF OF: Director of Education & Lifelong Learning

CONSULTATION REPLY

| refer to your request for Education’s view on the impact of this proposed development,
which is located within the catchment area for Eyemouth Primary School and Eyemouth
High School.

A contribution of £3209 is sought for the Primary School and £4512 is sought for the High
School, making a total contribution of £7721.

The new Eyemouth High School replaces a previous building that was under severe capacity
pressure and with facilities unsuitable for further expansion. Following consultation, the
decision was made to replace it and two others in the Borders under the 3 High Schools
project with the three new modern schools opened on time for the 2009-10 academic years.
Developer contributions for Berwickshire, Earlston and Eyemouth high schools will apply in
their respective catchment areas, supplementing Scottish Borders Council's investment in
the new facilities.

This contribution should be paid upon receipt of detailed planning consent but may be
phased subject to an agreed schedule.

Please note that the level of contributions for all developments will be reviewed at the end of
March each year and may be changed to reflect changes in the BCIS index — therefore we
reserve the right to vary the level of the contribution if the contribution detailed above is not
paid before 1 April 2016.

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Page 44



Agenda Item 4c

From:Walling, Fiona

Sent:16 Jun 2016 16:38:08 +0100

To:Planning Appeals

Subject:FW: Notice of Review - Planning Application 16/00136/FUL

From: irddesign [mailto:irddesign@aol.co.uk]

Sent: 15 June 2016 16:37

To: localreview

Subject: Re: Notice of Review - Planning Application 16/00136/FUL

Hi Fiona,

Apologies for the delay in response but I have just noticed your email in my spam folder. 1am
happy for the application to proceed as is and for the review body to be informed of the date
error accordingly.

Kind regards

lain

Sent from Samsung tablet

-------- Original message --------
From: localreview
Date:13/06/2016 15:24 (GMT=+00:00)

Page 45



To: "irddesign@aol.co.uk™
Subject: Notice of Review - Planning Application 16/00136/FUL

Mr Iain Dunn
IRD Design Ltd
Dear Mr Dunn

Proposed conversion of storage building into dwelling house — West Flemington,
Burnmouth - 16/00136/FUL

I refer to your Notice of Review in respect of the above planning application submitted on behalf
of the applicants, Mr & Mrs James Cook. This has been passed to the Democratic Services
Team who provide the administration for the Local Review Body. I understand that the Decision
Notice for this application had been issued with the incorrect date and that it has now been re-
issued, dated 6 April 2016. | understand also that Mrs Wemyss, from Regulatory Services,
spoke to you on the telephone to explain and apologise for this error.

[ note that you specifically refer to the original Decision Notice date in your statement
accompanying the Notice of Review. I am therefore writing to give you the opportunity of re-
submitting your Notice of Review should you so wish, given that a revised Decision Notice has
been provided. If you would prefer not to resubmit the Notice of Review, the Local Review
Body will be provided with factual clarification at the meeting at which this review is
considered, regarding the date error in the Decision Notice and the fact that the Appellant has
been provided with a revised, correctly dated Decision Notice.

Please would you confirm whether you wish me to process the Notice of Review and documents
which we have received or whether you wish to revise and resubmit these.

Kind regards

Fiona Walling

Democratic Services Officer

Scottish Borders Council

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 826504 (Direct Line)

Page 46



Agenda Item 4d

LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 16/00016/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 16/00136/FUL

Development Proposal: Change of Use of Storage Barn, alterations and extension to form
dwelling house

Location: Land east of Flemington Farmhouse, West Flemington, Eyemouth

Applicant: Mr and Mrs J. Cook

**New LDP 2016**

Policy HD2: Housing in the Countryside

The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:

a) invillage locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will
only be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,

b) associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect
their character or that of the surrounding area, and

c) indispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.

These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will
be the starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the
countryside, which will be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance /
Supplementary Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside and on
Placemaking and Design.

(A) Building Groups

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building
group, whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be
approved provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion
to residential use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of
at least three houses, no additional housing will be approved until such
conversion has been implemented,

b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building
group, and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken
into account when determining new applications. Additional development
within a building group will be refused if, in conjunction with other
developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse impacts,

c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not
exceed two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during
the Plan period. No further development above this threshold will be permitted.

In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal

Page 47



should be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be
sympathetic to the character of the group.

The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing
units within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will
include those units under construction or nearing completion at that point.

(B) Dispersed Buildings Groups

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3
houses or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower
threshold may be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible
community, economic or environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a
sense of place will be the primary consideration.

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups
that meet the above criteria may be approved provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community
in the Southern Borders housing market area,

b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not
exceed two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period.
No further development above this threshold will be permitted,

c) the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of
housing in the countryside proposals.

(C) Conversions of Buildings to a House
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable
provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is
capable of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,

b) the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and
the existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will
be required where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may
not be capable of conversion, and

c) the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the
scale and architectural character of the existing building.

(D) Restoration of Houses

The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the
former residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead
height). In addition:

a) the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the
character of the landscape setting,
b) any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form

Page 48




c)

and architectural character of the existing or original building, and

significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it
can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a
positive contribution to the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy
efficient design.

(E) Replacement Dwellings
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:

a)
b)

c)

the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical
building pattern and the character of the landscape setting,

the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its
scales, extent, form and architectural character,

significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be
considered where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental
benefits such as a positive contribution to the landscape and /or a more
sustainable and energy efficient design.

(F) Economic Requirement
Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council
is satisfied that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural,
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the
countryside, and it is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and
the presence of that worker on-site is essential to the efficient operation of the
enterprise. Such development could include businesses that would cause
disturbance or loss of amenity if located within an existing settlement, or

it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or
other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also
employed on the unit that is the subject of the application, and the development
will release another house for continued use by an agricultural, horticultural,
forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and
the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear
social or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision
of employment or the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and

no appropriate site exists within a building group, and

there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the
required residential use.

In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections
above, there shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance where it meets the terms of this policy and development must not
negatively impact on landscape and existing communities. The cumulative effect of
applications under this policy will be taken into account when determining impact.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Page 49




Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy ED10 Protection of Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils

Policy HD1 Affordable and Special Needs Housing

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Many of the Plan’s environmental policies will be relevant particularly EP4 National
Scenic Areas and EP5 Special Landscape Areas.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Affordable Housing

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns

Green Space

Landscape and Development

Local Landscape Designations

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Affordable Housing

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns

Greenspace

Landscape and Development

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the
efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and
resources such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable
construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide
emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this target met
through the use of low or zero carbon technology,

Page 50



b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling
and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and
the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at
an early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in
place for long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and
spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of
the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this
need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

[) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing
street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated
footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to
the site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those

Page 51




used for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending
preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some
cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision
may be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the
amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or
replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:
This policy is relevant to most policies within the Plan.
The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders
Green Space

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

Replacement Windows and Doors

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Greenspace

Housing

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)
Sustainable Urban Drainage

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Waste Management

Policy HD3 - Protection of Residential Amenity

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space

Page 52




b)

that would be lost; and

the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a
residential area,

(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding
properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground
or ‘backland’ development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Environmental Promotion and Protection policies EP7-EP10

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)

Policy IS7 - Parking Provision and Standards

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance
with approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to
the nature of the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be
demonstrated that do not compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will
consider the desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the
context of policies to promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards for New Development

Page 53




Policy IS9 - Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Waste Water Treatment Standards

The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if
necessary, or failing that:

b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the
existing sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water
treatment works, or failing that:

c). agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide
permanent or temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the
possibility of stand alone treatment plants until sewer capacity becomes
available, or, failing that:

d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to
publicly sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be
acceptable, providing it can be demonstrated that this can be delivered
without any negative impacts to public health, the environment or the quality
of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private
sewage treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional
circumstances prevail and the conditions in criteria d above can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:

a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water
treatment infrastructure within settlements,

b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the
developer to provide for new infrastructure.

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and
brownfield sites, must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban
drainage systems to the satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment
Protection Agency (where required), Scottish Natural Heritage and other
interested parties where required. Development will be refused unless surface
water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids flooding,
pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and
flood attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any
necessary features.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards for New Development
Policy EP1 International and Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species

Page 54




Policy EP2 National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species
Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment
Policy IS8 Flooding

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Policy IS2: Developer Contributions

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot
proceed due to deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental
impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated as a result of the
development, the Council will require developers to make a full or partial
contribution towards the cost of addressing such deficiencies.

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies
on preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance
with current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;

c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements,
Safer Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways,
bridges and associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public
transport operators; all in accordance with the relevant standards and the
provisions of any Travel Plan;

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or
off-site;

e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including
costs of future management and maintenance;

f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site
or off-site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for
any losses and/or alternative provision;

g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of
the development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime;
provision for the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including
communal facilities; provision of street furniture and digital connectivity with
associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be
secured by planning condition. Where a legal agreement is necessary, the
preference for using an agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973
Local Government (Scotland) Act and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be
considered. A planning obligation will only be necessary where successors in title
need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the council will consider the

Page 55




economic viability of a proposed development, including possible payment options,
such as staged or phased payments.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy HD5 Care and Retirement Homes

Infrastructure and Standards policies particularly 15S4-1S7 and 1S9

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Development Contributions

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Development Contributions

Policy IS13: Contaminated Land

Where development is proposed on land that is contaminated, suspected of

contamination, or unstable the developer will be required to:

(a) carry out, in full consultation with, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders
Council, appropriate phased site investigations and risk assessments; and

(b) where necessary, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council design,
implement, and validate appropriate remedial or mitigation measures to
render the site suitable for its proposed use.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment

Some of the Plan’s Environmental Promotion and Protection policies may also be
relevant.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy

Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity

Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable
Species and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be
demonstrated that the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the
value of the habitat for biodiversity conservation.

Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on

Page 56




habitats and species should:

a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and

b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the
site, including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity
offsets as appropriate; and

d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems
approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife
corridors and provision for their long-term management and maintenance

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries
Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

Policy EP14 Coastline

Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment
Policy I1S2 Developer Contributions

Policy I1S15 Radio Telecommunications

Scottish Planning Policy

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Biodiversity

Development Contributions

Green Space

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Development Contributions

Greenspace
Green Networks

Others:
- Scottish Planning Policy
- SPG Placemaking and Design

- SPG New Housing in the Borders Countryside

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

Notice of Review

Scottish

41 Borders
—> COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review,

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name [Cleek Poultry Ltd ] Name [_ |
Address [The Tractor Shed, Kirkburn, Cardrona | Address [ ]
Postcode [EH45 9HU ] Postcode L 1
Contact Telephone 1[077686 82646 Contact Telephone 1

Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2

Fax No Fax No

E-mail* [ | E-mail* L ]

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? D
Planning authority [Scottish Borders Council ]
Planning authority's application reference number [16/00114/FUL |
Site address [Field No 0328, Kirkburn, Cardrona, Scottish Borders 1

Description of proposed [Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff facilities and erection of
development animal feed silo.

Date of application [2nd February 2016 | Date of decision (if any) [28th March 2016 |

Page 1 of 4
Page 59



Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1. Application for planning permission (including householder application)

2. Application for planning permission in principle D

Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenD
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning

condition) D

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer
2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of [:l
the application D

3.  Conditicns imposed on consent by appointed officer

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions

4 Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure D

2. One or more hearing sessions

3.  Site inspection

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? D
2 Isit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? D

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4
Page 60




Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or bedy, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

he application was made to provide a building for the "bringing-on' pedigree store cattle - in particular in this case
Dexters which are a threatened species. A business plan was professionally prepared and submitted with the
application which gives clarity to the viability of the project. Furthermore, in anticipation of the consent being
granted, further ground has been leased from an adjoining small-holder to provide additional grazing for the cattle.
The staff facilities proposed are a requirement of the HSE and any business which provides employment has to be
aware of staff welfare.

The building has been designed so as the cattle feed and watering uses gravity. Fundamentally, the water is to be
drawing from an existing borehole within the site which has been established. In a previous request for planning
consent, it was asked that a water storage building could be formed on the higher ground. This would have removed
the need for the animal feed silo - or at least reduced it in height. However, the council refused both the water
storage facility and the water pumping shed, and hence the need for such a high feed silo, with capacity in the event
of pump-failure or power interruption.

The applicant is looking for ways of maximising food production or the conversion of feedstuff to protein from a very
limited small-holding. The building is designed so as two levels of production area can be installed should the
business be successful. The facility requested in the application 16/00114/FUL proposes to be a commercially
viable business, whilst also assisting in the prolongification of the Dexter breed by creating demand. It should be
noted that Dexters have been kept at Kirkburn since the applicant purchased the small-holding, so this is not a new
introduction.

The applicant requests that the decision is reconsidered and is willing to have an open discussion to make the
points clear. Specifically he feels that the Borders Council are being close-minded to the progressive use of the
small-holding as a viable food producing unit.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the \ﬁ

determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

No new material has been raised, although it is the second attempt to obtain the consent.

Page 3 of 4
Page 61




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

Business Plan for Store Cattle Unit
Drawing 196 02 rev B

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review:

Full completion of all parts of this form
Statement of your reasons for requiring a review
All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other

documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earlier
consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Signed

Date | !‘/‘.j”’

The Completed form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA.

Page 4 of 4
Page 62



£9 abed

[ 20 4 6 80 100
SITE PLAN SCALE 1:1250
- -
AR pom—
{ \
e iy S 0% | ! | A
i P - ST CRRORE \ | o N - |
\ | /
,,,,, " ;s
h a_l_//" 129n ‘
= L
Willlam Cree
P Memoriat Church . Ty
= .
s
P T 1 D b
prmp— - D e
o wwar
s o o e
e Lamyis enren
= et oo p pfbves iy
SOUTH WEST v s oo an e |
wﬂ‘“’.“' T DI SAnss frove Yara |
o R
|
|
G 1
e |
1 1w v e |
. 2T T vy
|
oo et
AR TN veme v
{ | \ e : , . R}
{ \ || BEE—T PLANS AT 1:100 s A N 2 0130 D W
\ 1 | ~ e ERD CRET T N O
Y Vi o 1 (o 8 s
NV o
S e s 1 e
™~ AL W T ) O
S 5 . T
i | 7 e 0  E v
/ | £ Daare 3 WA G
- S A S - - : e 7 e
= e | mm .
- —_—r
> == ] T !
— [ ,—— [
| ' | l
| R ) | |
ST RS ROOV TFED AN WD TEAYASAPY ': L D WY & SRR SED L " N ;Egﬁ;ﬁm 14 L
U b -~
» |
| [ s TODS M) HUPENT R \ R ———
W] DT f J
) r I |, S, | 5 h I I J T T
N 1
- . - |
FIRST LODR GENERAL ARRANGEMEN = B
CWELFARL UNIT) 190 SOH £451
i B s m
- e
Sl Toe: 5 = ak )
oo SOLE 1:100 OF 45 SWIED o 2015
Ty —
drg 136 02) GEMERAL ARRANGEWENT
wen s | ST AM E DTN
| = PROPOSED PEDIGREE CATIE (NT <08 SIGPE
[— = CATLE W FEID SLO 48D HAY SHD
| - = _ = == = ST S— — — | KRESURN, CARTPONA, PEERLFS, FHAS SHU
ihu WG TRONL X S0 DY AT O S

HORTH £AST

Clesk Pouttry (14

HORTH WEST



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b

gg?‘étéig Regulatory Services

COUNCI

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

lApplication for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00114/FUL

I To: CleekPoultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles

With reference to your application validated on 2nd February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development -

Proposal : Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff facilities and erection of
animal feed silo

at: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 28th March 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 OSA

Signed
Chief Planning Officer

Visit http:/eplanning scotborders. qov. uk/online-applications/

Page 65



%(c:) ?"Elttle 8 l; Regulatory Services

CCOUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00114/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

196 02 B Planning Layout Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Flan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that the submitted Business Plan does not adequately demonstrate that there is an
overriding justification for the building and silo of the scale and design proposed that would justify an
exceptional permission for thern in this rural location and the building does not appear to be
designed for the purpose intended. The development would appear, therefore, as unwarranted
development in the open countryside.

3 The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse
impact on the setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady's Church and Churchyard adjoining the
application site.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Admimistration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TDR OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Wisit http:feplanning. scotborders. gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 66



Agenda Item 5c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00114/FUL
APPLICANT : Cleek Poultry Ltd
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff facilities and
erection of animal feed silo
LOCATION: Field No 0328 Kirkburn
Cardrona

Scottish Borders

TYPE FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

196 02 B Planning Layout Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning:

The previous application (15/00947/FUL) was lacking information relating to vehicle movements that
this proposal would generate.

The current application includes a business plan which details the operations of the proposed
business. Whilst the proposal is unlikely to generate significant increase, the access to the site
requires to be upgraded.

Should this application be supported, then | must insist that the access is upgraded as per my
comments below prior to work commencing on the development. A detailed plan should be submitted
for approval prior to works commencing on the development showing the following upgrading works;

o} The first 6m of the access to be at a gradient of no steeper than 1 in 15, with the access track
no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.

o} The access road must be a minimum of 6m wide for a minimum 10m length, with 6m radii at
the belimouth.

o The first 6m of the access to be surfaced to my specification i.e. 40mm of 14mm size close
graded bituminous surface course to BS 4987 laid on 60mm of 20mm size dense binder course
(basecourse) to the same BS laid on 350mm of 100mm broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-

base, type 1.
o} Measures to be put in place to prevent the flow of water onto the public road.
0 Visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 120 metres in either direction onto the public road. These

splays must be retained in perpetuity thereafter.

Page 67



It should be noted that access requirements were conditioned as part of a previous application for
holiday lodges, 12/00902/FUL, by the same applicant, which has yet to be implemented. A detailed
drawing of the junction upgrades was submitted to the Council and subsequently approved. A
separate planning application for the access upgrade was also approved (15/01206/FUL). Should
either of these applications be implemented and the access is upgraded, then there would be no
requirement for further upgrades required as a result of this proposal.

Environmental Health:

Amenity and Pollution

Assessment of Application

Noise

This is an Application to erect a cattle court and animal feed silo.
Feed silos have the potential to cause noise nuisance.

Cattle courts can cause pollution, insect and odour problems

Recommendation
Delete as appropriate - Agree with application in principle, subject to conditions
Conditions

Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise Rating Curve
NR20 between the hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within the
nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any
plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component.
Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

All plant and machinery shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

Waste and contaminated water arising from the use of the cattle court shall be stored, handled and
disposed of in such a manner as not to cause Statutory Nuisance or pollution.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties and to protect the environment.
Archaeology Officer:

Thank you for requesting an archaeology consultation. | have previously provided consultations on
earlier proposals for this site. | have raised concerns that the setting of the formerly Scheduled, and
still regionally significant, Our Lady's Church and churchyard, will be compromised by development in
this location. | requested that the applicants demonstrate that the setting of the church and churchyard
will not be compromised per Policy BE2 and the replacement policy EP8. | note that the previous
applications were refused in part because of a lack of information provided by the applicants to allow a
determination that development would not adversely impact the setting of the churchyard. | also note
that this information has not been supplied in this application and | am similarly unable to make a
judgement. As such | recommend refusal of the application as currently submitted, but | would refer
you to my earlier comments and recommendations. If further information is supplied | would be happy
to revisit this application.

Landscape Architect:

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

Page 68



Due to the sloping nature of the field | am concerned that the cattle shed and silo will be highly visible
from the north side of the valley and more locally from the B7062 immediately to the north of the field.
No attempt has been made to cut the building into the slope.

The attractive juxtaposition of valley side pastoral farmland with mixed and coniferous forestry and
woodland could potentially be undermined by the introduction of an industrial scale shed that will
require substantial earth moving to achieve the required amount of level ground. | suggest that the
existing trees along the north boundary may not provide adequate screening for the buildings that will
be located well up the hillside and | am concerned they will be seen from much of the surrounding
elevated land to the north west, north and north east.

As part of an extensive development of the field we would normally expect a Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (LVIA) with visualisations to be undertaken to test the scheme.

Local Plan Policy EP2 requires developers to comply with Structure Plan policy N11 which states that
'In assessing proposals for development in AGLVs (replaced by SLAs in 2012), the Council will seek to
safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard to the landscape impact of the proposed
development.'

Conclusion

The submitted information was limited, however | have a concern that this proposal will have a serious
negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley and would be visually intrusive from much of
the surrounding area

| therefore, on landscape and visual grounds, cannot support this application.
Economic Development;

I have reviewed the above application in respect of the business plan for a cattle store unit.

| believe there are a number of fundamental issues with the business plan and a number of operational
issues with the design of the unit.

1. The proposed building is more akin to an industrial unit as opposed to a cattle shed: 2 points in
this respect are the lack of appropriate ventilation which may create a welfare situation for the
stock and secondly the roller shutter door into the cattle area would in probability become
inoperable due to the cattle manure in the building.

2. The size of the building appears to be excessive for the stock numbers proposed, looking at the
stock numbers and the recommended stocking rates for cattle buildings then the cattle shed

could probably hold almost twice as many cattle as the proposed number. The submitted plan
indicates that a number of cattle would be sold off grass and only 25 would be housed,

indicating an excess capacity within the cattle shed. The silage and probably the straw could be
housed outside and thereby reduce the size of building.

3. The feed silo has a capacity of circa 600 cubic metres; the business plan indicates a feed usage
of 20.8 tonnes which would require approx. 30 m3 and in respect of good practise this wouldn't

be bought in as one lot but probably every 1 to 2 months and in effect a only a fraction of the

silo would be required for feed storage. The silo is considerably bigger than it needs to be.

4. The 40 acres of grassland are a key element to the model, however there is no copy of the
lease or for how long. The business plan puts this proposal forward as a 20 year project, so the
lease would have to reflect this to some degree.

5. The business plan contains details for marketing of the end product, however this aspect is not
particularly robust (restaurants are unlikely to buy whole carcases they will buy specific cuts). A
local food van attending regional events such as agricultural shows is unlikely to have an even
demand of 2 beasts per month throughout the year (typically they are seasonal). Is there a

letter of intent from the food van owner that they will take 2 beasts a month throughout the

year?

6. A number of the financial and production assumptions are optimistic and in practice would be
different to those submitted e.g. straw usage of 17.5 tonnes would probably be higher

particularly feeding silage to the cattle.

Peebles and District Community Council: Response awaited.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Page 69



Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy BE2 Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments

Policy EP2 Areas of Great Landscape Value

Policy D1 Businesss, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

"Special Landscape Area 2 - Tweed Valley" - Supplementary Planning Policies

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 28th March 2016

This application is the third to seek permission for a cattle court and feed silo on this part of the agricultural
holding at Kirkburn, Cardrona. As many issues remain the same and the proposal is little changed in respect
of impacts on landscape or archaeology, | would refer you to the full report prepared for Application
Reference 15/00947/FUL and the reasons given for refusal with regard to landscape and archaeological
impacts. The Landscape and Archaeology Officers have reaffirmed their opposition to this latest proposal
which does not effect any reductions in height, scale or location of the shed and silo from those previously
refused, nor provides any of the previously requested information to enable further landscape or
archaeological assessments to be undertaken. Cladding of the silo to create a traditional "tower"
appearance does nothing to limit the impact of this excessive 12m high structure on the designated
landscape quality of the area. Given the continued opposition from the consultees, the decision on this
application should be no different from the previous two in relation to landscape and archaeology.

The main change with the application is that it has been submitted with a Business Plan in support,
identifying the purpose of the building and silo, based upon leasing 40 acres of land from Laverlaw to the
south, rearing and fattening 32 cattle per year and providing meat for a local burger van and local
restaurants. The building is meant for wintering cattle, storing hay and sileage. The silo will contain cereal
and water.

Compared to the last two decisions, it is useful to have received a justification for the silo and building this
time based upon a cattle business using 40 acres of leased land. Previously, it was not considered that the
building could have been justified on the basis of the very limited size of the owned landholding.
Nevertheless, the Business Plan has been carefully assessed by Business Gateway who conclude that the
building and silo are excessive for their purpose and the building not suited due to lack of appropriate
ventilation and the operability of the single roller shutter door. They describe it as "akin to an industrial unit".
Despite ventilated Yorkshire boarding being shown at upper level on the building, Business Gateway are of
the opinion that this is insufficient. They also question some of the marketing and productivity assumptions.
On the basis of the submitted Business Plan and the concerns of Business Gateway, the revised application
cannot overcome the previous reasons for refusal based upon lack of adequate justification or suitability of
the building and silo for the intended purposes.

The Business Plan has, however, allowed the Roads Planning Service to accept the proposals provided the
access is improved either, in itself as a condition on any consent granted, or as per the implementation of
earlier consents relating to the holiday chalet development or access itself.

For the reasons mentioned above, the revised proposals do not address the landscape and archaeological
reasons for refusal on previous decisions and the Business Plan does not adequately demonstrate just why
the building and silo have to be of the scale and design intended. For these reasons, the proposal continues
to be in breach of the relevant Local Plan Policies G1, BE2, EP2 and D1.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley in that the
proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape and will

have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that the submitted Business Plan does not adequately demonstrate that there is an overriding justification

Page 70



for the building and silo of the scale and design proposed that would justify an exceptional permission for
them in this rural location and the building does not appear to be designed for the purpose intended. The
development would appear, therefore, as unwarranted development in the open countryside.

The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that it has
not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse impact on the
setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady's Church and Churchyard adjoining the application site.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that the submitted Business Plan does not adequately demonstrate that there is an
overriding justification for the building and silo of the scale and design proposed that would justify an
exceptional permission for them in this rural location and the building does not appear to be
designed for the purpose intended. The development would appear, therefore, as unwarranted
development in the open countryside.

3 The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse
impact on the setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady's Church and Churchyard adjoining the
application site.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 71



Page 72



Agenda Item 5d

%g?'étéi lg Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

[ Application for Planning Permission Reference : 15/00947/FUL |

Ilo : _Cleek Poultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles |

With reference to your application validated on 12th August 2015 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Erection of cattle/hay shed and feed silo

at: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 29th September 2015
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed

Chief Planning Officer

Visit htip://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 73



%%?-3%?—2 Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 15/00947/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

196 02 A Elevations Refused
REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building and silo that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location
and, therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open
countryside. The proposed building and silo are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to
the proposed use for which they are intended or the size of the holding on which they would be
situated, nor are there any indications of how a feed silo and cattle court would relate to each other
in scale of usage terms, all of which further undermine the case for justification in this location.

8 The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse
impact on the setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady's Church and Churchyard adjoining the
application site.

4 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 74



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO

CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART lil REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF :
APPLICANT :
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT :

LOCATION:

TYPE :

REASON FOR DELAY:

15/00947/FUL

Cleek Poultry Ltd

Erection of cattle/hay shed and feed silo
Field No 0328 Kirkburn

Cardrona
Scottish Borders

FUL Application

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref

196 02 A

Plan Type Plan Status

Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning: Respose awaited.

Environmental Health:

Amenity and Pollution

Assessment of Application

Noise

This Application includes proposals to erect a cattle / hay shed and feed silo

Equipment associated with feed silos can cause noise impacts from motors and other ancillary

equipment.

Recommendation

Agree with application in principle, subject to conditions.

Conditions

Noise

Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise Rating Curve
NR20 between the hours of 2300 — 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within the
nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any

Page 75



plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component.
Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2
Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

The feed silo and associated equipment shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.
Archaeology Officer:

Please see my comments with respect to application 15/00493/FUL. These remain vaild for this
application as does the objection pending the submission of further information to help me judge
setting impacts to the regionally significant site of Our Lady’s Church and churchyard.

Landscape Officer:

Description of the Site

The site is a part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SPA) and the designation
recognises the special character of the valley landscape in the Designation statement as follows:

‘The broad Tweed Valley is typical of the Borders, and is the most familiar of the Borders valleys.
Accordingly it has a strong sense of place, with certain views being instantly recognisable. The varied
mix of landscape elements is highly representative, with forestry, woodland, open hillsides and
pastoral farmland all juxtaposed. Added to this mix is a range of settlement types, with the valley
providing the setting to several settlements. The landscape unfolds as the viewer follows the river
through the valley, presenting new vistas alternately dominated by forestry, as around

Walkerburn, or by the steep rocky slopes above Innerleithen. The contrast between the well settled
valley and the bare heather and grass moors and landmark hills is striking. Well-designed

forestry actively contributes to this visual experience in places.’

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the
north.

Nature of the Proposal
The proposal is for the erection of a 44 x 10 x 7m high cattle/hay shed with staff facilities and an 11.5m
X 7.5m diameter feed silo

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

Due to the sloping nature of the field | am concerned that the cattle shed and silo will be highly visible
from the north side of the valley and more locally from the B7062 immediately to the north of the field.
No attempt has been made to cut the building into the slope.

The attractive juxtaposition of valley side pastoral farmland with mixed and coniferous forestry and
woodland could potentially be undermined by the introduction of an industrial scale shed that will
require substantial earth moving to achieve the required amount of level ground. | suggest that the
existing trees along the north boundary may not provide any screening for the buildings that will be
located well up the hillside and | am concerned they will be seen from much of the surrounding
elevated land to the north west, north and north east.

As part of an extensive development of the field we would normally expect a Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (LVIA) to be undertaken to test the scheme.

Local Plan Policy EP2 requires developers to comply with Structure Plan policy N11 which states that
‘In assessing proposals for development in AGLVs (replaced by SLAs in 2012), the Council will seek to
safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard to the landscape impact of the proposed
development.’

Conclusion

The submitted information was limited, however | have a concern that this proposal with no attempt to
lower the buildings’ heights will have a serious negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley
and would be visually intrusive from much of the surrounding area

Page 76



I therefore, on landscape and visual grounds, cannot support this application.

Economic Development: No comments as there are no supporting business related documents.
Peebles and District Community Council: Response awaited.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy BE2 Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments

Policy EP2 Areas of Great Landscape Value

Policy D1 Businesss, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

"Special Landscape Area 2 - Tweed Valley" - Supplementary Planning Policies

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 28th September 2015

The site forms part of an 8 acre smallholding at Kirkburn, Cardrona, on the back road to Peebles. This
planning application is one of seven which have been submitted for various buildings and structures on the
land to the south and west of the holiday chalets site. Together with an eighth proposal in the form of an
AGN, five of the applications all relate to the same site and are competing proposals, only one of which
could actually be implemented. This cattle court/hay shed application is one of the five occupying a
triangular area of land which rises to the south and above the holiday chalets site, stretching to the public
road to Laverlaw to the rear. All seven other applications have been refused, including previous applications
for hay sheds and a cattle court - and a feed silo on a site adjoining.

The building amalgamates previous hay shed and cattle court proposals into one building, it being erected
adjoining a new 6m access road to the south of the chalet site and adjoining the corner of Our Lady's
Church and graveyard remains. It will be 44m by 10m with an eaves height of 6m and a ridge height of
7.45m. It will be clad in larchlap boarding with a charcoal grey fibre roof and will possess two roller shutter
doors to the front and three other pedestrian doors. Staff quarters are shown at one end of the building at
mezzanine level consisting of a rest room, toilet and kitchenette. The ground floor has an equipment room
and hay store section, the majority being given over to a cattle purpose. A feed silo is also proposed to the
east of the cattle shed measuring 7.5m wide by 12.3m to ridge.

The site also lies within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area No. 2 - a recent local landscape
designation which requires extra care and attention to be paid to development that could adversely impact
on the character of the landscape. Management recommendations were set out in the Supplementary
Planning Guidance accompanying the designation, the most pertinent being "..to better integrate existing
development into the landscape”. This was arising out of pressure for development on hills and hillsides
across the designated area.

Such considerations were uppermost when the adjoining holiday chalets application was considered at
Committee. As a result of concerns over visual impacts on rising land, revisions to the scheme were
required to reduce impacts on the recently designated landscape. This involved removal of upper chalets
and the loop road as well as a series of cross sections to demonstrate that the development would not be
seen from the A72 on the Horsbrugh Straight above the existing tree canopy line.

In processing the initial AGN application for Mushroom growing sheds, concern was expressed that those
sheds were as tall as the Hub House within the holiday development, yet apparently on higher ground by
several metres. The tree top heights on the sections submitted with the holiday chalets application indicated
screening up to about 188m AOD which was sufficient to screen the Hub House. It was not felt that the
proposed sheds would be screened to the same extent by the existing trees, the Landscape Officer
believing that they will be highly visible above them. The same loop road was also proposed as part of the
Mushroom sheds application which would also be visible above the tree canopy.

Page 77



The Landscape Officer concluded that in the absence of any Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to
prove otherwise, the development would have a detrimental impact on the Special Landscape Area. The
applicant was invited to respond to these concerns with supporting information which could include cross
sections, photomontages, topographical and floor level information. They were also invited to consider the
precise siting of the sheds and the roof height and design. It was clearly stated, however, that any additional
information submitted may still confirm the concerns over landscape impact, especially if significant
excavation required to lower floor levels remains prominent in itself.

A revised plan was submitted for the mushroom shed application accompanied by a topographical detailed
survey and proposals to reduce the impacts of those buildings by cutting in the floor level as well as
reducing the heights of those buildings from 7.3m down to 4.8m. The accompanying letter believed that they
were a better design solution than the initial proposal. Tree heights were demonstrated, in the highest case,
to be higher than the ridge height now proposed. However, of the tree heights actually shown, the general
top of the tree line is still appreciably below the ridges of the two buildings. The most recent application on
the same site for rabbit breeding sheds goes further and lowers the floor levels even more whilst still
keeping the new 4.8m ridge height. These reductions and design solutions were considered acceptable for
the rabbits proposal, noting that it was possible that the ridge heights of those buildings could be as little as
0.5-1.5m above the average tree line height. However, the rabbits proposal was still refused for
archaeological, business and traffic related reasons.

This background is important as it should be noted that the cattle court building which is the subject of this
application, is neither cut into the site nor is lower in height, being more than 2.5m above the heights of the
revised mushroom/rabbit sheds, without taking into account any cut into the site. Even if such cut was
proposed for the current application, the height of the building would still result in projection above the
average tree height by at least 3-4.5m which would have a major landscape impact, exacerbated by the bulk
of the building across it's 44m length. There is previous clear advice from the Landscape Officer that such
an impact would be unacceptable, given the level of projection of building above the tree line when viewed
from the A72. There is also likely to be local impacts from the B7062 next to the site. The previous hay shed
and cattle court applications were refused partially for landscape impact reasons and this re-submitted
proposal makes no attempt to minimise the landscape impact that was of concern with those applications

These landscape impacts would be exacerbated by the feed silo which, at 12.3m height, is only a 3m
reduction on the feed silo refused as part of the chicken sheds application on the site to the west. As with
that silo, the slope of the ground means that the structure would be presented to public view to the north,
rising up the hill to the Laverlaw Road and introducing an intrusive element into the hill slope. The effects
would be contrary to the purposes of designating the Special Landscape Area in the first instance.
Combined with the bulk and height of the cattle/hay shed building, this proposal is no different or better than
previous applications

Given the stated purpose of the building as mainly for cattle, it is considered that there would be no real
possibility of reducing the ridge of the building to the extent proposed for the rabbit sheds. Indeed, the stated
purpose of the building does not seem to have influenced the design. Whilst cattle courts are generally taller
buildings, there is no ventilation apparently proposed and few openings apart from two roller shutter doors
and four pedestrian doors. There is also staff provision in the form of a rest room, kitchenette and a toilet
which either seems unnecessary and unrelated to a cattle court - or excessive in that such provision could
be provided elsewhere on the holding, probably within the existing buildings. Certainly, there would be no
effective justification to have these facilities duplicated in every building proposed on this site.

Policy D1 looks for uses which are related to the ground on which they are located, for purposes which are
generated by the land and any particular activity carried out on the land. In this case, the building is
proposed mainly for cattle yet neither seems suited for the purpose nor related to the size and current
farming activities on the holding. Recently, it was confirmed that only a few cattle were held on the holding
and there has not been any Business Plan submitted explaining the farming practices, either existing or
proposed. It is known that the landholding is only 8 acres, of which 3 have been earmarked for the
consented chalet development and some of the remainder are occupied already by buildings and the yard
area. Whilst it has been mentioned that an additional 12 acres to the rear are used from an adjoining farm,
there has been no demonstration of this in a Business Plan. In any case, the sheer scale of the proposed
building would be unlikely to be able to be justified for the housing of cattle from the landholding, even if it
was confirmed there was a formal lease for the additional 12 acres. The same could be said of the use of

Page 78



part of the building for hay, given the size of the landholding and lack of available growing ground - given
that the proposal is also for cattle grazing on the same ground.

Questions also arise over the business justification for the feed store, given it was previously proposed and
felt excessive for the poultry sheds which have now been refused. Feed silos for cattle are unusual and on

the scale proposed, would seem to be unjustified without any further explanation in the form of a Business

Plan.

Itis concluded that the application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated
Local Plan 2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for
the proposed building and silo that would justify an exceptional permission in this rural location and therefore
the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed building
and silo are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the proposed use for which they are
intended or the size of the holding on which they would be situated, which further undermines the case for
justification in this location.

There are also potential archaeological implications for this proposal. The adjacent site was consented for
holiday cottage development, and this carried with it a condition for archaeological evaluation. The
reasoning behind this was the proximity to Our Lady’s Church and, the potential setting impacts, and the
discovery of a bronze axe head which indicates prehistoric activity. The Archaeology Officer is particularly
concerned about the development of the fields west and south of Our Lady’s Church. Development that
impacts its setting would be contrary to Policy BE2 of the Consolidated Local Plan. In particular, he is
concerned that the setting will be further eroded by developments that begin to surround the church and
churchyard. The setting includes the fields to the north and south and a topographic relation with the slope
to the south-west. These fields are also, at present (including the recently consented holiday chalets), the
only areas that are undeveloped and it may be desirable to retain this status for the benefit of the church’s
setting. Development on the slope would not only appear to ‘wrap around’ the church yard, it would also
overlook the site. The photovoltaic cells and track in near proximity to the churchyard could form a significant
competing element with the churchyard.

The Archaeology Officer objects to the application as currently submitted in the absence of additional
information such as a photomontage and wireframe from the churchyard showing the development,
proposals to mitigate the impact to the setting of the churchyard and photos from the development site
towards the churchyard. The applicant was asked to provide such information for the Mushroom Sheds AGN
but felt such information was not necessary, given the revised topographical information and willingness to
enter into a planning condition for field evaluation. Whilst the Archaeology Officer noted the reductions made
to the Mushroom and Rabbit Sheds applications, the cattle court application is higher, bulkier and involves
more structures and development of the hillside. His comments remain applicable to this proposal which
must be considered to contravene Policy BE2 which seeks to protect Archaeological Sites and their settings
from detrimental impact.

Roads Planning have concerns over this proposal together with others submitted on the same and adjoining
sites. They point out that conditioned work has never been completed, with the bell mouth still requiring to
be surfaced and visibility from the access onto the public road remaining substandard. This proposal, if
approved, would increase the amount of vehicles using the access and should it be approved, upgrading
works should be conditioned following the submission of details. Roads Planning also consider there to be a
lack of information in terms of the number of vehicle movements this proposal (and the others) will bring.
They have requested a Transport Statement to be submitted on the other applications which details the
type, number and size of vehicle trips which will be generated along with the frequency of trips. The
statement must also include anticipated traffic movements for all other proposed development served by this
access. Whilst they did not request this information for the previous refused cattle court application, the
mixture of additional uses here including the hay and feed silo have led them to be concerned over traffic
generation without submission of additional information on traffic movements. In the absence of this, they
cannot supoort the application.

Given the uncertainty over the scale of the building and its suitability for the purposes intended, it is
understandable that there are Roads concerns over the ability of the access to accommodate the
development without further information being submitted. In the absence of such information, it has not been
adequately demonstrated that the access is capable of safely accommodating the traffic generated by the
proposed development. This would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Consolidated Local Plan.

Page 79



There was also noise issues raised by Environmental Health which could be covered by appropriate
conditions.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley in that the
proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape and will
have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the proposed
building and silo that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location and, therefore, the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed building
and silo are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the proposed use for which they are
intended or the size of the holding on which they would be situated, nor are there any indications of how a
feed silo and cattle court would relate to each other in usage terms , all of which further undermine the case
for justification in this location.

The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that it has
not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse impact on the
setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady’s Church and Churchyard adjoining the application site.

The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that it has

not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the site without
detriment to road safety.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building and silo will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building and silo that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location
and, therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open
countryside. The proposed building and silo are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to
the proposed use for which they are intended or the size of the holding on which they would be
situated, nor are there any indications of how a feed silo and cattle court would relate to each other
in scale of usage terms , all of which further undermine the case for justification in this location.

3 The application is contrary to Policy BE2 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that the building and silo would not have an adverse
impact on the setting of the archaeological site of Our Lady’s Church and Churchyard adjoining the
application site.

4 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

Page 80



Agenda Item 5e

“~|Scottish
/ Borders
— COUNCIL
Scottish Borders Council
Regulatory Services — Consultation reply
Planning Ref 16/00114/FUL
Uniform Ref 16/00214/PLANCO
Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and
Proposal staff facilities and erection of animal feed silo
Address Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders
Date 22/2/116
Amenity and Pollution Officer David A. Brown
Contaminated Land Officer No Comments

Amenity and Pollution

Assessment of Application

Noise
This is an Application to erect a cattle court and animal feed silo.
Feed silos have the potential to cause noise nuisance.

Cattle courts can cause pollution, insect and odour problems

Recommendation

Delete as appropriate — Agree with application in principle, subject to conditions

Conditions

Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise Rating
Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 — 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured
within the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise
emanating from any plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible
tonal component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

All plant and machinery shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

Waste and contaminated water arising from the use of the cattle court shall be stored, handled and
disposed of in such a manner as not to cause Statutory Nuisance or pollution.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties and to protect the environment.

Page 81




PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Archaeology Officer
From: Development Management Date: 4th February 2016
Contact: Craig Miller & 01835 825029 Ref: 16/00114/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION

Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 25th February 2016, If further time will be required for a reply please let
me know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 25th February 2016, it
will be assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into ldox.

Name of Applicant: Cleek Poultry Ltd
Agent: N/A
Nature of Proposal: Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff facilities and

erection of animal feed silo
Site: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS OF: Archaeology Officer

CONSULTATION REPLY

Thank you for requesting an archaeology consultation. | have previously provided consultations on earlier
proposals for this site. | have raised concerns that the setting of the formerly Scheduled, and still regionally
significant, Our Lady's Church and churchyard, will be compromised by development in this location. |
requested that the applicants demonstrate that the setting of the church and churchyard will not be
compromised per Policy BE2 and the replacement policy EP8. | note that the previous applications were
refused in part because of a lack of information provided by the applicants to allow a determination that
development would not adversely impact the setting of the churchyard. | also note that this information has
not been supplied in this application and | am similarly unable to make a judgement. As such | recommend
refusal of the application as currently submitted, but | would refer you to my earlier comments and
recommendations. If further information is supplied | would be happy to revisit this application.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www scotborders.gov.uk

Page 82



Regulatory Services

To: Development Management Attention: Craig Miller

From: LANDSCAPE SECTION Date: 3" March 2016

Contact:  Siobhan McDermott Ext: 5425 Ref: 16/00114/FUL

Subject: Erection of cattle/hay shed incorporating staff facilities, together with feed silo, at Field 0328,

Kirkburn, Cardrona.

It is recognised that a formal recommendation can only be made after consideration of all relevant
information and material considerations. This consultation advice is provided to the Development Control
service in respect of landscape related issues.

Description of the Site

The site is a part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SPA) and the designation recognises
the special character of the valley landscape.

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the north.

Nature of the Proposal
The proposal is for the erection of a 44 x 10 x 7.45m high cattle/hay shed with staff facilities and a separate

6 x 6 x 12m tall castellated silo.

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

Due to the sloping nature of the field | am concerned that the cattle shed and silo will be highly visible from
the north side of the valley and more locally from the B7062 immediately to the north of the field. No
attempt has been made to cut the building into the slope.

The attractive juxtaposition of valley side pastoral farmland with mixed and coniferous forestry and
woodland could potentially be undermined by the introduction of an industrial scale shed that will require
substantial earth moving to achieve the required amount of level ground. | suggest that the existing trees
along the north boundary may not provide adequate screening for the buildings that will be located well up
the hillside and | am concerned they will be seen from much of the surrounding elevated land to the north
west, north and north east.

As part of an extensive development of the field we would normally expect a Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA) with visualisations to be undertaken to test the scheme.

Local Plan Policy EP2 requires developers to comply with Structure Plan policy N11 which states that ‘In
assessing proposals for development in AGLVs (replaced by SLAs in 2012), the Council will seek to
safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard to the landscape impact of the proposed
development.’

Conclusion

The submitted information was limited, however | have a concern that this proposal will have a serious
negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley and would be visually intrusive from much of the
surrounding area

| therefore, on landscape and visual grounds, cannot support this application.

Siobhan McDermott
Landscape Architect

Page 83



PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Economic Development Section
From: Development Management Date: 4th February 2016
Contact:  Craig Miller & 01835 825029 Ref: 16/00114/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION

Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 25th February 2016, If further time will be required for a reply please let
me know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 25th February 2016, it
will be assumed that you have no cbservations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.

Name of Applicant: Cleek Poultry Ltd
Agent: N/A
Nature of Proposal: Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff facilities and

erection of animal feed silo
Site: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS OF: Economic Development Section

CONSULTATION REPLY :

The Economic Development response is as follows:

We have reviewed the above application in respect of the business plan for a cattle store unit. We
believe there are a number of fundamental issues with the business plan and a number of
operational issues with the design of the unit.

1. The proposed building is more akin to an industrial unit as opposed to a cattle shed; 2 points in
this respect are the lack of appropriate ventilation which may create a welfare situation for the
stock and secondly the roller shutter door into the cattle area would, in probability, become
inoperable due to the cattle manure in the building.

2. The size of the building appears to be excessive for the stock numbers proposed, looking at
the stock numbers; and the recommended stocking rates for cattle buildings; then the cattle
shed could probably hold almost twice as many cattle as the proposed number. The submitted
plan indicates that a number of cattle would be sold off grass and only 25 would be housed,
indicating an excess capacity within the cattle shed. The silage, and probably the straw, could
be housed outside and thereby reduce the size of building.

3. The feed silo has a capacity of circa 600 cubic metres; the business plan indicates a feed
usage of 20.8 tonnes which would require approx. 30 m?® and, in respect of good practise, this
wouldn’t be bought in as one lot but probably every 1 to 2 months and in effect only a fraction
of the silo would be required for feed storage. The silo is therefore considerably bigger than it
needs to be.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.qov.uk

Page 84



4. The 40 acres of grassland are a key element to the model, however there is no copy of the
lease or for how long. The business plan puts this proposal forward as a 20 year project, so
the lease would have to reflect this to some degree.

5. The business plan contains details for marketing of the end product, however this aspect is not
particularly robust (restaurants are unlikely to buy whole carcases they will buy specific cuts).
A local food van attending regional events, such as agricultural shows, is unlikely to have an
even demand of 2 beasts per month throughout the year (typically they are seasonal). |s there
a letter of intent from the food van owner that they will take 2 beasts a month throughout the
year?

6. A number of the financial and production assumptions are optimistic and in practice would be
different to those submitted e.g. straw usage of 17.5 tonnes would probably be higher
particularly feeding silage to the cattle.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.qov.uk

Page 85



From:Trotman, Chris

Sent:Thu, 24 Mar 2016 17:45:02 +0000

To:Miller, Craig

Subject:RE: 16/00114/FUL Business Plan, Kirkburn, Cardrona

Craig,

| have reviewed the above application in respect of the business plan for a cattle store unit.

I believe there are a number of fundamental issues with the business plan and a number of operational
issues with the design of the unit.

1

The proposed building is more akin to an industrial unit as opposed to a cattle shed; 2 points in
this respect are the lack of appropriate ventilation which may create a welfare situation for the
stock and secondly the roller shutter door into the cattle area would in probability become
inoperable due to the cattle manure in the building.

The size of the building appears to be excessive for the stock numbers proposed, looking at the
stock numbers and the recommended stocking rates for cattle buildings then the cattle shed
could probably hold almost twice as many cattle as the proposed number. The submitted plan
indicates that a number of cattle would be sold off grass and only 25 would be housed,
indicating an excess capacity within the cattle shed. The silage and probably the straw could be
housed outside and thereby reduce the size of building.

The feed silo has a capacity of circa 600 cubic metres; the business plan indicates a feed usage
of 20.8 tonnes which would require approx. 30 m3 and in respect of good practise this wouldn't
be bought in as one lot but probably every 1 to 2 months and in effect a only a fraction of the
silo would be required for feed storage. The silo is considerably bigger than it needs to be.

The 40 acres of grassland are a key element to the model, however there is no copy of the
lease or for how long. The business plan puts this proposal forward as a 20 year project, so the
lease would have to reflect this to some degree.

The business plan contains details for marketing of the end product, however this aspect is not
particularly robust (restaurants are unlikely to buy whole carcases they will buy specific cuts). A
local food van attending regional events such as agricultural shows is unlikely to have an even
demand of 2 beasts per month throughout the year (typically they are seasonal). Is there a
letter of intent from the food van owner that they will take 2 beasts a month throughout the
year?

A number of the financial and production assumptions are optimistic and in practice would be
different to those submitted e.g. straw usage of 17.5 tonnes would probably be higher
particularly feeding silage to the cattle.

If further clarity on any of the above is required please come back to me.

Thank you

Page 86



Chris

Chris Trotman
Business Gateway.
Ettrick Riverside,
Dunsdale Road,

Selkirk TD5 7EB

Tel: 01835 825602

Mob: 07920 823406

For more information on Business Gateway please take a look at www.bgateway.com

e T

FOLLOW US ON Ewitter

Page 87



REGULATORY , Scottish

ERVICES Borders
> COUNCIL
To: Development Management Service Date: 25 Mar 2016

FAO Craig Miller

From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: Paul Grigor Ext: 6663 Ref: 16/00114/FUL

Subject: Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff
facilities and erection of animal feed silo
Field No. 0328 Kirkburn, Cardrona, Scottish Borders

The previous application (15/00947/FUL) was lacking information relating to vehicle
movements that this proposal would generate.

The current application includes a business plan which details the operations of the
proposed business. Whilst the proposal is unlikely to generate significant increase, the
access to the site requires to be upgraded.

Should this application be supported, then | must insist that the access is upgraded as per
my comments below prior to work commencing on the development. A detailed plan
should be submitted for approval prior to works commencing on the development showing
the following upgrading works;

e The first 6m of the access to be at a gradient of no steeper than 1 in 15, with the
access track no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.

e The access road must be a minimum of 6m wide for a minimum 10m length, with
6m radii at the bellmouth.

¢ The first 6m of the access to be surfaced to my specification i.e. 40mm of 14mm
size close graded bituminous surface course to BS 4987 laid on 60mm of 20mm
size dense binder course (basecourse) to the same BS laid on 350mm of 100mm
broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-base, type 1.
Measures to be put in place to prevent the flow of water onto the public road.
Visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 120 metres in either direction onto the public road.
These splays must be retained in perpetuity thereafter.

It should be noted that access requirements were conditioned as part of a previous
application for holiday lodges, 12/00902/FUL, by the same applicant, which has yet to be
implemented. A detailed drawing of the junction upgrades was submitted to the Council
and subsequently approved. A separate planning application for the access upgrade was
also approved (15/01206/FUL). Should either of these applications be implemented and
the access is upgraded, then there would be no requirement for further upgrades required
as a result of this proposal.

AJS

Page 88



Agenda Item 5f

LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 16/00017/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 16/00114/FUL

Development Proposal: Erection of cattle court incorporating storage areas and staff
facilities and erection of animal feed silo

Location: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona

Applicant: Cleek Poultry Ltd

**New LDP 2016**

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the
efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and
resources such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable
construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide
emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this target met
through the use of low or zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling
and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and
the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at
an early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in
place for long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and
spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of
the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this
need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

Page 89



i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

[) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing
street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated
footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

g) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to
the site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those
used for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending
preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some
cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision
may be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the
amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or
replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:
This policy is relevant to most policies within the Plan.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Page 90




Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders
Green Space

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

Replacement Windows and Doors

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Greenspace

Housing

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)
Sustainable Urban Drainage

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Waste Management

Policy ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure in the Countryside

Business, Tourism and Leisure
Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be
approved and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:

a) the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural
character of the area; or

b) the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism
appropriate to a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance
with the Scottish Borders Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;

c) the development is to be used for other business or employment generating
uses, provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or
operational need for the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be
reasonably be accommodated within the Development Boundary of a
settlement.

In addition the following criteria will also be considered:

a) the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding
area,

b) the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses,
particularly housing,

c) where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide
evidence that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and
where conversion of an existing building of architectural merit is proposed,
evidence that the building is capable of conversion without substantial
demolition and rebuilding,

Page 91




d) the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area,

e) the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with
Policy PMD2, and

f) the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance
with Policy 1S4.

Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of
a tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be
submitted as part of the application process.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy ED3 Town Centres and Shopping Development may be relevant where an
ancillary retail use is involved.

Policy ED8 Caravan and Camping Sites

Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy 1S4 Transport Development and Infrastructure

Policy IS7 Parking Provision and Standards

Policy IS16 Advertisements

Many of the environmental policies will be relevant particularly those involving the
protection of landscape assets.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns
Green Space

Landscape and Development
Local Landscape Designations
Placemaking and Design

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns
Greenspace

Green Networks

Landscape and Development
Placemaking and Design

Page 92




Policy EP5: Special Landscape Areas

In assessing proposals for development that may affect Special Landscape Areas,
the Council will seek to safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard
to the landscape impact of the proposed development, including the visual impact.
Proposals that have a significant adverse impact will only be permitted where the
landscape impact is clearly outweighed by social or economic benefits of national
or local importance.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries
Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy ED12 Mineral and Coal Extraction

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP4 National Scenic Areas

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Policy EP8 Archaeology

Policy EP10 Gardens and Designed Landscape

Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

Policy EP14 Coastline

Policy 1S15 Radio Communications

Scottish Planning Policy
The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Green Space

Landscape and Development

Local Landscape Designations

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Greenspace

Green Networks

Landscape and Development

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Page 93




Policy EP8: Archaeology

(A) National Archaeological Sites

Development proposals which would destroy or adversely affect the appearance,
fabric or setting of Scheduled Monuments or other nationally important sites will not
be permitted unless:

a) the development offers substantial benefits, including those of a social or
economic nature, that clearly outweigh the national value of the site, and
b) there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the development need.

(B) Battlefields

The Council may support development proposals within a battlefield on the
Inventory of Historic Battlefields Register, or a regionally significant site, that seek to
protect, conserve, and/or enhance the landscape characteristics or important
features of the battlefield. Proposals will be assessed according to their sensitivity to
the battlefield.

(C) Regional or Local Archaeological Assets

Development proposals which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of
regional or local significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the
benefits of the proposal will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset.

In all of the above cases, where development proposals impact on a Scheduled
Monument, other nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical
asset, developers may be required to carry out detailed investigations.

Any proposal that will adversely affect a historic environment asset or its
appropriate setting must include a mitigation strategy acceptable to the Council.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy ED12 Mineral and Coal Extraction

Many other Environmental Promotion and Protection policies may also be relevant.

Scottish Planning Policy
Scottish Historic Environment Policy
Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Archaeology

Page 94




Others
Scottish Planning Policy
SPG Special Landscape Areas

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6a

Notice of Review

Scottish

Borders
=== COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name [Cleek Poultry Ltd ] Name | _

Address [The Tractor Shed. Kirkburn, Cardrona | Address |_ ]

Postcode [EH45 9HU Postcode | l
Contact Telephone 1 Contact Telephone 1

Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2

Fax No Fax No

E-mail* [ ] E-mail* [ |

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? D
Planning authority [Scottish Borders Council |
Planning authority's application reference number [18/00205/FUL |
Site address [Field No 0328, Kirkburn, Cardrona, Scottish Borders ]

Description of proposed |grection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant room and staff welfare
development provision

Date of application [2222016 _| Date of decision (if any) [20.4.2016 ]

Page 10of 4
Page 97



Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1. Application for planning permission (including householder application)

Application for planning permission in principle I:l

Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been I:l
imposed, renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning

condition) D

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions
Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of D
the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer D

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions
2. One or more hearing sessions

[]

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure D

3.  Site inspection

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? D
2 Isit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? I:I

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:|p, 4 of he site falls within a locked enclosure

Page 2 of 4
Page 98



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

Within the small holding at Kirkburn there is now detailed planning consent to build eight holiday lodges and a
hub-house along with six holiday sheds and an ancillary building to service these.

The holiday complex will promote 'eco-living' and autonomy and as such is to be as bio-diverse as possible. In
particular, heating will be by biomass, the source of which is readily available from the Forestry Commission and
comes from the neighbouring woodlands in the vicinity.

The Biomass Processing shed is needed to process the raw material ready for combustion in the individual holiday
buildings and will enable small-scale processing on-site to service the holiday accommeodation. Thus amplifying the
awareness of carbon footprinting at the complex.

The biomass processing will lead to one full-time member of staff being employed, and hence the HSE requirement
to provide welfare facilities for employees.

The higher parts of the structure have been clad in natural larch which will be sourced from within the Scottish
Borders. This material weathers naturally to blend with the landscape. The charcoal grey roof-coverings will, after a
number of years, support lichens and other natural grown. The roof has been designed to follow the slope of the hill
rather than compete against it.

The applicant would be happy to explain the thinking behind this bio-diversity given the opportunity to speak.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the T_ij

determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Page 3 of 4
Page 99




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

Drawings 196 38, 37 & 38 showing the design and general arrangement of the proposals.

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review.

Full completion of all parts of this form
Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on {e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earlier
consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority te review the

application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.
Date HZ é z;é

Signed

The Completed form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA.

Page 4 of 4
Page 100



[ - sl ,_|m_. RECEIVED 22 FERZ0S..
il LY VN Lk T
— = = = MINERAL FIERE
LARCH AP BOIRDING
LEFT NATLRAL
=
UPPER YARD LEVEL : Wﬂlﬂ : £ %Eﬁ’mﬂ% UPPER YARD LEVEL
2000
METOUM TANALISED UEETIG POST AT
I R - SOUTH ELEVATION e
LEFT RATURAL BASTAG
LOWER
| l i
1 0 2 4 I |
[EREEN] ! ! 1 ! ROLLER SHUTTER DOCR TO POLLTRY
¥ s Pt e FOR OF 167 ST DU T0 & LO0STRE % P g P S
@ FIFVATIONS AT 1-100 STEPPED £01 AND FTTED WP CoPt P NORTH ELEVATION I Remdi wuL misied n
E
5 ‘ >
g REFUSED }
90 APR 201 r
PRNT A3 105 i
AMENDUENTS i Planning & Economi |
) . =submissgn pipnting FLR 201626711 T
RODGE HEGHT NOT 10 EXCEED 6,08 ; _.__.__I
(VEASURED FROM UPPER YaR0) =
EAVES HOGHT 400U (WEASURED FROU
LPPER YARD)
SCALE 1:100 OR AS STATED ~ OCT 2015
= = drg 196 38 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
— PEVSON -A- ELEVATIONS
T ROLLER SKUTIER BOURS T0 BOWSS HEIGHT DFFERENCE ) BIOMASS PROCESSING SHED FOR PRODUCTION
UPPER- ma W0
B oo ws g OF WOOD CHIP AND SAW-DUST WITH
g E ASSOCIATED BIOMASS PLANT ROOM FOR TIMBER
% g b v o o | ORYING & STAFF WELFARE PROVISION
_ i KIRKBURN, CARDRONA, PEEBLES, EH45 9H
B oo MESTELEVATION . EAST.ELEVATION.___toum i mon s o[ | Clck. P

16/00205/ FUL

e



20T abed

COLD STORAGE AREA FOR
POULTRY
CRANTED M PREVIOUS CONSENT

PLANT ROOM FOR BIOMASS
BOILER UNIT

PUAT ROO DUG INTO Hi, BEHND
EXSTAG COLD STORE CURREMILY

UNOER CONSTRUCTION (CRANTED ¥
PREVIOUS. PLNNIG CONSENT)

GROUND FLOOR PLAN -
(wood processing plont)

16700205/ FUL

TIMBER PROCESSING,

1 WOODCHIP AND SAWDUST
I STORAGE & WELFARE
10,0M x 1400 FOOTPRT

WC/SH
1 «rohenerme
H  STAFF REST RoO! r

"~

BASEMENT PLAN
(cold store and plant room)

_,_/

PRNT A3 108

SCALE 1:100 OR AS STATED  OCT 2015

drg 196 37| GENERAL ARRANGEMENT FLOOR
FEVSON -A- PLANS

BIOMASS PROCESSING SHED FOR PRODUCTION
OF WOOD CHIP AND SAW-DUST WITH
ASSOCIATED BIOMASS PLANT ROOM FOR TIMBER
DRYING & STAFF WELFARE PROVISION

"Cleek‘ Poultry [ifssm ittt

KIRKBURN, CARDRONA, PEEBLES, EH45 9HU




16/00205/ FUL

T nﬁpd

€0

Drive Wood

8062 10 PEERLES (s

PROCESSE

7 XL

PROPOSED-SUETERRANEAN BIOYASS BOILER ROOM BULTBEHIND DXISTNG COLD-HTCR!

William
Memoria

('

SITE FOR PROPOSED HOLIGAY LODGES
CONSET 12/00202/70

(33
. PROPOSED SCOMISH POWER TRANSFORMER
Fﬁh O
~

PUANT BURLOVER-COLDD-STORE AND-H

/

ENCASED I RED LML

;’.

7 7 7 §
—7 / S S OMED BY A J CLECHO
s | ’ i {cusex poutey ()
7 AFUCKTION SITE ENCA
-~ / o
C‘%’ s o Vi 5 o
CROUND ALSD 1N ORNERSHP OF A J CLEGHORN HATCHED & BOUNDED ™ BLUE
APPLEATON STTE ENCASED I RED BROKEN LME
20 0 20 40 60 80 100
1 1 1 1 —d *
I_L.I_I.LP.LLI.PUJ.!_ T T T T 1 s
Metres w\

FRRT A3 195

SITE PLAN SCALE 1:1250

ree
Church 4

- B0:20M LEVEL AREA CUT BMTO SLOPE

Our Laody’'s Church
(remoins of)

Grave Yard
A

RECEIVED 27FmB N

5

oo b=

SCALE 1:1250 OR AS STATED  OCT 2015

drg 196 36

REVISON -

SITE PLAN/LOCATION PLAN

BIOMASS PROCESSING SHED FOR PRODUCTION
OF WOOD CHIP AND SAW-DUST WITH
ASSOCIATED BIOMASS PLANT ROOM FOR TIMBER
DRYING & STAFF WELFARE PROVISION
KIRKBURN, CARDRONA, PEEBLES, EH45 9HU

~Cleek™Poultry Ltd™— """ =~




Page 104



Agenda Item 6b

%g?-été?-}; Regulatory Services

COUNCI

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

|Appiication for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00205/FUL —I

| To: Cleek Poultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles

With reference to your application validated on 22nd February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant room and staff welfare
provision

at: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 20th April 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed e ———————
Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://feplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 105



gt Ry Srviom

" i | 11
COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00205/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 37 REV A Floor Plans Refused
196 36 Site Plan Refused
196 38 REV A Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape
and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated
landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consclidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission for it in this rural location and,
therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. It
has not been demonstrated that the design, layout and scale of the building are appropriate or
suited for the proposed use and the use is not supported by any Business Plan or practical details.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 106



Agenda Item 6¢

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00205/FUL
APPLICANT : Cleek Poultry Ltd
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant room
and staff welfare provision
LOCATION: Field No 0328 Kirkburn
Cardrona

Scottish Borders

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 37 REV A Floor Plans Refused
196 36 Site Plan Refused
196 38 REV A Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning:

The previous application for this proposal (16/00205/FUL) raised an objection from this department
due to lack of information on traffic movements that this proposal would generate.

The current submission highlights that this relatively small scale building is proposed for processing
biomass fuel for domestic and commercial heating. The applicant anticipates 1 lorry delivery per week
at peak times of production. It is then intended that the biomass fuel is distributed to the adjacent
holiday lodge development which has planning approval but yet to be constructed.

In theory, this proposal will potentially remove or limit the need for biomass fuel to be delivered to the
holiday lodge development, should it be forthcoming.

Access to the site is to be via the existing junction, which is to be upgraded as per a separate
application (15/01206/FUL). As such, | would be seeking for a condition, to be attached to any consent
for this current application, requiring the access to be upgraded as per the application 15/01206/FUL
prior to the timber processing unit becoming operational.

Environmental Health:

Amenity and Pollution

Page 107



Assessment of Application

Air quality
Noise
Nuisance

This is an Application to erection of timber processing building together with a biomass boiler, a biofuel
production facility and staff accommodation.

Biomass heating systems have the potential to cause nuisance and air quality problems.

In order to allow an air quality screening assessment to be carried out the applicant can carry one out
using the biomass unit conversion and screening tool at http://iagm.co.uk/guidance/

Alternatively if the following information is provided the screening calculation will be carried out for
them:

1. Flue diameter

Flue height above ground level

Make and model of the boiler

Size of boiler (maximum output in kW)

Thermal efficiency of the boiler

Type of fuel to be used (pellets chips etc.)

The height and width of the building in which the boiler will be housed

: The height and width of any building within a distance of 5 times the stack height, including
fuel hoppers.

9. The boiler Emission Factor for PM10 particulates at full boiler power

10. The boiler Emission Factor for NOx at full boiler power

NGO RA LN

Where manufacturer's Emission Factors are unavailable, a notional value derived from Guidance will
be used.

Wood processing machinery can cause noise annoyance.

The Applicant should submit a Noise Assessment for the proposed machinery, giving predicted noise
levels within the nearest noise sensitive premises.

Noise levels should incorporate any tonal penalties and be reference against the Noise Rating Curves.

Recommendation
Delete as appropriate -Further Information Required Before Application is Determined

Landscape Architect:

Description of the Site

The site is a part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SPA) and the designation
recognises the special character of the valley landscape.

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the
north.

Nature of the Proposal

The proposal is for the erection of a biomass processing shed over the consented cold storage block
and next to an agricultural shed. The ridge height of the proposal development is almost 9 metres
above existing lower yard level

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

| am concerned that the shed will be highly visible to receptors using the B7062 travelling eastwards
from Peebles. The existing trees along the north boundary and on the other side of the road will not
provide adequate screening to the shed when seen from this direction or from the east and views from
sensitive locations on the other side of the valley may not be screened by the intervening trees along
the B7062.

Page 108



Conclusion
| have a concern that the proposal will have a negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley.

On grounds of Landscape and visual impact, | cannot support this application.
Archaeology Officer:

There are no known archaeological implications for this proposal. While there is some archaeological
sensitivity in the surrounding area, the site itself is within an area that has been heavily disturbed by
recent development. A watching brief was conducted on the adjacent site in 2005 and failed to identify
significant archaeology.

Economic Development: Response awaited.

Peebles and District Community Council: Response awaited.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy BE2 Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments

Policy EP2 Areas of Great Landscape Value

Policy D1 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

"Special Landscape Area 2 - Tweed Valley" - Supplementary Planning Policies

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 19th April 2016

A previous application for a biomass production building and plant at this site was refused and the
assessment from the Handling Report should be repeated here as it remains relevant to issues of landscape
impact and justification:

"There was a previous application which included, as part of the proposals, a large two storey building built
partly over the proposed cold storage area to provide further cold storage and vehicle storage. The building
that is now proposed for timber processing and biomass chip creation is in exactly the same position and is
identical in scale, appearance and design. The assessment of the history, landscape impacts and need for
the proposals are contained within that previous report and the report on the timber processing building
previously proposed for the western end of the existing steading building. Those reports stated the following:

"The application for the storage building and animal flotation tank building cause the same issues of
landscape impact. Whilst it is accepted that at least they would have the appearance of being more visually
related to the existing buildings in terms of location to the rear of existing buildings, the level of projection
above the ridge of the existing buildings would still be excessive, ranging from 3.7m for the flotation tank
building to 5.6m for the storage shed building. It is acknowledged that the line of tree cover north of the
public road is a little higher at this end of the land holding and the existing buildings are screened by those
trees - but only just. It is considered that there is not a further 3.7-5.6m vertical height screening above the
tree tops to enable such large buildings set at higher level to be effectively screened, either from the A72 or
from the public road adjoining the site. Whilst there may be a second topographical survey plan which could
have covered this end of the site, this has not been submitted with the application and it would be highly
unlikely, in any case, that there would be any demonstration of adequate existing screening given the height
differentials between the existing building ridges and those proposed - especially the storage building ridge.
It certainly appears that the existing contours would be similar to those being proposed for the
rabbit/mushroom sheds. without the cutting into ground levels as proposed for those buildings. Excavation in
this location would also cause difficulties with the upper yard, access and impacts on the rear of the existing
buildings. It is concluded that the impacts on the landscape would be significant with this proposal, affecting

Page 109



the character and quality of the designated landscape and particularly noticeable from the A72. This is the
conclusion of the Landscape Officer."

Repeating the application in terms of the same height, position and scale of building has not addressed the
aforementioned concerns in any way, the building remaining prominent to the A72 and to the B road. The
Landscape Architect continues to object for these reasons. For the same reasons that led to the rejection of
15/00563/FUL, the current application is contrary to Policies G1, D1, EP2 and the SPG due to the
detrimental impacts on designated landscape quality.

In terms of the intended use of the building, the proposed use is for production of biomass
woodchip/sawdust with other rooms for timber drying and staff provision. A previous application at the
western end of the steading (15/00600/FUL) rehearsed the issue of timber processing in relation to Policy
D1 as follows:

"Policy D1 looks for uses which are related to the ground on which they are located, for purposes which are
generated by the land and any particular activity carried out on the land. It is known that the landholding is
only 8 acres, of which 3 have been earmarked for the consented chalet development and some of the
remainder are occupied already by buildings and the yard area. The stated purpose of the building raises
issues over need and justification, as with the other proposals and in the absence of a co-ordinated
Business Plan. There is no woodland on the land holding despite the application form stating that timber
from adjoining woodland will be coppiced and processed. Policy D1 only supports business proposals in the
countryside (other than agriculture/forestry) that can demonstrate a clear economic and operational need to
be located in that location. As there is no Business Plan nor any clear indication of where the timber is to be
sourced from, it cannot be accepted that the proposal complies with the basic requirements of Policy D1.
There would also be concern in terms of visual screening if the very woodland being used as a reason to
accept some development at the eastern end of the site is intended to be felled to be processed on site.

There has similarly been no explanation as to why the building must be 7.3m high with a roller shutter door
4m high nor any explanation or recognition that either existing buildings could be used for such a use or that
an alternative lower building could be used.

It is concluded that the application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated
Local Plan 2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for
the proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission in this rural location and therefore the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed building
and use are not of a scale or purpose that appear related to the nature or size of the holding on which the
building would be situated, which further undermines the case for justification in this location."

As there has not been any Business Plan or justification submitted to address the previous reason for
refusal in relation to lack of compliance with Policy D1 or respond to the aforementioned concermns, | would
have to consider that the current application still fails to comply with Policy D1. There has been no
demonstration of how the current farmholding justifies a building for processing and creating woodchip and
sawdust. Despite the applicant stating there is agreement to bring in wood from elsewhere, this information
has not been submitted, the intended operation is not for agricultural purposes nor has it been demonstrated
that it relates to forestry by-product procedures sourced from wood within the farmholding. | would have to
conclude that this new application proposes similar timber processing uses as previously proposed and
refused at the farmholding. Without a Business Plan justifying the proposed use, the new application has still
not addressed the business justification reasons for refusal. Had it been purely a building with plant for the
burning of biomass and creation of energy for agricultural purposes on the farmholding - and this was
demonstrated in a Business Plan - then compliance with Policy D1 may have been achieved.”

What has changed in relation to this submission ? Firstly, the building is the same floor area placed atop the
cold storage building, albeit without mezzanine. It was previously 6m to eaves with a dual pitched roof rising
to 7.5m to ridge. The new design is monopitched, 4m to eaves and rising to 6m to ridge. The ultimate height
reduction is 1.5m which is not considered to be the "substantial" reduction suggested by the applicant in his
supporting letter. All issues of landscape prominence remain from both the B road and from the A72 across
the valley and above the intervening trees. The Landscape Architect continues to object for these reasons

and the detrimental impacts on the Tweed Valley SLA, stressing that the ridge would be 9m above existing

Page 110



lower yard level. Most of the six metre height will be visible above the trees, serving to demonstrate on a
repeated basis, that the site is not suitable for additions in height above the existing buildings.

The other change relates to the purpose of the biomass building which is stated as being for the production
of biomass fuel from raw material brought from Forestry Commission stock at Glentress and Cardrona,
processed into fuel and then used both for the holiday lodges/sheds approved on the site but also to fuel the
drying process within the Plant Room under the proposed building. Whilst the letter at least provides more
information on the connection between the purpose of the building and approved uses at the site (and
makes no claim to use timber from the site or immediately adjoining the site), it remains unsupported by
anything other than a brief letter. There remains no Business Plan to demonstrate how the proposed use
and building would be justified and, especially, why a building of the design, scale and height is proposed.
There is also no practical information to explain why the building must be six metres high and why it must,
yet again, feature a rest room, kitchenette and toilet. Until a practical and justifiable connection can be
demonstrated between the building, the proposed use and the uses on site, then it is considered that Policy
D1 continues to be breached by this proposal.

Although previously a reason for refusal, the road safety impacts of this proposal have now been accepted
by Roads Planning given what is said by the applicant about raw material delivery and the use of the
produce within the site for the holiday development - thus limiting the external vehicular movements. The
road safety impacts of the proposal, following clarification by the applicant, are no longer a reason for refusal
of the application in this respect.

The environmental health concerns can be addressed by conditions on any approval, albeit any approval
must be preceded by an Air Quality Assessment. There are no archaeological implications.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley in that the
proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape and will have a
significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the proposed
building that would justify an exceptional permission for it in this rural location and, therefore, the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. It has not been
demonstrated that the design, layout and scale of the building are appropriate or suited for the proposed use
and the use is not supported by any Business Plan or practical details.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape
and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated
landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission for it in this rural location and,
therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. It
has not been demonstrated that the design, layout and scale of the building are appropriate or
suited for the proposed use and the use is not supported by any Business Plan or practical details.

Page 111



“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 112



Agenda Item 6d

Scottish
Borders

= COUNCII Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations
2013

| Application for Planning Permission Reference: 15/01206/FUL |

[ To: Cleek Poultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles EH45 9HU |

With reference to your application validated on 12th October 2015 for planning permission under
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal: Upgrade of existing access

at: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the
approved plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, subject to the following direction:

e That the development to which this permission relates must be commenced within three
years of the date of this permission.

And subject to the conditions on the attached schedule imposed by the Council for the reasons
stated

Dated 9th December 2015
Planning and Regulatory Services
Environment and Infrastructure
Council Headquarters

Newtown St Boswells

MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Chief Planning Officer

Page 113



Scottish
Borders

COUNCII Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE: 15/01206/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 30 Location Plan Approved
196 31 Elevations Approved

REASON FOR DECISION

The application, with conditions, complies with Development Plan Policies on amendments to
access for development within the countryside in that the proposed amendments will improve the
access for existing use and for consented holiday development at the site.

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1 The retaining walls shown on the approved plan to be faced with natural stone cladding
within one month of their formation, a sample of which should be submitted to, and
approved by, the Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the area.

2 Notwithstanding what is shown on the plans, planning permission is only granted for the
access upgrading and not for the entrance folly.
Reason: The entrance folly is not considered to be of an appropriate scale to be
satisfactorily accommodated within the site without impacts of dominance and incongruity
from the public road.

3 No development to be commenced until details of the gully outfall routes are submitted to,
and approved by, the Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of road safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

It should be noted that:

1 In relation to Condition 2, any revised design of entrance folly should be submitted as a
new planning application and should address the issues of scale and dominance through
considerable reductions in width and height and a design more successfully related to the
proposed entrance walls and ground levels. There should also be more information
provided on the design detailing. It is suggested by the Landscape Architect that you may
wish to consider entrance pillars as a possible alternative in any resubmission.

N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the

proposed development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the
development should not be commenced until all consents are obtained.

Page 114



Scottish
Borders

COUNCII Regulatory Services
Notice of Initiation of Development

Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act (as amended) requires that any
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable. A form is
enclosed with this decision notice for this purpose.

Notice of Completion of Development

Section 27B requires that any person who completes a development for which planning
permission (including planning permission in principle) has been given must, as soon as
practicable after doing so, give notice of completion to the planning authority.

When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the
permission is to be granted subject to a condition that as soon as practicable after each phase,
other than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that
completion to the planning authority.

In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake. Contacts include:

Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD

Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA

Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU

British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke
on Trent, ST1 5ND

Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose,
TD6 0SA

Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL

BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo'ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH

THUS, Susiephone Department, 4™ Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD

Susiephone System — 0800 800 333

If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at
the following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield,
Nottinghamshire NG18 4RG.

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within
three months from the date of this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate
Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 115



Page 116



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 15/01206/FUL

APPLICANT : Cleek Poultry Ltd

AGENT :

DEVELOPMENT : Upgrade of existing access

LOCATION: Field No 0328 Kirkburn
Cardrona

Scottish Borders

TYPE: FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 30 Location Plan Approved
196 31 Elevations Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning:

No objections but seeks further information on where the gullies discharge to and expresses concerns
over potential impacts of folly on ground levels and whether a use generating traffic is proposed.

Landscape Architect:

Opposes the current design of folly and suggests a much reduced version or, preferably, gate post
features to match with the local vernacular. Also recommends the access retaining walls be faced with
natural stone.

Peebles and Distrct Community Council: Response awaited.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy D1 Business Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 7th December 2015

Page 117



This application is for the alteration of an existing access at Kirkburn, Cardrona, and for the erection of a
castellated folly on the western curve of the amended access. The access works involve widening of the
access to 6m, creating a tarmac area with kerbs and 6m radii, drainage provisions and a one metre high
concrete block retaining wall either side. The gradient would meet 1 in 15 for the first six metres then no
steeper than 1 in 8. Sightlines of 2.4 by 120m would be formed.

The entrance folly would be constructed in local reclaimed stone with ashlar dressings and resemble a
castellated turret, 4.5m in diameter and 6.3m to the top of the castellations. Two raised string courses are
shown and a series of slot-like indentations or voids. There is no further infomation on whether the folly
would have any use, entrance or, indeed, roof.

The access improvements are similar to those proposed for the holiday chalet development consented
under 12/00902/FUL but which have yet to implemented. It is understood that the applicant envisages that
the current standard of unimproved access is resulting in objections from Roads Planning towards other
proposals at the site using the access. However, such improvements could have been imposed as
conditions on any future planning permissions, the main reasons for Roads Planning objections relating to
traffic generating proposals being submitted without supporting Transport Statements. In any case, similar
road junction improvements were sought by condition on the original holiday chalet approval and were
clearly acceptable by the Council for that development - so there should be no reason why a stand-alone
proposal to improve the access should not also be supported. This does not mean, however, that any further
proposals that could potentially give rise to greater traffic generation or a different nature of traffic should not
still be supported by the previously requested Transport Statement. A junction improvement, in itself, may
not be sufficient to allay Roads Planning concerns.

The junction improvements go further than those previously consented on the holiday chalet development,
mainly involving an increased width of road further up into the site, at the point where the access to the
holiday chalets splits from the farm access. The main benefits, apart from the increased width, are a tarmac
surface at the bellmouth, improved interception of surface water, retaining of any increased excavation and
shallower gradients. Roads Planning have now confirmed their acceptance of the proposals, albeit wanting
more information on the route of the gullies. The Landscape Architect had previously suggested stone-faced
walling to soften the impacts of the access and this is again recommended by her rather than the stark
appearance of concrete block retaining walls as proposed at present. This requirement can be imposed by
condition.

The erection of the folly on the western side of the enhanced site entrance must be judged against Policy G1
of the Consolidated Local Plan, relating to quality of design standards. The folly has no intended use and is
seen as an ornate entrance feature, therefore, it cannot be judged against Policy D1 as other proposals at
Kirkburn have been. There should be no reason why a suitably designed and scaled entrance feature,
perhaps relating to the curved retaining walling, could be considered to comply with the criteria listed in
Policy G1. However, what is proposed at present is not considered to be in compliance. Given the lack of
sufficient flat land at the entrance area and despite the drawing suggesting the folly on a flat site, there are
no finished floor levels or contours shown to demonstrate at what elevation above road level the folly will be
positioned. Similarly, the height of 6.3m and width of 4.5m could be considered to be out of scale with the
context of the landscape and minor road surrounding the site, the height either being accentuated by a
raised floor level or fit within the site incongruous due to significant excavation and retaining.

The criteria within Policy G1 require "scale, massing and height" appropriate to surroundings, the
development to be "satisfactorily accommodated within the site", to be "compatible with...the surrounding
area, neighbouring uses and neighbouring built form" and to be "designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders
architectural styles". Whilst a major reduction in height and width could successfully some of the concerns
over scale, dominance and landscape fit, further details of the structure would also be required of how it is
set into the site, how it relates to the entrance walling and whether it has a roof, wall or door openings. There
is clearly some context in this part of the Tweed Valley for an entrance structure with historical appearance,
given the proximity of Kailzie, the Wm Cree Memorial Church and the former Scheduled Monument of Our
Lady's Church. However, the structure should be of a scale and design which is able to be accommodated
without over-dominance or impression of being totally out of context. The Landscape Architect makes
reference to incorporating such a structure with the junction walling as an entrance feature, preferably in the
form of gatepost features.

Page 118



The current design cannot be supported for the aforementioned reasons and the consent will only be issued
for the access improvements. A Condition and Informative will be imposed to clarify that the current design
of folly is not approved and that a new application would be required for a revised design which may be
considered more favourably if significantly reduced in height and width and related better to the ground
levels and entrance walling.

REASON FOR DECISION :
The application, with conditions, complies with Development Plan Policies on amendments to access for

development within the countryside in that the proposed amendments will improve the access for existing
use and for consented holiday development at the site.

Recommendation: Approved - conditions & informatives

1 The retaining walls shown on the approved plan to be faced with natural stone cladding within one
month of their formation, a sample of which should be submitted to, and approved by, the Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the area.

2 Notwithstanding what is shown on the plans, planning permission is only granted for the access
upgrading and not for the entrance folly.
Reason: The entrance folly is not considered to be of an appropriate scale to be satisfactorily
accommodated within the site without impacts of dominance and incongruity from the public road.

3 No development to be commenced until details of the gully outfall routes are submitted to, and
approved by, the Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of road safety.

Informatives

It should be noted that:

1 In relation to Condition 2, any revised design of entrance folly should be submitted as a new
planning application and should address the issues of scale and dominance through considerable
reductions in width and height and a design more successfully related to the proposed entrance
walls and ground levels. There should also be more information provided on the design detailing. It
is suggested by the Landscape Architect that you may wish to consider entrance pillars as a
possible alternative in any resubmission.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 119



Page 120



%g?_‘cl’te'ig Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Iﬂ)plication for Planning Permission Reference : 15/00600/FUL

l To: Cleek Poultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles

With reference to your application validated on 29th May 2015 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Erection of timber processing building incorporating roof mounted photo voltaic panel
array

at: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 3rd August 2015
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed s i e e ¥ A A SRS A O RS
Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 121



%‘é?_gté?_ l; Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 15/00600/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 06 Elevations Approved
SUNMODULE Specifications Approved

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape,
will be poorly visually related to the existing buildings adjoining and will have a significant
detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location and,
therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The
proposed building and use are not of a scale or purpose that appear related to the nature or size of
the holding on which the building would be situated, which further undermines the case for
justification in this location.

3 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

if the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 122



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Ill REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 15/00600/FUL
APPLICANT : Cleek Poultry Ltd
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Erection of timber processing building incorporating roof mounted photo
voltaic panel array
LOCATION: Field No 0328 Kirkburn
Cardrona

Scottish Borders

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Pian Ref Plan Type Plan Status
196 06 Elevations Approved
SUNMODULE Specifications Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning:

The principle of agricultural activity at this site has already been established through various
applications. However it is disappointing to note that previously conditioned work has never been
completed, with the bell mouth still requiring to be surfaced and visibility from the access onto the
public road remains substandard. This proposal, if approved, is obviously going to increase the
amount of vehicles using the access and, as such, enforcement action should be raised to enforce the
compliance of the existing conditions.

There is a lack of information in terms of the number of vehicle movements this proposal will bring. As
such, | will require a Transport Statement to be submitted which details the type, number and size of
vehicle trips which will be generated by this proposal along with the frequency of trips. The statement
must also include anticipated traffic movements for all other proposed development served by this
access.

Should this application be supported, then | must insist that the access is upgraded as per my
comments below prior to work commencing on the development. A detailed plan should be submitted
for approval showing the following upgrading works:

. The first 6m of the access to be at a gradient of no steeper than 1 in 15, with the access track
no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.
. The access road must be a minimum of 6m wide for a minimum 10m length, with 6m radii at

the bellmouth.

Page 123



. The first 6m of the access to be surfaced to my specification i.e. 40mm of 14mm size close
graded bituminous surface course to BS 4987 laid on 60mm of 20mm size dense binder course
(basecourse) to the same BS laid on 350mm of 100mm broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-
base, type 1.

. Measures to be put in place to prevent the flow of water onto the public road.

. Visibility splays of 2.4 by 120 metres in either direction onto the public road. These splays
must be retained in perpetuity thereafter.

It should be noted that access requirements were conditioned as part of a previous application for
holiday lodges by the same applicant, 12/00902/FUL, which is yet to be implemented. A detailed
drawing of the junction upgrades was submitted to the Council and subsequently approved.

Until I receive this additional information | must withhold my support for this proposal.
Archaeology Officer:

Thank you for requesting an archaeology consultation. The application area was partly covered by a
previous archaeological watching brief that failed to identify significant archaeology. Given this, and
groundworks that have commenced in the immediate vicinity since the watching brief in 2005, | do not
believe there are any further mitigation measures required.

Landscape Officer:

Description of the Site

The site is a part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SPA) and the designation
recognises the special character of the valley landscape in the Designation statement as follows:

‘The broad Tweed Valley is typical of the Borders, and is the most familiar of the Borders valleys.
Accordingly it has a strong sense of place, with certain views being instantly recognisable. The varied
mix of landscape elements is highly representative, with forestry, woodland, open hillsides and
pastoral farmland all juxtaposed. Added to this mix is a range of settlement types, with the valley
providing the setting to several settlements. The landscape unfolds as the viewer follows the river
through the valley, presenting new vistas alternately dominated by forestry, as around

Walkerburn, or by the steep rocky slopes above Innerleithen. The contrast between the well settled
valley and the bare heather and grass moors and landmark hills is striking. Well-designed

forestry actively contributes to this visual experience in places.’

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the
north.

Nature of the Proposal
The proposal is for the erection of a timber processing building onto the end of an existing shed.

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

I am concerned that the shed will be highly visible to receptors using the B7062 travelling eastwards
from Peebles and the west elevation is higher than the existing shed and will be overly dominant in this
small scale setting. 1 suggest that the existing trees along the north boundary will not provide
adequate screening to the shed when seen from this direction and from the east there will be a
confused and awkward elevation and association with the existing shed.

The roof height will be 3m above the roof height of the existing shed and as such has potential to be
visible above the existing tree belt from sensitive locations across the valley e.g. from the A72.

Conclusion

The submitted information was limited and | have a concern that the proposal will have a negative
visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley.

I would want to see a realistic photomontage presentation submitted as part of a LVIA to satisfy me
that there will not be a significant visual impact for receptors using the adjacent road or from the other
side of the valley and whether there are mitigation measures that could reduce any negative visual
impacts.

Without this information | cannot support this application.

Page 124



Economic Development: Requires clarification of purpose of all competing proposals and suggests
Business Gateway be involved to provide advice and assist.

Peebles and District Community Council: Response awaited.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy BE2 Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments
Policy EP2 Areas of Great Landscape Value

Policy D1 Businesss, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

"Special Landscape Area 2 - Tweed Valley" - Supplementary Planning Policies

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 30th July 2015

The site forms part of an 8 acre smallholding at Kirkburn, Cardrona, on the back road to Peebles. This
planning application is one of six which have been submitted for various buildings and structures on the land
to the south and west of the holiday chalets site. Together with a seventh proposal in the form of an AGN,
four of the applications all relate to the same site and are com peting proposals, only one of which could
actually be implemented. This application is for a new building erected at lower yard level adjoining and to
the west of the existing buildings. The purpose of the building is described as "timber processing” and the
application form suggests it will be coppicing adjacent woodlands. No further Business Plan or justification is
provided to explain where such woodland lies, whether it is within the applicant's control, the purpose of the
timber produced etc.

The building will measure 10m by 7m to the front and 12m to the rear, 6m to the eaves and 7.3m to the ridge
both as measured from the ground level. It will be clad in larchlap boarding with a charcoal grey fibre roof,
possessing one large roller shutter door and a pedestrian door adjoining. The roof will be pitched and
asymmetrical, reflecting the shorter frontage and longer rear of the building which fits into the available flat
space.

The site also lies within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area No. 2 - a recent local landscape
designation which requires extra care and attention to be paid to development that could adversely impact
on the character of the landscape. Management recommendations were set out in the Supplementary
Planning Guidance accompanying the designation, the most pertinent being "..to better integrate existing
development into the landscape". This was arising out of pressure for development on hills and hillsides
across the designated area.

Such considerations were uppermost when the adjoining holiday chalets application was considered at
Committee. As a result of concerns over visual impacts on rising land, revisions to the scheme were
required to reduce impacts on the recently designated landscape. This involved removal of upper chalets
and the loop road as well as a series of cross sections to demonstrate that the development would not be
seen from the A72 on the Horsbrugh Straight above the existing tree canopy line.

The full background to the landscape impacts envisaged by the mushroom sheds, poultry unit, cattle court,
hay stores, silo and solar panels have been described elsewhere in the relevant applications. Adjoining this
proposal, the application for the storage building and animal flotation tank building caused the same issues
of landscape impact. Whilst it was accepted that at least they would have the appearance of being more
visually related to the existing buildings in terms of location to the rear of existing buildings, the level of
projection above the ridge of the existing buildings would still be excessive, ranging from 3.7m for the
flotation tank building to 5.6m for the storage shed building. It was acknowledged that the line of tree cover
north of the public road is a little higher at this end of the land holding and the existing buildings are
screened by those trees - but only just. It was considered that there was not a further 3.7-5.6m vertical
height screening above the tree tops to enable such large buildings set at higher level to be effectively

Page 125



screened, either from the A72 or from the public road adjoining the site. Whilst there may be a second
topographical survey plan which could have covered this end of the site, this had not been submitted with
the application and it would be highly unlikely, in any case, that there would be any demonstration of
adequate existing screening given the height differentials between the existing building ridges and those
proposed - especially the storage building ridge. It certainly appears that the existing contours would be
similar to those being proposed for the rabbit/mushroom sheds. without the cutting into ground levels as
proposed for those buildings. Excavation in this location would also cause difficulties with the upper yard,
access and impacts on the rear of the existing buildings. It is concluded that the impacts on the landscape
would be significant with this proposal, affecting the character and quality of the designated landscape and
particularly noticeable from the A72. This is the conclusion of the Landscape Officer.

The timber processing building exhibits the same issues of height, albeit being one metre lower than the
Flotation Tank building. It nevertheless has a ridge line 2.75m above the current building ridge lines. Given
the fact that the existing buildings are close to the top line of the trees when viewed from across the river, a
further 2.75m height extension will cause the same problems of prominence and landscape impact as the
other proposals which have been rejected, albeit of slightly lesser degree.

Of particular impact will be the building when viewed from the B-road, especially on the approach from the
west. An application was refused in 2011 for a building of similar scale and dimensions in the same location.
At that time, the building was described for hay storage purposes and it was the same floor area and eaves
height of 6m but with a flat roof. That application was refused for the following reason:

"....the proposals are of inappropiate form, scale and materials and are unsympathetic to both the existing
building and the amenity of the surrounding rural area".

In the report on that application, it was stated :

"The proposals fail to comply with these requirements in that none of these elements are in sympathy with
the existing building. The abrupt change from pitched to flat roof form is exacerbated by the 1.5m height
increase and the lack of any fenestration, together with the high steel doors which are higher than the eaves
of the existing building. As the extension will also be flush with the front and back of the existing building, the
lack of any step back also increases the unsympathetic relationship with the existing building.

These concerns have been raised with the agent who has offered to alter the proposal to clad it in metal
sheeting rather than the proposed blockwork. The shape, form and bulk of the extension would only be
slightly reduced in impact by the use of matching material and it is concluded that the design would still be
inappropriate as an extension to the existing building especially within the attractive and historic rural
environment that it is located. The building will be visible from the public roads to the front and rear of the
site and a better design of extension is warranted in the location proposed.”

The new application still exhibits many of the incongruous elements of the previous design, albeit dropping
the flat roof in favour of a pitch. This, however, increases the height by a further 1.3m, causing a visual jump
up in ridge lines and the eaves line being dramatically different. Again, the roller shutter door will be above
the eaves of the existing buildings and the impact from the western direction on the public road will be
dominant, faced with a 7.3m high blank gable on already elevated land.

| have no issues with the solar panels on the rear facing roof slope.

It is concluded that the impacts from the A72, compounded by those from the B-road in relation to the
dominance of the building and its incongruous relationship with the existing buildings, determine that the
proposal would have a significant visual impact on the designated landscape.

Policy D1 looks for uses which are related to the ground on which they are located, for purposes which are
generated by the land and any particular activity carried out on the land. It is known that the landholding is
only 8 acres, of which 3 have been earmarked for the consented chalet development and some of the
remainder are occupied already by buildings and the yard area. The stated purpose of the building raises
issues over need and justification, as with the other proposals and in the absence of a co-ordinated
Business Plan. There is no woodland on the land holding despite the application form stating that timber
from adjoining woodland will be coppiced and processed. Policy D1 only supports business proposals in the
countryside (other than agriculture/forestry) that can demonstrate a clear economic and operational need to

Page 126



be located in that location. As there is no Business Plan nor any clear indication of where the timber is to be
sourced from, it cannot be accepted that the proposal complies with the basic requirements of Policy D1.
There would also be concern in terms of visual screening if the very woodland being used as a reason to
accept some development at the eastern end of the site is intended to be felled to be processed on site.

There has similarly been no explanation as to why the building must be 7.3m high with a roller shutter door
4m high nor any explanation or recognition that either existing buildings could be used for such a use or that
an alternative lower building could be used.

It is concluded that the application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated
Local Plan 2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for
the proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission in this rural location and therefore the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed building
and use are not of a scale or purpose that appear related to the nature or size of the holding on which the
building would be situated, which further undermines the case for justification in this location.

Roads Planning have concerns over this proposal together with others submitted on the same and adjoining
sites. They point out that conditioned work has never been completed, with the bell mouth still requiring to
be surfaced and visibility from the access onto the public road remaining substandard. This proposal, if
approved, would increase the amount of vehicles using the access and should it be approved, upgrading
works should be conditioned following the submission of details. Roads Planning also consider there to be a
lack of information in terms of the number of vehicle movements this proposal (and the others) will bring.
They have requested a Transport Statement to be submitted which details the type, number and size of
vehicle trips which will be generated by this proposal along with the frequency of trips. The statement must
also include anticipated traffic movements for all other proposed development served by this access.

Given the uncertainty over the scale of the building and the nature of the use intended, it is understandable
that there are Roads concerns over the ability of the access to accommodate the development without
further information being submitted. In the absence of such information, it has not been adequately
demonstrated that the access is capable of safely accommodating the traffic generated by the proposed
development. This would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Consolidated Local Plan.

The Archaeology Officer is not concerned at these proposals, given the previous development of the
steading buildings and the lack of any significant findings.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley in that the
proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape, will be poorly
visually related to the existing buildings adjoining and will have a significant detrimental impact on the
character and quality of the designated landscape.

The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the proposed
building that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location and, therefore, the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed building
and use are not of a scale or purpose that appear related to the nature or size of the holding on which the
building would be situated, which further undermines the case for justification in this location.

The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that it has

not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the site without
detriment to road safety.

Recommendation: Refused

Page 127



1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed building will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape,
will be poorly visually related to the existing buildings adjoining and will have a significant
detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed building that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location and,
therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The
proposed building and use are not of a scale or purpose that appear related to the nature or size of
the holding on which the building would be situated, which further undermines the case for
justification in this location.

3 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 128



Ef;?»étéig Regulatory Services

COUNCII

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Ii\pplication for Planning Permission Reference: 15/00563/FUL —|

[_To: Cleek Poultry Ltd The Tractor Shed Kirkburn Cardrona Peebles I

With reference to your application validated on 28th May 2015 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal: Extension to form additional cold storage with agricultural storage shed above, erection of
animal flotation unit and installation of roof mounted photovoltaic panel array

At: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 3rd August 2015
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed

Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 129



%g?'lc:jtg’g Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE: 15/00563/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
SUNMODULE Specifications Refused
196 04 REV A Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed buildings will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed buildings and that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location
and, therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open
countryside. The proposed buildings are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the
proposed use for which they are intended or the size of the holding on which they would be situated,
which further undermines the case for justification in this location.

3 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit hitp://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 130



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 15/00563/FUL

APPLICANT : Cleek Poultry Ltd

AGENT :

DEVELOPMENT : Extension to form additional cold storage with agricultural storage shed

above, erection of animal flotation unit and installation of roof mounted photovoltaic panel array

LOCATION: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona
Scottish Borders

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
SUNMODULE Specifications Refused
196 04 REV A Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning:

The principle of agricultural activity at this site has already been established through various
applications. However it is disappointing to note that previously conditioned work has never been
completed, with the bell mouth still requiring to be surfaced and visibility from the access onto the
public road remains substandard. This proposal, if approved, is obviously going to increase the
amount of vehicles using the access and, as such, enforcement action should be raised to enforce the
compliance of the existing conditions.

There is a lack of information in terms of the number of vehicle movements this proposal will bring. As
such, | will require a Transport Statement to be submitted which details the type, number and size of
vehicle trips which will be generated by this proposal along with the frequency of trips. The statement
must also include anticipated traffic movements for all other proposed development served by this
access.

Should this application be supported, then | must insist that the access is upgraded as per my
comments below prior to work commencing on the development. A detailed plan should be submitted
for approval showing the following upgrading works;

. The first 6m of the access to be at a gradient of no steeper than 1 in 15, with the access track
no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.
. The access road must be a minimum of 6m wide for a minimum 10m length, with 6m radii at

the bellmouth.

Page 131



. The first 6m of the access to be surfaced to my specification i.e. 40mm of 14mm size close
graded bituminous surface course to BS 4987 laid on 60mm of 20mm size dense binder course
(basecourse) to the same BS laid on 350mm of 100mm broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-

base, type 1.
. Measures to be put in place to prevent the flow of water onto the public road.
. Visibility splays of 2.4 by 120 metres in either direction onto the public road. These splays

must be retained in perpetuity thereafter.

It should be noted that access requirements were conditioned as part of a previous application for
holiday lodges by the same applicant, 12/00902/FUL, which is yet to be implemented. A detailed
drawing of the junction upgrades was submitted to the Council and subsequently approved.

Until | receive this additional information | must withhold my support for this proposal.
Landscape Officer:

Description of the Site

The site is located in the western part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed
valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SLA) and the designation
recognises the special character of the valley landscape in the Designation statement as follows:

‘The broad Tweed Valley is typical of the Borders, and is the most familiar of the Borders valleys.
Accordingly it has a strong sense of place, with certain views being instantly recognisable. The varied
mix of landscape elements is highly representative, with forestry, woodland, open hillsides and
pastoral farmland all juxtaposed. Added to this mix is a range of settlement types, with the valley
providing the setting to several settlements. The landscape unfolds as the viewer follows the river
through the valley, presenting new vistas alternately dominated by forestry, as around

Walkerburn, or by the steep rocky slopes above Innerleithen. The contrast between the well settled
valley and the bare heather and grass moors and landmark hills is striking. Well-designed

forestry actively contributes to this visual experience in places.’

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the
north.

Nature of the Proposal

The proposal is for the erection of a 10m x 14m store with staff facilities and roof mounted solar
panels, a 25 x 6m building to house an animal therapy flotation tank also with roof mounted solar
panels.

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

The submission provides nothing in the way of topographical information and given that there are no
cross sections showing how the proposal related to existing site levels, | am concerned that the sheds
may be visible from the north side of the valley and more locally from the B7062 immediately to the
north of the field. | suggest that the existing trees along the north boundary may not provide adequate
screening for these sheds and it may be that they will be seen from much of the surrounding elevated
land to the north west, north and north east.

No Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been undertaken to test the scheme to test
the visual effect on the integrity of the SLA and visual impact on the receptors on the adjacent road.
Local Plan Policy EP2 requires developers to comply with Structure Plan policy N11 which states that
‘In assessing proposals for development in AGLVs (replaced by SLAs in 2012), the Council will seek to
safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard to the landscape impact of the proposed
development.’

Conclusion

The submitted information was limited and | have a concern that the proposal will be highly visible and
will have a serious negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley.

| would expect to see a realistic photomontage presentation submitted as part of a LVIA to establish
how visible this proposed development would be from a number of sensitive receptors both in the
immediate vicinity and across the valley.

Page 132



Without a simple landscape and visual impact assessment that clearly shows the effects on this part of
the Tweed valley SLA, | cannot make an informed judgement about this proposal and | therefore do
not support this application.

Archaeology Officer: Thank you for requesting an archaeology consultation. The application area was
partly covered by a previous archaeological watching brief that failed to identify significant
archaeology. Given this, and groundworks that have commenced in the immediate vicinity since the
watching brief in 2005, | do not believe there are any further mitigation measures required.

Environmental Health:
Amenity and Pollution
Assessment of Application

Noise
Water and Drainage

This Application includes proposals to erect a cold store and a solar panel array.
Refrigeration equipment can be a source of noise complaints if not properly installed and maintained.

Electrical power generating facilities can cause noise impacts from transformers and other ancillary
equipment.

This Application proposes to use a private water supply and drainage system.
These can impact of public health.

Recommendation
Agree with application in principle, subject to Conditions.

Conditions

Noise

Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise Rating Curve
NR20 between the hours of 2300 — 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within the
nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any
plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component.
Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

The Unit shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions so as to
stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

No development should commence until the applicant has provided evidence that the site will be
serviced by a wholesome supply of drinking water of adequate volume. The supply should not have a
detrimental effect on other private water supplies in the area.

Reason: To ensure that the site is adequately serviced without a detrimental effect on the water
supplies of surrounding properties.

No development should commence until the applicant has provided evidence that arrangements are in
place to ensure that the private drainage system will be maintained in a serviceable condition

Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect on public health.

Informative

Page 133



Private Water Supply

As the proposal may result in the general public consuming the water from the private water supply,
the supply will be classed as a Type A. This will mean that the supply will be subjected to annual water
testing and a risk assessment of the supply. The applicant should contact an Environmental Health
Officer before becoming operational to discuss testing of the water.

Private Drainage System
Private drainage systems often cause public health problems when no clear responsibility or access
rights exists for maintaining the system in a working condition.

Problems can also arise when new properties connect into an existing system and the rights and
duties have not been set down in law.

To discharge the Condition relating to the private drainage arrangements, the Applicant should
produce documentary evidence that the maintenance duties on each dwelling served by the system
have been clearly established by way of a binding legal agreement. Access rights should also be
specified.

Peebles and District Community Council: Response awaited.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011

Policy G1 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy BE2 Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments

Policy EP2 Areas of Great Landscape Value

Policy D1 Businesss, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

"Special Landscape Area 2 - Tweed Valley" - Supplementary Planning Policies

Recommendation by - Craig Miller (Lead Planning Officer) on 29th July 2015

The site forms part of an 8 acre smallholding at Kirkburn, Cardrona, on the back road to Peebles. This
planning application is one of six which have been submitted for various buildings and structures on the land
to the south and west of the holiday chalets site. Together with a seventh proposal in the form of an AGN,
four of the applications all relate to the same site and are competing proposals, only one of which could
actually be implemented. This application is for two new buildings erected at higher yard level above and
behind the existing range of buildings and recently consented cold store.

The first building will be erected on top of the previously consented cold store and over a proposed
excavated cold store extension, one described as being for poultry, the other for red meat. Above these
areas, a new storage shed is proposed measuring 10m by 14m, 6m to the eaves and 7.3m to the ridge both
as measured from the upper yard. The second building will be to the rear of the existing buildings and will be
erected at upper yard level, measuring 6m by 24m, 4m to the eaves and 5.5m to the ridge. They will be clad
in larchlap boarding with a charcoal grey fibre roof, the larger building possessing two roller shutter doors to
the side gable and two pedestrian doors to the rear. Two further roller shutter doors will serve the cold
stores. The interior of the larger building is described as for tractors/implements/mobile food van parking.
Staff quarters are shown at one end of the building at mezzanine level consisting of a rest room, toilet and
kitchenette. The smaller building is proposed to house an animal flotation tank with roller shutter door and
pedestrian door.

The site also lies within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area No. 2 - a recent local landscape
designation which requires extra care and attention to be paid to development that could adversely impact
on the character of the landscape. Management recommendations were set out in the Supplementary
Planning Guidance accompanying the designation, the most pertinent being "..to better integrate existing
development into the landscape”. This was arising out of pressure for development on hills and hillsides
across the designated area.

Page 134



Such considerations were uppermost when the adjoining holiday chalets application was considered at
Committee. As a result of concerns over visual impacts on rising land, revisions to the scheme were
required to reduce impacts on the recently designated landscape. This involved removal of upper chalets
and the loop road as well as a series of cross sections to demonstrate that the development would not be
seen from the A72 on the Horsbrugh Straight above the existing tree canopy line.

In processing the initial AGN application for Mushroom growing sheds, concern was expressed that those
sheds were as tall as the Hub House within the holiday development, yet apparently on higher ground by
several metres. The tree top heights on the sections submitted with the holiday chalets application indicated
screening up to about 188m AOD which was sufficient to screen the Hub House. It was not felt that the
proposed sheds would be screened to the same extent by the existing trees, the Landscape Officer
believing that they will be highly visible above them. The same loop road was also proposed as part of the
Mushroom sheds application which would also be visible above the tree canopy.

The Landscape Officer concluded that in the absence of any Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to
prove otherwise, the development would have a detrimental impact on the Special Landscape Area. The
applicant was invited to respond to these concerns with supporting information which could include cross
sections, photomontages, topographical and floor level information. They were also invited to consider the
precise siting of the sheds and the roof height and design. It was clearly stated, however, that any additional
information submitted may still confirm the concerns over landscape impact, especially if significant
excavation required to lower floor levels remains prominent in itself.

A revised plan was submitted for the mushroom shed application accompanied by a topographical detailed
survey and proposals to reduce the impacts of those buildings by cutting in the floor level as well as
reducing the heights of those buildings from 7.3m down to 4.8m. The accompanying letter believed that they
were a better design solution than the initial proposal. Tree heights were demonstrated, in the highest case,
to be higher than the ridge height now proposed. However, of the tree heights actually shown, the general
top of the tree line is still appreciably below the ridges of the two buildings. The most recent application on
the same site for rabbit breeding sheds goes further and lowers the floor levels even more whilst still
keeping the new 4.8m ridge height. These reductions and design solutions are still being considered , noting
that it is possible that the ridge heights of those buildings could be as little as 0.5-1.5m above the average
tree line height. The applicant has been written to with further requests to pull the floor level of the
mushroom sheds down to that of the rabbit sheds - amongst other issues still to be addressed.

This background also includes recent consideration of the application for a cattle court building on the site,
which was neither cut into the site nor lower in height, being more than 2.5m above the heights of the
revised mushroom/rabbit sheds, without taking into account any cut into the site. Even if such cut was
proposed for the cattle shed application, the height of the building would still result in projection above the
average tree height by at least 3-4.5m which would have a major landscape impact, exacerbated by the bulk
of the building across it's 44m length. There was clear advice from the Landscape Officer that such an
impact would be unacceptable, given the level of projection of building above the tree line when viewed from
the A72. There was also likely to be local impacts from the B7062 next to the site.

Those landscape impacts were exacerbated by the circuituous access track, water holding tank and solar
array which would all be wholly visible above the tree canopy from the A72, increasing the development of
an elevated field. The solar panels would face away from view so there would be no reflective im pact.
However, the slope of the ground means that the elevated rear of the stuctures would be presented to public
view to the north, rising up the hill to the Laverlaw Road and introducing an intrusive element into the hill
slope. The effects would be contrary to the purposes of designating the Special Landscape Area in the first
instance.

An associated application for hay sheds and a feed silo simply proposed buildings of much greater ridge
heights in similar positions to the cattle court/mushroom/rabbit sheds. The impacts would be even more
immense on the hillside above the tree canopy, topped by a towering silo structure which would even be
sited on higher land still. There would be no amount of ground regrading that would make these proposals
anything other than significantly prominent in a designated landscape. That application was also considered
unacceptable on grounds of landscape impact, within a designated landscape area.

The application for the storage building and animal flotation tank building cause the same issues of
landscape impact. Whilst it is accepted that at least they would have the appearance of being more visually

Page 135



related to the existing buildings in terms of location to the rear of existing buildings, the level of projection
above the ridge of the existing buildings would still be excessive, ranging from 3.7m for the flotation tank
building to 5.6m for the storage shed building. It is acknowledged that the line of tree cover north of the
public road is a little higher at this end of the land holding and the existing buildings are screened by those
trees - but only just. It is considered that there is not a further 3.7-5.6m vertical height screening above the
tree tops to enable such large buildings set at higher level to be effectively screened, either from the A72 or
from the public road adjoining the site. Whilst there may be a second topographical survey plan which could
have covered this end of the site, this has not been submitted with the application and it would be highly
unlikely, in any case, that there would be any demonstration of adequate existing screening given the height
differentials between the existing building ridges and those proposed - especially the storage building ridge.
It certainly appears that the existing contours would be similar to those being proposed for the
rabbit/mushroom sheds. without the cutting into ground levels as proposed for those buildings. Excavation in
this location would also cause difficulties with the upper yard, access and impacts on the rear of the existing
buildings. It is concluded that the impacts on the landscape would be significant with this proposal, affecting
the character and quality of the designated landscape and particularly noticeable from the A72. This is the
conclusion of the Landscape Officer who also points out the lack of any Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment to demonstrate the impacts of the development.

| have no issues with the solar panels on the rear facing roof slopes.

Policy D1 looks for uses which are related to the ground on which they are located, for purposes which are
generated by the land and any particular activity carried out on the land. It is known that the landholding is
only 8 acres, of which 3 have been earmarked for the consented chalet development and some of the
remainder are occupied already by buildings and the yard area. The stated purpose of the buildings and
their scale raise issues over need and justification, as with the other proposals and in the absence of a co-
ordinated Business Plan. There is staff provision in the storage building in the form of a rest room,
kitchenette and a toilet which either seem unnecessary and unrelated to tractor and vehicle storage - or
excessive in that such provision could be provided elsewhere on the holding, probably within the existing
buildings. Certainly, there would be no effective justification to have these facilities duplicated in every
building proposed on this site. It is also questioned whether such a modest holding, already with a range of
buildings (including a consented cold storage building and tractor shed) can justify such large additional
accommodation which appears duplication. In the absence of a Business Plan, there is no demonstration of
the required need for such buildings on this small holding.

It is concluded that the application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated
Local Plan 2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for
the proposed buildings that would justify an exceptional permission in this rural location and therefore the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed buildings
are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the proposed use for which they are intended or the
size of the holding on which they would be situated, which further undermines the case for justification in this
location.

Roads Planning have concerns over this proposal together with others submitted on the same and adjoining
sites. They point out that conditioned work has never been completed, with the bell mouth still requiring to
be surfaced and visibility from the access onto the public road remaining substandard. This proposal, if
approved, would increase the amount of vehicles using the access and should it be approved, upgrading
works should be conditioned following the submission of details. Roads Planning also consider there to be a
lack of information in terms of the number of vehicle movements this proposal (and the others) will bring.
They have requested a Transport Statement to be submitted which details the type, number and size of
vehicle trips which will be generated by this proposal along with the frequency of trips. The statement must
also include anticipated traffic movements for all other proposed development served by this access.

Given the uncertainty over the scale of the buildings and their suitability for the purposes intended, it is
understandable that there are Roads concerns over the ability of the access to accommodate the
development without further information being submitted. In the absence of such information, it has not been
adequately demonstrated that the access is capable of safely accommodating the traffic generated by the
proposed development. This would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Consolidated Local Plan.

There were a series of issues also raised by Environmental Health covering noise, private water and private
drainage issues which could all be covered by appropriate conditions. The Archaeology Officer is not

Page 136



concerned at these proposals, given the previous development of the steading buildings and the lack of any
significant findings.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley in that the
proposed buildings will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the landscape and will have a
significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the designated landscape.

The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in
that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the proposed
buildings and that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location and, therefore, the
development would appear as unwarranted development in the open countryside. The proposed buildings
are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the proposed use for which they are intended or the
size of the holding on which they would be situated, which further undermines the case for justification in this
location.

The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consclidated Local Plan 2011 in that it has

not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the site without
detriment to road safety.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application is contrary to Policies G1, EP2 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local
Plan 2011 and Supplementary Planning Policies relating to Special Landscape Area 2-Tweed Valley
in that the proposed buildings will be prominent in height, elevation and visibility within the
landscape and will have a significant detrimental impact on the character and quality of the
designated landscape.

2 The application is contrary to Policies G1 and D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan
2011 in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that there is an overriding justification for the
proposed buildings and that would justify an exceptional permission for them in this rural location
and, therefore, the development would appear as unwarranted development in the open
countryside. The proposed buildings are not of a design or scale that appear suited either to the
proposed use for which they are intended or the size of the holding on which they would be situated,
which further undermines the case for justification in this location.

3 The application is contrary to Policy D1 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that
it has not been adequately demonstrated that any traffic generated by the proposal can access the
site without detriment to road safety.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 137



Page 138



Agenda Item 6e

Scottish
Borders
COUNCIL
Scottish Borders Council
Regulatory Services — Consultation reply
Planning Ref 16/00205/FUL
Uniform Ref 16/00387/PLANCO
Erection of timber processing building incorporating
Proposal biomass plant room and staff welfare provision
Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona
Address Scottish Borders
Date 2113116
Amenity and Pollution Officer David A. Brown
Contaminated Land Officer Reviewed — no comments

Amenity and Pollution

Assessment of Application
Air quality

Noise

Nuisance

This is an Application to erection of timber processing building together with a biomass boiler, a
biofuel production facility and staff accommodation.

Biomass heating systems have the potential to cause nuisance and air quality problems.

In order to allow an air quality screening assessment to be carried out the applicant can carry one
out using the biomass unit conversion and screening tool at http://iagm.co.uk/quidance/

Alternatively if the following information is provided the screening calculation will be carried out for
them:

Flue diameter

Flue height above ground level

Make and model of the boiler

Size of boiler (maximum output in kW)

Thermal efficiency of the boiler

Type of fuel to be used (pellets chips etc.)

The height and width of the building in which the boiler will be housed

The height and width of any building within a distance of 5 times the stack height,
including fuel hoppers.

9. The boiler Emission Factor for PM10 particulates at full boiler power

10.The boiler Emission Factor for NOx at full boiler power

QoL O B D R e

Where manufacturer’s Emission Factors are unavailable, a notional value derived from Guidance
will be used.

Wood processing machinery can cause noise annoyance.

The Applicant should submit a Noise Assessment for the proposed machinery, giving predicted
noise levels within the nearest noise sensitive premises.

Noise levels should incorporate any tonal penalties and be reference against the Noise Rating
Curves.

Page 139




Recommendation

Delete as appropriate —Further Information Required Before Application is Determined

Page 140




Regulatory Services

To: Development Management Attention: Craig Miller
From: LANDSCAPE SECTION Date: 14" April 2016
Contact:  Siobhan McDermott Ext: 5425 Ref: 16/00205/FUL

Subject: Erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant room and staff
welfare provision, field 0328, Kirkburn, Cardrona

It is recognised that a formal recommendation can only be made after consideration of all relevant
information and material considerations. This consultation advice is provided to the Development Control
service in respect of landscape related issues.

Description of the Site

The site is a part of a larger north facing field on the southern side of the Tweed valley.

The site lies wholly within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (SPA) and the designation recognises
the special character of the valley landscape.

The Inventory Designed Landscape of Kailzie lies immediately across the minor road to the north.

The field slopes steeply down to the minor road that runs northeast/ southwest immediately to the north.

Nature of the Proposal

The proposal is for the erection of a biomass processing shed over the consented cold storage block and
next to an agricultural shed. The ridge height of the proposal development is almost 9 metres above
existing lower yard level

Implications of the Proposal for the Landscape including any Mitigation

I am concerned that the shed will be highly visible to receptors using the B7062 travelling eastwards from
Peebles. The existing trees along the north boundary and on the other side of the road will not provide
adequate screening to the shed when seen from this direction or from the east and views from sensitive
locations on the other side of the valley may not be screened by the intervening trees along the B7062.

Conclusion
I have a concern that the proposal will have a negative visual impact on this part of the Tweed valley.

On grounds of Landscape and visual impact, | cannot support this application.

Siobhan McDermott
Landscape Architect

Page 141



PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Archaeology Officer
From: Development Management Date: 26th February 2016
Contact:  Craig Miller & 01835 825029 Ref. 16/00205/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION

Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 18th March 2016, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 18th March 2016, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.

Name of Applicant: Cleek Poultry Ltd
Agent: N/A
Nature of Proposal: Erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant room and

staff welfare provision
Site: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS OF: Archaeology Officer

CONSULTATION REPLY

There are no known archaeological implications for this proposal. While there is some archaeological
sensitivity in the surrounding area, the site itself is within an area that has been heavily disturbed by recent
development. A watching brief was conducted on the adjacent site in 2005 and failed to identify significant
archaeology.

Council Headquarters, Newfown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 142



REGULATORY Scottish

SERVICE Borders
A, S COUNCIL
To: Development Management Service Date: 15 Apr 2016

FAO Craig Miller

From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: Paul Grigor Ext: 6663 Ref: 16/00205/FUL

Subject: Erection of timber processing building incorporating
biomass plant room and staff welfare provision
Field No 0328 Kirkburn, Cardrona, Scottish Borders

The previous application for this proposal (16/00205/FUL) raised an objection from this
department due to lack of information on traffic movements that this proposal would
generate.

The current submission highlights that this relatively small scale building is proposed for
processing biomass fuel for domestic and commercial heating. The applicant anticipates 1
lorry delivery per week at peak times of production. It is then intended that the biomass
fuel is distributed to the adjacent holiday lodge development which has planning approval
but yet to be constructed.

In theory, this proposal will potentially remove or limit the need for biomass fuel to be
delivered to the holiday lodge development, should it be forthcoming.

Access to the site is to be via the existing junction, which is to be upgraded as per a
separate application (15/01206/FUL). As such, | would be seeking for a condition, to be
attached to any consent for this current application, requiring the access to be upgraded
as per the application 15/01206/FUL prior to the timber processing unit becoming
operational.

AJS

Page 143



Page 144



Agenda Item 6f

LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 16/00020/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 16/00205/FUL

Development Proposal: Erection of timber processing building incorporating biomass plant
room and staff welfare provision

Location: Field No 0328 Kirkburn Cardrona

Applicant: Cleek Poultry Ltd

**New LDP 2016**

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with

sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the
efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and
resources such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable
construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide
emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this target met
through the use of low or zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling
and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and
the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at
an early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in
place for long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and

Page 145



spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of
the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this
need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

[) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing
street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated
footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

g) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to
the site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those
used for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending
preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some
cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision
may be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the

Page 146




amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or
replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

This policy is relevant to most policies within the Plan.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders
Green Space

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

Replacement Windows and Doors

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Greenspace

Housing

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)
Sustainable Urban Drainage

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Waste Management

Policy ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure in the Countryside

Business, Tourism and Leisure
Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be
approved and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:

a) the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural
character of the area; or

b) the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism
appropriate to a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance

Page 147




with the Scottish Borders Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;

c) the development is to be used for other business or employment generating
uses, provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or
operational need for the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be
reasonably be accommodated within the Development Boundary of a
settlement.

In addition the following criteria will also be considered:

a) the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding
area,

b) the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses,
particularly housing,

c) where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide
evidence that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and
where conversion of an existing building of architectural merit is proposed,
evidence that the building is capable of conversion without substantial
demolition and rebuilding,

d) the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area,

e) the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with
Policy PMD2, and

f) the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance
with Policy 154.

Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of
a tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be
submitted as part of the application process.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy ED3 Town Centres and Shopping Development may be relevant where an
ancillary retail use is involved.

Policy ED8 Caravan and Camping Sites

Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy 1S4 Transport Development and Infrastructure

Policy IS7 Parking Provision and Standards

Policy IS16 Advertisements

Page 148




Many of the environmental policies will be relevant particularly those involving the
protection of landscape assets.

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns
Green Space

Landscape and Development
Local Landscape Designations
Placemaking and Design

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Biodiversity

Countryside Around Towns
Greenspace

Green Networks

Landscape and Development
Placemaking and Design

Policy EP5: Special Landscape Areas

In assessing proposals for development that may affect Special Landscape Areas,
the Council will seek to safeguard landscape quality and will have particular regard
to the landscape impact of the proposed development, including the visual impact.
Proposals that have a significant adverse impact will only be permitted where the
landscape impact is clearly outweighed by social or economic benefits of national
or local importance.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy ED12 Mineral and Coal Extraction

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP4 National Scenic Areas

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Page 149




Policy EP8 Archaeology

Policy EP10 Gardens and Designed Landscape
Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
Policy EP14 Coastline

Policy 1S15 Radio Communications

Scottish Planning Policy

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Green Space

Landscape and Development

Local Landscape Designations

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Greenspace

Green Networks

Landscape and Development

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Policy EP8: Archaeology

(A) National Archaeological Sites

Development proposals which would destroy or adversely affect the appearance,
fabric or setting of Scheduled Monuments or other nationally important sites will not
be permitted unless:

a) the development offers substantial benefits, including those of a social or
economic nature, that clearly outweigh the national value of the site, and
b) there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the development need.

(B) Battlefields
The Council may support development proposals within a battlefield on the

Page 150




Inventory of Historic Battlefields Register, or a regionally significant site, that seek to
protect, conserve, and/or enhance the landscape characteristics or important
features of the battlefield. Proposals will be assessed according to their sensitivity to
the battlefield.

(C) Regional or Local Archaeological Assets

Development proposals which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of
regional or local significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the
benefits of the proposal will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset.

In all of the above cases, where development proposals impact on a Scheduled
Monument, other nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical
asset, developers may be required to carry out detailed investigations.

Any proposal that will adversely affect a historic environment asset or its
appropriate setting must include a mitigation strategy acceptable to the Council.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy ED12 Mineral and Coal Extraction

Many other Environmental Promotion and Protection policies may also be relevant.

Scottish Planning Policy
Scottish Historic Environment Policy
Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Archaeology

In addition, other policies relevant to the consideration are-
SPG Special Landscape Areas

Scottish Planning Policy

Page 151




Page 152



Agenda ltem 7a

Ch]ef Ex scutive Notice of Review
o o
=z COUNCIL

Py E Coniees
ot et

it it Lnbiies s et

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008
IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing In manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)
Name [ALad S04 REDPam ] Name [ ]
Address (€2 CASTE SWIEET , DIRS ! Address | 1

Postcode [_T01 3GE Postcode [ ]

Contact Telephone 1 Centact Telephone 1
Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2
Fax No | Fax No

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:
Yes 'No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? [3/ ]:]
Pianning authority [__SBC ]
P Fi

Planning authority’s application reference number [1e/© G125 JLBC. |
Site address cA . == VS Tl 3 ]

Description of proposed ) e Ny ” A feoic Dol XV
development Qe Pace™enar WHivDed s X8 A~

I i i
Date of application el o}iim © "] Date of decision (if any) 2\ |G] T8 s ]
]

Page 1 of 4
Page 153



R R s e e s R M e

. Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period aliowed for determining the application.

Nature of application
1. Application for planning pemission (including householder application) %
Application for planning permission in principle D

Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenD
imposed; renewal of planning pamission; andfor modification, variation or removal of & planning
condition) - D

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review

. Refusal of application by appointed officer l}
2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of D
the application D

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to detemine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made 1o enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or & combination of procedures, such as: written
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions andfor inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case,

Please indicate what procedure {or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures,

1. Further writien submissions l:l

2. One or more hearing sessions B

M

4 Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure D

3. Site inspection

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please expiain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides {o inspect the review sile, in your opinion; "
Yes ")

1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land?

2 Isitpossible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? I'Z] D

if there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here: ”
Q

Page 2 of 4
Page 154



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a raview on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
You consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in fuil in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

qusé See Nores  Prencnel

. I Y N
Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the ﬁ lj/
determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not rajsed w_ith the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Qumsé Ser Noms  Araverted

Page 3of 4
Page 155




R SRR S R R e R e i et A

Notice of Review
Liet of documents and evidence

Pleasg provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

me-_')e Ses  Amacned

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. it may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confir you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
YOUr review.

[ Full competion of aif parts of this form
E/ Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

m/ All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earier
consent.

Declaration

I the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate}] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Signed [

The Completed form should be refurned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headguarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD§ 0SA.

Date L:UL/zaab |

Page 4 of 4
Page 156



Mr. Alan John Redpath
62 Castle Street
Duns

TD11 3BE

Thursday 16" June 2016

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find below a list of supporting documents, materials and evidence which | wish to use to
support my notice of review,

58C H&DO Officer has not supported our application after verbat guidance on the
replacement front door. He suggested a window in the centre of the door would be
acceptable due to bad light from the fan light above the existing door. Please see attached
photos of timber replacement door. Please note the existing door is not the original door as
stated in the refusal; it is hollow and not solld. How can we replace like for like when it is not
the original door and aiready having a harmful effect on the character of the grade B listed
building?

A sample window was shown to the H&DO officer on his visit and it detailed the same
window pane sizes etc as existing windows, Please note all 5 existing sash & case windows
are not the same. Some have horns inside and out and two don't.

We are looking to replace our 1991 gas combi boiler are it is not efficient and costing money.
However; we are reluctant to do this when all the heat will escape through the unrepairable
existing windows,

Historic Environment Scotland have no objections.

Castie Street is a conservation area but yet various houses on the street would appear to
have had a relaxed view on style/make of replacement windows.

PVC wood grain effect doubie glazed windows supplied and fitted by Wm Mallen Joinery at a
cost of £4,014 + vat against timber sash & cash double glazed and fitted by Wm Mallen
loinery at a cost of £8,712 + vat. Same size of sash & cash, same size of panes and same size
of astrigals.

I would be very grateful if you can reconsider your objection of PVC wood grain effect double glazed
windows and a solid wood front door and allow me to continue to maintain and improve this grade
B listed bullding.

I look farward to hearing from you soon,

Regards

Alan John Redpath

Page 157



e SRR R A AR R T R e e R R e e o e e

lan Aikman
Chief Planning Officer
Alan John Redpath Please ask for:  Scott Shearer
62 Castle Street o 01835 826732
Duns .
Scottish Borders Our Ref. 16/00126/FUL
TD11 3BE Your Ref:
E-Maii: sshearer@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 28th February 2016
Dear SirfMadam

PLANNING APPLICATION AT 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Replacement windows and door
APPLICANT: Alan John Redpath

| am writing to acknowledge receipt of your recent application at the above site. The application
has been given the application number 16/00126/FUL which should be quoted in all
correspondence. Scott Shearer is dealing with the application, and should you have any queries
about the application, you can contact the case officer on the telephone number given above.

The application is considered valid as at the date of this letter, and the Council wili endeavour 1o
make a decigion by 22nd April 2016 unless otherwise agreed in writing. If you do not receive a
decision within that time, you are entitied to seek a review of the application by the Council's Local
Review body in the case of applications that would normally fall to be considered under the
Council's Scheme of Delegation, or to appeal to Scottish Ministers in all other cases. Details on
how to do so can be found on the Council's website, or by telephoning the case officer.

You can check the progress and status of your application, and keep up to date with any
comments received in respect of your proposal, by using the Council's online planning system at

hitp://eplanning.scotborders.qov.uk/online-applications/

| confirm that the following fees have been received:

Application Fee: £202.00 This is your receipt for payment (VAT Rate is Non Business)
VAT REG NO - 663 7265 15

Advert Fee: £ .00 This is your receipt for payment (VAT Rate is Non Business)
VAT REG NO - 663 7265 15

Refund (if applicable}: £

The Council operates a system of public speaking in the event that the application is determined
by its Ptanning and Building Standards Committee. This opportunity is available to the applicant
and/or their agent and to anyone who has made written representations in respect of an
application. You should be aware, however, that not all applications will come before the
Committee for determination.

You can find our protocol for public speaking on the Council's website, and this provides guidance
on the approach that will be used, You should note that a total of six minutes will be allocated to
those supporting and to those objecting to proposals, and therefore, if there are likely to be others
taking up this opportunity, representations will need to be co-ordinated between those intending to
speak. You can find out who else has made comments on the proposal on the Gouncil's Public

Access website.

Council Headquarters, Newtown B, IBGMELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Gustomer Services; 03007100 1600 www.scothorders.gov. uk



You should be aware that Members of the Committee will already have access to your application,
together with any supporting information that may have been submitted with it, and will therefore
be aware of your position when they come to consider this application, even if you decide not to
speak at the meeting.

If the application comes before Committes for determination, 1 will write to you again ta advise you
of the date of the Committee meeting and to confirm whether it is your intention to speak.

Yours faithfully
lan Aikman

Chief Planning Officer

Page 159



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

PLIC NTO RMINED UNDER ERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART lil REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00125/LBC
APPLICGANT ; Alan John Redpath
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Replacement windows and door
LOCATION: 62 Castle Street
Duns
Scottish Borders
TD11 3BE
TYPE : LBC Application
REASON FOR DELAY:
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
RENAISSANCE Brochures Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Architactural Heritage Society of Scotland: No response at the time of writing.
Berwickshire Civic Soclety: No response at the time of writing.
Community Council: No response at the time of writing.

Historic Environment Scotiand (HES): The proposals do not raise any issues of national significance
therefore no abjections are raised. It is however advised that the existing historic windows contribute to
the character of the buildings. An assessment of the condition of the window should be carried out to
determine if the existing windows can be repaired. Should the windows be beyond repair,
replacements should match the existing windows including their materials and glazing pattern. The
panelled timber door is viewed to be a significant element of the listed building which should only be

replaced if the door is beyond repair.

Heritage and Design Officer (H&DO): The building dates form the 19th century and was listed category
B in 1971. The building appears to retain its original front windows; painted timber sash and case
windows with single glazing. The 9 panel front door, designed in the "Kelso" style with small fan light

also appears fo be original. The dormers are probably a later addition.

Page 160



On assessing the proposals against the SPG on Replacement Windows and Doors it is recommended
that;

o] Replacing the current windows with woodgrain effect PYC-U windows is not acoeptable

o] ‘Repiacing the door wilh an oak boarded door with no fantight is not acceptable

An objection is raised on grounds that the proposals will have an adverse impact on the special
historic and architectural character of the category B listed building.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: S Aot ¢ QA
oL

Consolidated Local Plan 2011: (' alad ¢ M-‘L’h

N L v Cy
BE1 - Listed Buildings 3—(\4_&

™ 7 Las”
Proposed Lacal Development Plan 2013; ~ | A
EP7 - Listed Buildings 7 Hadse
S w17
Other Considerations; "77 \-f i« {} LL
0 Supplementary Planning Guidance on: Replacement Windows and Doors 2015 Q J C ¢ Q(
0 Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Windows 2010 \ ’rqi 5 '3)
U
o Managing Change in the Historic Environment : Doors 2010 \\Q Lp\bﬂ' Q~, Lr'\ v
22 V4

0 Historic Environment Scotland - Information for Historic Building Owners: External Timber o
Boors 2008

Recommendation by - Scott Shearer (Planning Officer) on 20th April 2016

This is a joint report which relates to Listed Building Consent and Planning Applications 16/00125/LBC and
16/00126/FUL. The final recommendations are, however, particular to each separate application.

The application site, No 62 Castle Street forms part of a terraced row of two and tree storey buildings in
Duns. The building dates from the early 18th century and is finished with dressed whinstone front wall and a
slated roof. The building is listed grade B and is iocated within the towns conservation area. Listed Building
and Planning permission is sought to replace seven sash and case windows on the front elevation (including
the two dormer windows) with wood effect uPVC windows and install a new oak boarded front door.

This application has been submitted following a Provisional Enquiry early in 2016.

vpty DougtAs SeU~
Spenl L

All existing windows which are proposed to be rgpfaced are single glazed and timber framed with a six over
six glazing pattern. The H&DO advises that thg’existing windows and door has retained their original design.
Although not abundantly clear from the brocfiure extract which has been submitted, from laoking at the
Listed Building Consent application form and accessing the remainder of the "Renaissance Window
Systems" brochure online, it is understood that the uPVC framed windows will be double glazed with a
sliding sash opening mechanism.

Assessment

The Councils development plan polices provision for developments which affect listed buildings seek to
ensure that proposals do not spoil their historic and architectural character. The Council has adopted policy
provision for replacement windows and doors within listed buildings and in conservation areas which is
contained within our Replacement Windows and Doors SPG. The policies which have been formed have
taken cognisance of national policy provision and recommendations. The adopted policy for grade B listed
buildings recommends that windows and doors should only be replaced when it is proven through a
condition survey that the existing windows and door are beyond repair” No such survey has been submitted
ta accompany these applications therefore this policy requirement is not satisfied by these proposais.

(osdac Catly o Sybisy <

Page 161



In the event that the existing windows and doors are not repairable it is recommended that existing windows
and doors should generally be replaced on a like for like basis. There may be potential to introduce double
glazed windows however this is only agreeable when it has been proven that the existing windows are not
repairable and the replacement units match the originals in all other manner which includes frame material

and proportion. B&TT‘DM Wooags el No HelgdD

While it is debatable if the existing windows and door found on the front elevation of No 62 Castle Street are
in fact original, what is important is the informed view of the H&DO and HES that the existing windows and
doors are believed to retain the appearance of the likely original openings and they positively contribute to
the character of the listed building. The introduction of uPVC framed windows and a new door design
explicitly fails to satisfy policy provision for replacement windows and doors on grade B listed buildings. In
this case, the introduction of uPVC window frames which appear to be much thicker that the size of the SQHLS.
frames on the timber windows along with the loss of the traditionally designed "Keiso" style door results in - S, ;7 &
having an harmful effect upon the character and appearance listed buildings and therefore cannot be
oA kﬁcaw

supported. Hod €A Vad TR tE Yoy fQJLg\,.,\’T T P

The buitding is located outwith the prime frontage zone of the conservation area so policy does allow for
uPVC framed windows 1o be introduced however questions would probably still remain regarding the size of
the window frames and design of the door. It is acknowledged that some neighbouring buildings on Castle
Street have eroded some traditional fenestration patterns and door designs by changing to more modern
openings. This row itself contains varying architecture with this building seen as a pair alongside the
adjoining B listed No 1 Teindhillgreen which has retained timber windows and a "Kelso" style door.
Fundamentally because this is a grade B listed building in its own right, local plan policy provision does not
make an allowance for this property to be altered in a way in which some other unlisted building's on this
street have been.

Through the course of the application, the applicant has refused an approach to amend their proposals to
allow the development to comply with policy. The recommendation that uPVC windows wouid not comply
with policy was provided to the applicant in a response to their Provisionat Enquiry 16/06004/PREAPP. The
application has also been considered against the emerging Local Development Plan where the proposal
would continue to fail to satisfy policy provision for developments which affect Listed Buildings.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application contravenes Policy BE1 of the Consolidated Local Pian 2011 and the terms of the
Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information regarding the
condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed replacement windows including
their frame material and the design of the replacement door would result in having an harmful effect upon
the special historic and architectural character of the grade B listed building. Policy provisions contained
within the emerging Local Development Plan would not alter this recommendation.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application contravenes Policy BE1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms of the
Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information regarding
the condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed replacement
windows including their frame material and the design of the replacement door would result in
having an harmful effect upon the special historic and architectural character of the grade B listed
building. Policy provisions contained within the emerging Local Development Plan would not alter
this recommendation.

Page 162



“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 163



REGULATORY SERVICES

To. Head of Regulatory Services
Fao: Scott Shearer
From: Planning Implementation Date; 29/03/2016

Contact: Mark Douglas, Principal Officer ® x6563 Ref:  16/00125/LBC
{Built Heritage & Design)

Subject: 62 CASTLE STREET, DUNS
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS

It is recognised that a formal recommendation for a decision can only be made after consideration
of all relevant information and material considerations This consultation advice is provided tc the
Development Management service in respect of built heritage and design issues.

| refer to the above application and comment as follows:

BACKGROUND

The building dates from the earlier part of the 19" century and appears to retain its original front
door and windows (the roof dormers are probably later). The building was added to the statutory
list at category B in 1971.

| have visited the property for a pre-application discussion with the owners when | took record
photos of the current windows and door, IJM OE.I L AL

ASSESSMENT OF PROPOSALS A/ Howgol) BOD
The current windows in the front of the property appear to be the original pattern; painted timber

sash and case windows with single glazing. The front door alsc appears original being a 9 panel

flush panelled door (in the "Ketso” style) with a tiny fanlight above.

The proposed replacement windows shown are PVC-U (wood grain effect) windows both for the 5
main fagade windows and also for the dormers. Oﬂn J i’h !;_‘
< ]
The proposed door is an oak boarded door with a small window opening N AL¢ Do_\ tL A-b

The council has clearly set out its policy within the SPG on Replacement Windows and Doors:
s At 3.15-3 17 it is clear that replacing the current windows with PVC-U is NOT acceptable
At 3.20 it is clear that the replacing the front door with an oak boarded door and removing
the fanhight 1Is NOT acceptable

In this particular case | consider that the changes proposed will have an adverse impact on the
special historic and architectural interest of this category B listed building.

RECOMMENDATION / RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS.
} OBJECT to the proposals as submitted.

Page 164



Historic Environment Scotland
Arainneachd Eachdraidheil Alba

Longmore House
Salisbury Place

By E-mail Edinburgh

Planning and Economic Development EH9 1SH

Scottish Borders Council

Council Headquarters Direct Line: 0131 668 8716
Newtown St. Boswells Switchboard: 0131 668 8600
Melrose HMConsultations@hes.scot
TD6 0SA

dcconsultees@scotborders.gov.uk Our ref: HGG/A/B/1 200

Qur Case ID: 201508198
Your ref: 16/00125/.BC

14 April 2016
Dear Sirs

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997
62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders

Statutory Designation: 62 CASTLE STREET

Designation Reference: B26483

"

Thank you for your consultation which we received on 01 April.

Historic Environment Scotland have reviewed your consultation, and we consider the
proposals do not raise issues of national significance, so we can confirm that we do not

object.

While we do not object, we do, however, have the following comments which your Council
should take into account in your decision:

The existing historic windows contribute to the character of the building and should be
retained and repaired where possible, and we would recommend that an assessment is
carried out of their condition If the windows are beyond repair. new windows should match
lhe existing, including materials and glazing arrangerment

Tha panelled timber main door is a significant element to the historic character of Category
B-listed 62 Castle Street Duns. replacement should only be considered If the door is beyend
repair

It may be useful to direct the applicant to information we have online which is specifically
tailored for homeowners of historic properties -

hitp://www. historic-scotland.qov.ukfinformguide-timber-doors.pdf

Furthermore we would be happy to discuss possible repair strategies and methods with
yourselves and the applicant, | can be contacted on 0131 668 8912.

Historic Environment Scotland - Scottish Chf;%lé? 45925
Registered Address: Longmore House, Salisb |Zee; Edinburgh, EH9 1SH



Historic Environment Scotland
Arainneachd Eachdraidheil Alba

Note

Historic Environment Scotland, HES, has a national remit for the Historic Environment, and
as such does not provide detailed comments on every application. We consider
consultations in national terms, and will decide whether to provide detailed advice
depending on the scale, nature or complexity of the proposals.

A decision not to provide detailed comments or not to object should not be taken as support
for the proposals by HES, and the application should be assessed as normal by your
Council against local and national policy and guidance on the Historic Environment.

Detailed guidance on the application of National policy is set out in our ‘Managing Change
in the Historic Environment’ series available online at http://Awww.historic-
scotland.gov.uk/managingchange. Technical advice is available through our Technical

Conservation website at http://conservation.historic-scotland.gov.uk/

If you require any further information, please contact me directly.

Yours faithfully

James Turner
Senior Heritage Management Officer

Historic Environment Scotland - Scottish Charity No. SC045925
Registered Address; Longmore House, SaliSAG€F1a8, Edinburgh, EHS 1SH



B e S

COUNCH

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

| Application for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00126/FUL |

[ To: Alan John Redpath 62 Castle Strest Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE ]

With reference to your application validated on 24th February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotiand) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Replacement windows and door

at: 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 21st April 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed = s s s s




ggc:.iétel ?’ |'Sl Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00126/EUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
RENAISSANCE Brochures Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Pholos Refused
Photos Refused
REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application contravenes Policy BE1 and G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms
of the Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information
regarding the condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed
replacement windows including their frame material and the design of the replacement door would
result in having an harmful effect upon the special historic and architectural character of the grade B
listed building. Policy provisions contained within the emerging Local Development Plan would not
alter this recommendation.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Pianning Autherity to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his inferest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Visit :/leplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
Page 168



. ‘ %%?_Etg_g Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country (Listed Buildings and Buildings in Conservation Areas) (Scotland)
Regulations 1987

| Application for Listed Building Consent Reference : 16/00125/LBC |

To : Alan John Redpath 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

With reference to your application received on 1st February 2016 for listed building consent under
the Planning {Listed Builklings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following
development :-

Proposal : Replacement windows and door

at : 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse Listed Building Consent for the reason(s) stated on
the attached schedule.

Dated 21st April 2016
Regulatory Services
Councll Headquarters
Newtown St Boswelis
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed T
Chief Planning Officer

Visit http:/feplanning.scotborders.qov. uk/omliagdsiRations/ to view Planning Information Online



< Scottish

Borders :
= COUNCIL Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00125/LBC

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
RENAISSANCE Brochures Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
REASON FOR REFUSAL
1 The application contravenes Policy BE1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms

of the Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient
information regarding the condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the
proposed replacement windows including their frame material and the design of the
replacement door would result in having an harmful effect upon the special historic and
architectural character of the grade B listed building. Policy provisions contained within the
emerging Local Development Plan would not alter this recommendation.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may appeal to the Scottish Ministers
under Section 47 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland} Act 1997 within three months from
the date of this notice. The nofice of the appeal should be addressed to The Directorate for
Planning and Environmental Appeals, 4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk FK1
1XR. A copy of the notice of the appeal must, at the same time, be sent to the Legal Services
Section, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells, Melrose TD6
0SA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Page 170



/

v/ FUi
62 castle street RECEIVED 14 FEB20%

24 h h

o L

10—

w05

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50
WE_| 1 ) 1 .| I I |

m

DUNS QS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000
scale N
TD113BE 12 February 2016, ID:
M4P-00501858
Brown Newsagents, Kelso

1:1250 scale print al A5, Centre:
378430 E, 654106 N

©Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey.
Licence no. 100025026

Page 171



RECEIVED 114 FEB20%

Page 172



[ a0cel o Liadd
Ao ALL(}‘.J Hond A\L\I—M’

Page 173



(fva j\ [ Ced 'l
Ao Puod Ao LA

[ anged

Page 174



RECEIVED 14 FEB 2018

i —

_nl..‘...._: __..',-I-I;:-..:.__; ‘:L_.' : 11
L VOGRS E Y

”

-

" Page 175




_ ! *ssa|pua aue Alladoid
3 il I_A“ Inoh uns 1seq o1 suonendiyuod
_m _ ,I ! ay] - PRIONIISUDD sABY 'salses
| ..rll HE ¢ Ppaxi} pueg spevy paye
7 P “ayyadio} pajdnoo aq Aew
SMOPUIAY "AIGBJIEAR 3Li053Y
SuBiSap mau jo Ajauea e 'sjsod
Aeg OG1 01 021 'sIS0d sauecD
06 JO LUCIRNPOILI 3Lt YIIA

£1-71 Saded ass
suapide Sujze|d Jo4

T

\“:ﬂ; weay 480 454 HeQ BT

Ll _m

SUSHEMBHJUT) MApUAR

ainkal oA Mo Aue 10 delq 1o (D1d 8as) usaB
Ul pajend 4 0) mopLm ok Buimol|e ajge|iere 51 aatARs Sujend Jnojod axedsayg v

Eupec) maio] Sodsag
"I0USIXa BY] O} UIBIBPO0M PUE JOUSIL SHL UG Sy 3jym {
piepue|s 13pio o 2{qissod OSE S11f "LIRIBPOOM, Bl PUE POOMESOY e 1ar

BUIPNIU] SAUSILY UIEIEPOOM SO _w
sasseduroiua afuel JAUESSIEUIY AU] 'a5Eq WESLD JJ alym MepuRs O} uajippe - l.'.. |.".

SINOJDI/LIRIBPOAN - SBLISIL)]

“UONBLUOJUI SaLMNY 1O} JBHIR)R) JNOA O}
1321 358314 "uoneBa pannbas Sy yum Ao JLUop SMOpULW A1euInO
UL SIIUB]SLLINDND J0) MOPLIW CBIS3 BN € 1310 NP AJUBSSIeUaYy

adezss a4 »

]

£ - SNOLLID H5WS

I

QT EH YT QAAANAIN



RECEIVED 24 FEB 2016

“." -ha-f‘f’h"" - ” 'y . .
f""‘“f’ fﬁ'} "‘j\ ‘*f o "ka h“@:: r-ﬁ' i R

B 8. 3
Page 177




/

RECEIVED 14 FEB 201

\‘h\jl;,.ln..l{h"‘ (e

fla- A L

1 L I’;‘\h - (.-j

Page 178



Agenda Item 7b

i gy v

C O

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Ii\pplication for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00126/FUL

I To: Alan John Redpath 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

With reference to your application validated on 24th February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Replacement windows and door

at: 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 21st April 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Slgned: ciasiansissesnssnsi s
Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.qov.uk/online-applications/

Page 179



o gy St

7 1 (] %
COUNCI

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00126/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused

RENAISSANCE Brochures Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The application contravenes Policy BE1 and G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms
of the Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information
regarding the condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed
replacement windows including their frame material and the design of the replacement door would
result in having an harmful effect upon the special historic and architectural character of the grade B
listed building. Policy provisions contained within the emerging Local Development Plan would not
alter this recommendation.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit htip://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 180



Agenda Item 7c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00126/FUL
APPLICANT : Alan John Redpath
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Replacement windows and door
LOCATION: 62 Castle Street
Duns
Scottish Borders
TD11 3BE
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused

RENAISSANCE Brochures Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused
Photos Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland: No response at the time of writing.

Berwickshire Civic Society: Object. Recommend that the windows and doors should be repaired
instead of replaced and the use of secondary glazing should be investigated. The character of the
house would be lost through the use of uPVC windows and removal of the existing door.

Community Council: No response at the time of writing.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Consolidated Local Plan 2011:

BE1 - Listed Buildings

BE4 - Conservation Areas

G1 - Quality Standards for New Development

Proposed Local Development Plan 2013:
EP7 - Listed Buildings

EP9 - Conservation Areas

PMD2 - Quality Standards

Page 181



Other Considerations;

o] Supplementary Planning Guidance on: Replacement Windows and Doors 2015

o] Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Windows 2010

o Managing Change in the Historic Environment : Doors 2010

o] Historic Environment Scotland - Information for Historic Building Owners: External Timber
Doors 2008

Recommendation by - Scott Shearer (Planning Officer) on 20th April 2016

This is a joint report which relates to Listed Building Consent and Planning Applications 16/00125/LBC and
16/00126/FUL. The final recommendations are, however, particular to each separate application.

The application site, No 62 Castle Street forms part of a terraced row of two and tree storey buildings in
Duns. The building dates from the early 19th century and is finished with dressed whinstone front wall and a
slated roof. The building is listed grade B and is located within the towns conservation area. Listed Building
and Planning permission is sought to replace seven sash and case windows on the front elevation (including
the two dormer windows) with wood effect uPVC windows and install a new oak boarded front door.

This application has been submitted following a Provisional Enquiry early in 2016.
Assessment

All existing windows which are proposed to be replaced are single glazed and timber framed with a six over
six glazing pattern. The H&DO advises that the existing windows and door has retained their original design.
Although not abundantly clear from the brochure extract which has been submitted, from looking at the
Listed Building Consent application form and accessing the remainder of the "Renaissance Window
Systems" brochure online, it is understood that the uPVC framed windows will be double glazed with a
sliding sash opening mechanism.

The Councils development plan polices provision for developments which affect listed buildings seek to
ensure that proposals do not spoil their historic and architectural character. The Council has adopted policy
provision for replacement windows and doors within listed buildings and in conservation areas which is
contained within our Replacement Windows and Doors SPG. The policies which have been formed have
taken cognisance of national policy provision and recommendations. The adopted policy for grade B listed
buildings recommends that windows and doors should only be replaced when it is proven through a
condition survey that the existing windows and door are beyond repair. No such survey has been submitted
to accompany these applications therefore this policy requirement is not satisfied by these proposals.

In the event that the existing windows and doors are not repairable it is recommended that existing windows
and doors should generally be replaced on a like for like basis. There may be potential to introduce double
glazed windows however this is only agreeable when it has been proven that the existing windows are not
repairable and the replacement units match the originals in all other manner which includes frame material
and proportion.

While it is debatable if the existing windows and door found on the front elevation of No 62 Castle Street are
in fact original, what is important is the informed view of the H&DO and HES that the existing windows and
doors are believed to retain the appearance of the likely original openings and they positively contribute to
the character of the listed building. The introduction of uPVC framed windows and a new door design
explicitly fails to satisfy policy provision for replacement windows and doors on grade B listed buildings. In
this case, the introduction of uPVC window frames which appear to be much thicker that the size of the
frames on the timber windows along with the loss of the traditionally designed "Kelso" style door results in
having an harmful effect upon the character and appearance listed buildings and therefore cannot be
supported.

Page 182



The building is located outwith the prime frontage zone of the conservation area so policy does allow for
uPVC framed windows to be introduced however questions would probably still remain regarding the size of
the window frames and design of the door. It is acknowledged that some neighbouring buildings on Castle
Street have eroded some traditional fenestration patterns and door designs by changing to more modern
openings. This row itself contains varying architecture with this building seen as a pair alongside the
adjoining B listed No 1 Teindhillgreen which has retained timber windows and a "Kelso" style door.
Fundamentally because this is a grade B listed building in its own right, local plan policy provision does not
make an allowance for this property to be altered in a way in which some other unlisted building's on this
street have been.

Through the course of the application, the applicant has refused an approach to amend their proposals to
allow the development to comply with policy. The recommendation that uPVC windows would not comply
with policy was provided to the applicant in a response to their Provisional Enquiry 16/00004/PREAPP. The
application has also been considered against the emerging Local Development Plan where the proposal
would continue to fail to satisfy policy provision for developments which affect Listed Buildings.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The application contravenes Policy BE1 and G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms of the
Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information regarding the
condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed replacement windows including
their frame material and the design of the replacement door would result in having an harmful effect upon
the special historic and architectural character of the grade B listed building. Policy provisions contained
within the emerging Local Development Plan would not alter this recommendation.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The application contravenes Policy BE1 and G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan 2011 and the terms
of the Replacement Windows and Doors SPG in that the proposals lack sufficient information
regarding the condition of the existing windows and door and the design of the proposed
replacement windows including their frame material and the design of the replacement door would
result in having an harmful effect upon the special historic and architectural character of the grade B
listed building. Policy provisions contained within the emerging Local Development Plan would not
alter this recommendation.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 183



Page 184



Agenda Item 7d

Berwickshire Civic Society
Berwickshire Civic Society is a Registered Charity No. SC004171

Planning Department,
Scottish Borders Council
Newton St. Boswells 14™ March, 2016.

Dear Sirs,

Planning Application No 16/00126/FUL
Replacement windows and door
62 Castle Street, Duns

The Berwickshire Civic Society aims to protect and enhance the built and natural
environment of Berwickshire, and to this end we comment from time to time on
planning applications, particularly those relating to properties which are listed or in
conservation areas.

We refer to the above application and note that 62 Castle Street, whilst not a listed
building, is in the Duns Conservation Area.

We object to the proposal to replace existing timber windows and doors with new
uPVC ones. uPVC does not replicate the finer detailing of traditional timber windows
and doors and so the essential character of this attractive house will be lost. We
recommend instead that the original windows and front door are repaired and made
draught-proof, and secondary glazing installed.

There are companies that would do a quick and efficient job of repairing and draught-
proofing the windows, and good secondary glazing could provide better sound
proofing and nearly the same energy efficiency as double glazing. If well maintained
this solution could be more durable than uPVC windows.

Y ours faithfully,

Berwickshire Civic Society

PLEASE REPLY TO:
secretary@berwickshirecivicsociety.org

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7e

LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 16/00019/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 16/00126/FUL
Development Proposal: Replacement windows and door
Location: 62 Castle Street Duns Scottish Borders TD11 3BE
Applicant: Alan John Redpath

**New LDP 2016**

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the
efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and
resources such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable
construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide
emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this target met
through the use of low or zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling
and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and
the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at
an early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in
place for long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and
spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of
the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this
need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,

Page 187



where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

[) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing
street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated
footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

qg) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to
the site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those
used for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending
preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some
cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision
may be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the
amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or
replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:
This policy is relevant to most policies within the Plan.
The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders

Page 188




Green Space

Landscape and Development
Placemaking and Design

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

Replacement Windows and Doors

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Greenspace

Housing

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)
Sustainable Urban Drainage

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Waste Management

Policy EP7: Listed Buildings

The Council will support development proposals that conserve, protect, and enhance
the character, integrity and setting of Listed Buildings.

Internal or external alterations and extensions to Listed Buildings, or new
developments within their curtilage, must meet the following criteria:

a) be of the highest quality,

b) respect the original structure in terms of setting, scale, design and materials,
whilst not inhibiting contemporary and/or innovative design;

¢) maintain, and should preferably enhance, the special architectural or historic
quality of the building;

d) demonstrate an understanding of the building’s significance.

All applications for Listed Building Consent or applications affecting the setting of
Listed Buildings will be required to be supported by Design Statements.

New development that adversely affects the setting of a Listed Building will not be
permitted.

The demolition of a Listed Building will not be permitted unless there are overriding
environmental, economic, social or practical reasons. It must be satisfactorily
demonstrated that every effort has been made to continue the present use or to find
a suitable new use.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards
Policy PMD5 Infill Development

Page 189




Policy IS15 Radio Telecommunications
Other Environment Promotion and Protection policies.

Scottish Planning Policy

Scottish Historic Environment Policy

Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Replacement Windows and Doors

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Archaeology

Policy EP9: Conservation Areas

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation
Area which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special
architectural or historic character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This
should accord with the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and
boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and
landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in
Principle Consent.

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted
building within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of
appropriate proposals for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location,
physical form or state of disrepair, and

b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character,
and

c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually
or as part of the townscape.

In cases a) to c¢) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the
replacement building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has
been agreed.

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or
for demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design

Page 190




principles and design concepts of the proposals.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

Policy IS15 Radio Telecommunications

Other Environmental Promotion and Protection policies

Scottish Planning Policy

Scottish Historic Environment Policy

Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Placemaking and Design

Replacement Windows and Doors

Shop fronts and shop signage

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Conservation Areas
Placemaking and Design

Other considerations-

Scottish Planning Policy

SPG on Replacement Windows and Doors

Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Windows 2010
Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Doors 2010

Historic Environment Scotland- Information for Historic Building Owners: External Timber
Doors 2008

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8a

) Notice of Review

Scottish
‘44l Borders
-~ COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
{SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008
IMPORTANT: Eai

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name [MrH Armistrong | Name [RMArchiieciure [id 1
Address [ZMamore Drive, Farfston. | Address [Eloomileid, Healherllo Park, SeIkITk. -]
Postcode [TD4 6JF ] Postcode [TE7 5AL ]
Contact Telephone 1 : Contact Telephone 127327

Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2|74

Fax No Fax No

E-maif* L 1 E-mail* [rmarchitectre+@gma.som ]

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through

this representative:

Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? |:|
Planning authority {Scotin Borders Gounst ]
Planning authority’s application reference number [1t0ie2rep i
Site address [Garden Ground of Lindistarne, Gatisnaids, T08 HH ]
Description of proposed |Erection of dwellinghouse and garage
development
Date of application [502zsts : | Date of decision (if any) [1smszs ' ]

Page 1 of 4

Page 193



Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1.  Application for planning pemission (including householder application) D

Application for planning permission in principle m

3.  Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenl:l
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning
condition) D
4.  Application for approval of matters specified in condltions

Reasons for seeking review

Refusal of application by appointed officer m
2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period aliowed for determination of I:I
the application
3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer D

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by ohe or a combination of procedures, such as: written
submissions; the holding of ane or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case,

Pliease indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures} you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions |:|
2. One or more hearing sessions %
3. Site inspection

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure lﬁ

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection
In the event that the Local Review Body decldes to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Y No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? D
2 Isit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? D

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site

inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Page 194



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

Stata here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form,

See attached document,

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the Ylf‘l Ier
determination on your application was made?

if yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Page 3 of 4

Page 195



Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidenca which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

Locality Plan

Dwg Ref: 15-020/SD/001 Rev B - Site Plan as Proposed.

Access Appraisal dated 04/16 by Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation Ltd
Andrew Carrie response to RPS comment dated 18/05/16

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documenis and any nofice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority untif such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
YOUr review:

Full completion of all paris of this form
Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. pians and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earller
consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as sgt ou : and in the supporting documents.

Signed

Date | nli-;‘/' % !

The Completed form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newfown St. Boswelis TD6 0SA.

Page 4 of 4

Page 196



Planning Application Ref: 16/00162/PPP
Proposed House Plot

Land adjacent to Lindisfame
Gattonside

Appeal Statement to Local Review Body

With reference to the above Planning Application we write to request a review of the
reasons for refusal which we believe to be flawed.

The Case Officers Planning Report has established that the site is suitable for
development being located within the settlement boundary and can be suitably
accessed from the adjacent public road.

Itis the views of the Roads Planning Service in respect of The Loan that that have
influenced the Case Officers decision to refuse.

We are of the opinion that these views are based on a preconceived notion by the
RPS that The Loan is unsuitable for additional traffic. This is clearly evident in the
subjective nature of their consultation response in which there is no governmental
guidance or knowledge base against which the views are expressed. Informal
advice from the RPS revealed that these views were based on historic consultations
which would have been made at a time when there was a very different approach to
street design. This was a view that has not been shared historically by the Planning
Committee.

By stark contrast, the Applicant has commissioned an access appraisal from Traffic
Consultant Andrew Carrie in which thers is a professional, broad and
comprehensive assessment of The Loan and the wider aspects of the local roads
network against cument Governmental policies and planning guidance. The
appraisal concludes that The Loan characterises an Historic streetscape which is
the preferred approach in order to reduce traffic speeds to improve overall safety. It
is also established that the perceived increase in traffic movement on The Loan
created by the development would be negligible. This is due In part to the remote
location of The Loan in relation to the application site and the public through road
from which access to the application site is taken. This provides an altemative
gccess and egrass route to the west of the village which would result in less
frequent & occasional use of The Loan. It should also be recognised that the
application site is potentially noted as being the last remaining site deemed suitable
for development along this access route which is within the existing settlement
boundary and outwith the Conservation Area. As such no pracedent would be
created by allowing this plot to be deveioped.

It is of significant importance that no objections in this regard have been made by
the local residents of Gattonside, and mora significantly, those served by The Loan
itself.

The only direct comparison that can be referred to in assessing the previous
planning history is the approval made by the Planning Committee in 2000s for a
new house in the garden of Springbank, which the historic RPS advice refers to.
The view of RPS was not shared by The Planning Committee and the decision to
approve was taken in favour of the applicant. What is a significant point of note in
this regard is that this property takes direct access from The Loan which results in

Page 197



the continual use of this road by the occupants. By comparison and as noted above,
the applicant's site only makes occasional use of The Loan and is a reason why we
do not deem the historic RPS advice is wholly relevant to this application.

Further investigation of relevant planning history has revealed that there are other
instances of development accessed directly off The Loan that have or have been
likely to result in increased car ownership which have been supported by the RPS.
This would give rise to our opinion that the views of the RPS, and in some respects
the Planning Department are inconsistent, since they are choosing to differentiate
between the perceived impact of new housing development and house
enlargement. We would deem both of thase to constitute “development” which can
lead to increased car ownership on significant projects such as that at “Glenview”
(05/00006/FUL).

We do note that there was a further response by the RPS to the access appraisal
prepared by the Appellants. Those further points raised by the RPS were again
clarified and corvacted by the applicants' Traffic Consultant where it was deemed
that an incorrect interpretation of the Governmental Guidance had been made.
However, the Report of Handling, upon which the decision must be based, does not
acknowledge or address this latest exchange, so the declslon, as issued, was
based on an incomplete assessment of the planning merits of the application.

We would therefore contend that there has been an evident lack of understanding
throughout in the views of the RPS, in the application of cumrent design guidance,
and of the impact of the development on The loan, given the choice of routes
available to likely destinations.

We also wish to highlight the benefits of the proposed development that creates a
much needed passing place along the adjacent public road as it leaves the
seftliement boundary. Full consolidation of the edge of the existing public road will
take place at this point. This is presently in a very poor state of repair and will be
undertaken by the applicant, In effect, this will remove this burden from the Council
and allow the necessary stabilisation works to be implemented much earier than
could be expected.

We also wish to comment on the views expressed by the RPS in relation to the
recent farm steading/holiday cottage development at Gattonside Mains and wish to
clarify that there is still a working farm operating at the site, although the “removal of
farm traffic” was mentioned as a justification for the support of the RPS in this
approval.

In summary, we would highlight the following points in support of the examination of
our submission to the Local Review Body

» The conclusions of the Access Appraisal from the Traffic Consultant which shows The
Lean to demonstrate the characteristics encouraged by current Governmental & Planning
Guidance,

s A negligible increase in traffic movement on The Loan

» The subjective nature of the views expressed by the RPS without assessment against the
current Governmental and Planning Guidance.

¢ Report of Handling offers an incomplete assessment of the planning merits.

Page 198



The historic support of the Planning Committea against the advice of the RPS to new
housing developmant on The Loan.

Inconsistent approach from the RPS & Planning Department to “development” on The
Loan.

Last remaining development site within the cument settlement boundary outwith the
Conservation Area therefore avoiding any possible precadent.

Alternative access/egress road to the west of the application site.
No recorded accidents on The Loan.

No objections from local residents including those on The Loan.
Application site and access deemed suitable for development.

Further road safety & consolidation measures to be implemented by the applicant.

We trust the Local Review Body will find the foregoing information to be in order
and believe this to give adsquate justification to our submission.

Page 199



Page 200



LINDISFARNE, THE LOAN,
GATTONSIDE

ERECTION OF DWELLING HOUSE

AND GARAGE
Planning Application 16/00162/PPP

ACCESS APPRAISAL

APRIL 2016

CARRIE

PO Box 2070, Livingston EH54 0EG
Tel 07798 646844

www.acarrie.net

Email: ac@acarrie.net

page 201 Registered in Scotland No 414163



CONTENTS

| INtrodUCHION ...eornieccriini et
2. Surrounding Road Network......cccoccecrreereemriensinecseeerieenns
3. Previous Planning Applications........ccecvriveiniecricnneennnne,
4, Site ACCESS JUNCHION ovvveieeiive et cre e e eeeas
TR 11T I o T 1 O S DRV URRSUPPRN
6.  ARErnative ROULE ..cccceerecieecciirieecniir s secs s en e e
7. CUrrent PONCY ..oovvevceierrecircecreesrreecsreecrrnnsesenersanssne e sraae
8. Traffic IMPaCt..corerceireiirrecce e eve e
9. Road Safety ..o
10, CoNCIUSIONS ..coveieviiciecct et st s
APPENDICES

Roads Service Response of 8 March 2015
TRICS Trip Generation Data

Traffic Count 8 April 2016

Executive Summary

Page 202

......................

.....................................................

Appendix A
Appendix B

Appendix C



CARRIE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this Access Appraisal is to assist decision makers to understand
and evaluate the proposal for a house within garden ground at Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, in terms of its impact on the transport network in this area.
Decision makers, in this context, means not only the appropriate technical
officials in the Roads Authority, but also appointed representatives of people
who live or work near the proposed development, and who may therefore
have an interest in the proposals.

This report first summarises the nature of the proposed development, and the
road and transport network in the vicinity of the site, and the general
operation of the road network.

Section 3 examines previous relevant planning applications in the area, before
Section 4 goes on to examine the suitability of the site access in terms of
layout, visibility splays etc.

Section 5 then examines The Loan in detail, particularly width and visibility,
and the availability of passing places. Section 6 then considers the route past
the site itself, from Gattonside past Gattonside Mains Farm and on to Pavilion
Farm, noting that this is a quicker and more attractive route to Galashiels from
this part of the village.

In Section 7, this report examines current policy on street design, including
Scottish Planning Policy, the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance
“Placemaking and Design”, and The Scottish Government policy set out in
Designing Streets, all of which encourage a balance between “place” and
“movement”, rather than the standards-based approach which has been in
place nationally for at least the last 40 years. This section demonstrates that
The Loan is an example of a historic street where natural features control
speeds and driver behaviour, and reflects many of the principles of current
street design policy.

Section 8 goes on to demonstrate how much traffic the proposed development
would add, during both peak periods and over the whole day. This is
compared with existing traffic flows, and shown to be a negligible difference.

Section 9 then examines the road accident record in Gattonside, and shows
that there have been no injury accidents in the whole town in the 10 years
leading up to December 2014. This would suggest that road users are
exercising the appropriate care in negotiating the historic road layout, and it is
unlikely that the proposed development would exacerbate that situation

This examination shows that the development will have little impact on the
operation of the surrounding road network.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 3

Page 203



Andrew

ARRIE
Trafiic: & Trarsportation Ltd

Introduction
1.1 Mr H Armstrong has submitted an application to Scottish Borders Council to

construct a new dwelling house at Lindisfarne, Gattonside. The Planning
Application reference is 16/00162/PPP. The location of the site is shown in
Figure 1.

i3
-.‘_C‘ul.nge! W‘oodlln%_ Fan

';.=Clﬁiuu'gl.x§_.:
TR
i

1.2 In a memorandum dated 8 March, the Council’s Roads Planning Service have
raised a concern about road safety associated mainly, it would appear, with
the existing width and alignment of The Loan, which accesses the site.

1.3 The Applicant appointed Andrew Carrie Traffic and Transportation Ltd (ACTT)
in April 2016, to consider the Council’s concerns and prepare an access
appraisal. ACTT have considered the application and have also visited the site.

1.4 Further information may be available on various aspects assessed in this report
and can be made available on request.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 4

Page 204



CARRIE

1.  The Surrounding Road Network

2.1 Gattonside lies on the north side of the River Tweed, opposite Melrose on the
south side. The village is served by the B6360 classified road which runs
parallel to the river. To the west, that route joins the B6374 at a bridge over
the river, and continues west into Galashiels.

2.2 The site lies on the north-west edge of Gattonside, within the urban boundary.
It will be accessed from an unclassified road which continues west past
Gattonside Mains to join the B6374 at Pavilion Farm. To the east, that route
turns south as it enters the village, and becomes “The Loan” as it continues to
join the B6360 at a priority junction.

2.3 Within Gattonside, these roads are subject to a 30 miles per hour speed limit,
although traffic speeds on The Loan, and many other historic streets, are
significantly lower.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 5

Page 205



CARRIE

3.  Previous Planning Applications

3.1 There are three proposals which are of relevance to consideration of access to
this current proposal.

3.2 First, planning consent was granted many years ago, for a residential
development in Monkswood Road. This development commenced shortly
after approval, and has proceeded since then, albeit at a relatively slow rate.
Because a material start has been made, there is no time limit on how long
completion of the full development might take.

3.3 Access to that development was to be solely from Monkswood Road. A link
exists, however, from the north end of The Loan, to the end of Monkswood
Road, and is used by construction traffic and by other traffic accessing the “top
road” to Galashiels.

3.4 Second, a planning application was made in 2002, for a single house
development in the garden of Springbank, in The Loan itself. The Council’s
Roads Planning Service raised the same concerns, and recommended refusal
of that application for the same reasons. The application was reported to
committee with a recommendation for refusal on that ground, but the
Committee determined to approve that application. That house has now been
built.

3.5 The third application was made in 2011, for a development of 2 residential
units and 2 holiday let cottages at Gattonside Mains Farm, between Gattonside
and Pavilion Farm on that “top road”. In that case, Roads Planning Service
responded that “While | have no objections in principle to the redevelopment
of this farm steading, | do have some reservations regarding the proposed
access into the site, and with the suitability of the minor public road to cater
with the increased traffic, albeit a generally small increase. Provided these
points are suitably addressed, ! will not object to this application.”

3.6 The same response clarified the works required to address these points as “/
recommend the existing areas of soft verge where the vehicular traffic currently
pass be properly upgraded in tar to an agreed specification. To improve
visibility and road safety at the junction with the road to Housebyres a short
section of hedge/shrubbery needs to be removed.”

3.7 It is notable that there was no mention of traffic impact on The Loan, in
respect of that larger development.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 6

Page 206



CARRIE

Traffic & Trassportation Ltd

4. Site Access Junction

4.1 The proposal is for a single house, accessed from the unclassified road to the
north. The proposed access layout has been accepted as satisfactory, and is
therefore not examined in detail in this report.

4.2 For completeness, however, it has been agreed that the new access point will
form a new intervisible passing place on the road. This new passing place will
lead to an improvement in road safety, and the necessary dimensions have
been specified and agreed

4.3 Similarly, the necessary visibility splays have been agreed at 2 metres by 45
metres along the main road, and these can be achieved. Photograph 1 shows
the site frontage, with the access point indicated by the amow, when
approaching from the east, while photograph 2 shows the access when
approaching from the west.

_-'f ? o

rit
—_

Photo 1- Proposed Access Approach from East

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 7

Page 207



ndrew

ARRIE

Tealfic & Transportation Lt

Photo 2 — Proposed Access Approach from West

4.4

The Council’s Roads Planning Service response of 8 March confirms that
access to the site itself is not a concern.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside

Access Appraisal — Page 8
Page 208



Andrev

Tratfic & Transporfatios Ltd

5. The Loan

5.1 The Council’s Roads Planning Service response of 8 March states that “This
route (i.e. The Loan) is a very narrow, constrained and largely single file road,
with restricted visibility sightlines in either direction due to buildings and walls
bounding each side of the road. There is a sign at the bottom of this road
stating that it is “unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles”. Furthermore, The Loan
is also very steep and winding, with very limited passing opportunities
resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they meet.”

5.2 it is acknowledged that, in common with most roads in historic settlements,
The Loan has a historic layout which does not meet recent road design
standards. The route has been examined along its length, and the main points
are set out below.

5.3 Approaching from the north, past the application site, traffic first encounters a
bend to the right, with two private accesses on the left. This bend is shown in
Photograph 3, which shows that forward visibility is limited, so traffic speeds
are very low.

Photo 3 — Bend on Entry to Village

5.4 Leaving that bend, the road turns south, and descends into the village, entering
the 30 miles per hour speed limit as shown in Photograph 4. There is a
junction on the left, where traffic can join from the northern end of
Monkswood Road, although turning left into that road, or right out, is very
tight and needs two “cuts” in larger vehicles.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page &

Page 209



CaRRiE

Tratfic B Yransportation Lid

Photo 4 - Entry to 30 mph Speed Limit

5.5 This photograph also shows the refuse bins left adjacent to that junction (the
visit was on a Tuesday, which is bin collection day). The collection vehicle
normally arrives from the north, past the Application site, and descends into
the village along The Loan.

5.6 Moving southwards again, there is a slight bend in the road on entering the 30
mph limit, with railings on the right hand side, although those do not
especially restrict visibility. There is a passing place on the left and a short
flight of steps from the end of the second cul-de-sac in Monkswood Road, as
shown in Photograph 5.

5.7 The photograph shows that forward visibility at this points extends for some
distance down the hill. The driveway on the right, just beyond the railings, is
the access to the new property at Springbank, granted planning consent in
2002, as discussed earlier in this report.

Photo 5 — The Loan Passing End of Monkswood Road Cul-de-sac

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 10

Page 210



Cakrrie

Traffic & Transportation Ltd

5.8 Continuing downhill, The Loan then bends to the right, with a private road
branching off to the left. There is a “Slow” marking on the road, as shown in
Photograph 6. There is an access on the right, and a wider verge on the left
just at the junction, both of which are used as passing places.

Photo 6 — The Loan at Junction

5.9 The Loan then continues to bend to the right, between stone walls and
buildings on both sides, as shown in Photograph 7. Over this short length of

approximately 25 metres, approaching vehicles are not intervisible, so could
meet between passing places.

Photo 7 — The Loan south of Junction

5.10  After a short distance (just alongside the wheelie bins visible in Photograph 7),
visibility along The Loan opens up again to the next bend, where there is again

Lindisfarne, Gaftonside Access Appraisal - Page 11

Page 211



CARRIE

Traffic & Transportation Lid

a “Slow” marking on the road, as shown in Photograph 8. There is a wide
access on the right, which is used as a passing place.

Photo 8 — The Loan at Bend to Left

511 Photograph 9 shows that bend from the corner of the white cottage, and shows
the passing place on the right.

Photo 9 — Bend Showing Passing Place

512  leaving that bend, The Loan again opens up slightly before bending to the
right, as shown in Photograph 10. There is an area used as a passing place on
the left.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 12

Page 212



CARRIE

Tralfic & Transportation Ltd

Photo 10 = The Loan south of bend

5.13  Continuing dowrhill, The Loan then passes between two buildings as it bends
to the right, as shown in Photograph 11. The Loan is narrowest at this point, at
approximately 3 metres. There are two access points before the narrow point
which could be used as passing places if necessary. The road also widens after
it passes between the buildings, providing another passing place opportunity
on the right hand bend.

Photo 11 - The Loan at its narrowest point

5.14  The road then bends back to the left, as shown in Photograph 12. The road
widens on the bend, and there is adequate space for two vehicles to pass.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 13

Page 213



CARRIE

Traffiz & Transportation Lt

Photo 12 — The Loan at Bend to Left

5.15 Leaving that bend, the visibility then opens up again, to the junction with The
Loan, as shown in Photograph 12. There is a passing place for traffic entering
The Loan from the main road, and a “Slow” marking on the road for traffic
going uphill. There is also a sign indicating the route is “unsuitable for heavy
goods vehicles”

Photo 12 ~ The Loan Approaching B6360 Junction

5.16  The final consideration is junction visibility at the junction where The Loan
joins the B6360. Photograph 13 shows the visibility available to the right along
the main road, while Photograph 14 shows visibility to the left. These
demonstrate that, notwithstanding the presence of parked cars on the main
road, there is adequate visibility in both directions.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 14

Page 214



CaRRiE

Tratfic & Transportafion Ltd

Photo 14 - Visibility to Left at The Loan / B6360 Junction

5.17  The Council have expressed a concern about approval of this application
setting a precedent for future incremental development, and hence traffic on
The Loan. In practice, however, this application is perhaps the only remaining
viable plot served by The Loan, within the settlement area.,

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 15

Page 215



CARRIE

6. Alternative Route

6.1 The Council’s Roads Planning Service response of 8 March states that, in
addition to this route via The Loan, “there is an alternative, but significantly
longer (secondary) access route to the west of the proposed site, but not
without its own roads issues. It is a single lane road with limited passing
opportunities, and has numerous visibility impingements along its entire length.
While the proposed passing opportunity associated with this application would
result in some road safety gain for motorists using the public road in that
vicinity, this would not help with the tortuous part of The Loan serving the
bulk of the housing.”

6.2 First, for traffic between Galashiels and the northern part of Gattonside,
including the proposed site and the area currently under development at
Monkswood, this route is significantly shorter and quicker than using The Loan
and the B6360 through Gattonside. It would be erroneous to suggest that all
traffic to and from the proposed development would use The Loan.

6.3 Second, although the above response suggests that this road is unsuitable for
additional development traffic, it should be noted that Roads Planning Service
expressed no such concerns, in principle, when consulted in 2011 on the
proposal for development of 2 residential units and 2 holiday let cottages at
Gattonside Mains Farm.

6.4 In other words, there were no fundamental objections to these 4 units, on that
same road. This is not consistent with the suggestion that the same road
cannot accommaodate the negligible amount of traffic to and from the single
house development subject of the current application.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 16
Page 216



CARRIE

7.  Current Policy

7.1 The Council’s Roads Planning Service have raised the same concerns, in
respect of The Loan, as they did in 2002. However, street design policy has
moved on significantly in the intervening years, following research of driver
behaviour and necessary standards, and a desire to “de-standardise” street
design and enhance the sense of “place”.

Scottish Planning Policy June 2014

7.2 Scottish Planning Policy (June 2014) states in paragraph 280 that “Along with
sound choices on the location of new development, appropriate street layout
and design are key to achieving the policy principles at paragraph 270. The
design of all new development should follow the placemaking approach set
out in this SPP and the principles of Designing Streets, to ensure the creation of
places which are distinctive, welcoming, adaptable, resource efficient, safe
and pleasant and easy to move around and beyond.”

Supplementary Planning Guidance “Placemaking and Design”

7.3 In response to the Scottish Government’s publication of their National Policy
Statement for Scotland “Designing Places” in 2001, Scottish Borders Council
have Approved and Adopted their own Supplementary Planning Guidance
“Placemaking and Design”. This SPG states “This guidance is structured round
the process of placemaking and design. It is intended for use by all who are
involved in new development in the Borders as a point of reference and as a
basis for the planning, design and communication of new development
proposals, no matter how large or small, and will be used as a material
consideration in assessing planning applications.”

7.4 Section 4.3 sets out placemaking & design principles, and states that “in order
to create an integrated addition to an existing building group/settlement, new
development should always seek to tie in with existing road and footpath links.
By identifying the key desire lines (most direct routes that people are likely to
use) through or near to a site, these key routes can help shape the layout and
anchor it into the surrounding area. The key pedestrian desire lines should be
identified and integrated into the layout.”

7.5 It also acknowledges that “Typically throughout the Scottish Borders, streets
are often characterised by buildings arranged in a very organic way, close knit
with a staggered building line and a range of double fronted, single fronted
and gable fronted buildings. This variety and density of buildings adds richness
and character. New development should strive to use the appropriate balance
of variety and repetition in the built frontage to create continuity and rhythm
and a clear sense of identity.”

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 17

Page 217



CARRIE

7.6 It continues “The creation of successful streets is the subject of national advice
and good practice currently represented in PAN 76: 'New Residential Streets'
by the Scottish Government. This is to be replaced by the forthcoming
'Designing Streets' publication which will set the Department for Transport's
'Manual for Streets' in the Scottish context.” (Note: Designing Streets was
published in February 2010, shortly after preparation of this SPG, and will be
discussed later in this report.)

7.7 The S5PG continues “The function of a street is for ‘traffic, the exchange of
goods, social exchange and communication’ (Spiro Kostof, 1992). Since the
advent of the motorcar and a subsequent move towards separating vehicles
from pedestrians, road design in modern development often focussed
excessively on the former of these functions: streets shaped by road
engineering with no consideration to the social function that they serve.”

7.8 “There is now a return to a more holistic view of streets and their role in civic
life, shaped by the activities around them, the people moving through them
and an overall reduction in vehicular dominance.”

7.9 These are fundamental principles which should not be overlooked.

7.10  Tuming to street geometry, the SPG states that “Reducing driver visibility
distances, through tight building lines and avoiding overly engineered straights
or curves, helps to reduce traffic speeds thus reducing vehicular dominance.
The geometry of the street can be fairly constrained as long as there is
sufficient access. A swept path analysis should be carried out confirm that the
largest vehicle (i.e. service/refuse vehicles) can be reasonably
accommodated.”

7.11 It continues “Shared surfaces, and removal or reduction of grade separation
(the conventional method of separating pedestrians and vehicles through an
upstand kerb) can help encourage responsible driving by a heightened sense
of risk. This helps calm traffic speeds naturally, facilitating the use of streets by
pedestrians and cyclists.”

7.12  These statements reflect the Council's adopted policy in considering the
design of new developments. Nevertheless, it is clear that the same
fundamental principles are applicable to existing streets, to assist integration of
new and existing built areas.

The Scottish Government — Designing Streets (February 2010)

713 In parallel, the Scottish Government’s policy manual “Designing Streets”
advocates a new approach to urban street design, encouraging a sense of
place, and reducing the “standard design” approach, and the priority
previously afforded to vehicles, at the expense of other road users.

7.14  Designing Streets states that it “marks a distinct shift, raising the importance of
street design issues from the subject of advice to that of policy.” It specifically
states that all previous road guidance and standards documents based on the

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 18

Page 218



7.15

7.16

7.7

7.18

7.19

7.20

CARRIE

principles of Design Bulletin 32, dating from 1977, are superseded, and makes
it clear that “information on principles, layout and street geometry which is not
consistent with Designing Streets should be revised. Designing Streets should
be adopted by all Scottish local authorities or should provide the basis for local
and site-specific policy and guidance.”

Designing Streets states that it is “national planning policy and its policies
should be taken into account by local authorities when determining planning
applications and producing guidance. Designing Places and Designing Streets
stand together as the two key design policy statements for Scotland.”

In 2014, the Society of Chief Officers of Transportation in Scotland (SCOTS)
published guidance as “The National Roads Development Guide” which gave
advice on the application of Designing Streets on a consistent basis (albeit
allowing for local variations in layout, materials etc).

Many local authorities have formally adopted Designing Streets and the
National Roads Development Guide, and some have produced their own
documents on street design, reflecting the application of those principles on a
local basis. While Scottish Borders Council have formally adopted its
counterpart “Designing Places” and have produced SPG as discussed earlier in
this report, they have not yet done so for Designing Streets. It is understood,
however, that they do apply the principles of both documents in the
consideration and approval of new developments.

Designing Streets draws a clear distinction in functional terms between roads
and streets as follows:

o “Roads are thoroughfares whose main function is to facilitate the
movement of motor traffic.

o Sireets have important public realm functions beyond those related to
motor traffic. They are typically lined with buildings and public spaces
and, whilst facilitation of movement is still a key function, they normaily
support a range of social, leisure, retail and commercial functions. All
thoroughfares within urban settings and rural boundaries should
normally be treated as streets. Reference should no longer be made to
road hierarchies based on terminology such as local distributor/local
access roads.”

Designing Streets states that “Most importantly, a multi-disciplinary approach,
full community engagement and a balanced appreciation of context and
function is fundamental to successful outcomes in such cases.”

Page 7 sets out 2 policies:

1. Street design must consider place before movement

2. Street design guidance, as set out in this document, can be a material
consideration in determining planning applications and appeals

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 19

Page 219



CARRIE

7.21 Importantly, the policy document states that “Providing for movement along a
street is vital, but it should not be considered independently of the street’s
other functions. The need to cater for motor vehicles is well understood by
designers, but the passage of people on foot and cycle has often been
neglected. Walking and cycling are important modes of travel, offering a more
sustainable alternative to the car, making a positive contribution to the overall
character of a place, public health, social interaction and to tackling climate
change through reductions in carbon emissions.”

7.22 It goes on to state that “Streets should no longer be designed by assuming
‘place’ to be automatically subservient to ‘movement’.” It continues “Good
street design demands that issues of place and movement are considered
together. The status of a street is dependent on its relative importance within a
network in terms of both these considerations, and its status should commonly
determine the design approach taken. It is only by considering both functions
that the right balance will be achieved, but the focus of street design should be
on creating a positive sense of place that is supported by an appropriate
movement pattern. Other than in the design of motorways and some other
inter-urban roads, it is seldom appropriate to focus solely on either place or
movement functions, even in streets carrying heavier volumes of traffic, such
as high streets”

7.23  Designing Streets suggests a range of traffic-calming measures, which act in
different ways:

o “Psychology and perception — play a strong part in influencing driver
behaviour. Street features and human activity can influence the speed at
which people choose to drive. Features likely to be effective include:

*  edge markings that visually narrow the road — speed reduction is
likely to be greatest where the edging is textured to appear
unsuitable on which to drive;

»  buildings in close proximity to the street;

*  reduced carriageway width;

= physical features in the carriageway;

= features associated with potential activity in, or close to, the
carriageway, such as pedestrian refuges;

= on-street parking, particularly when the vehicles are parked in
blocks on alternate sides of the street, either in echelon formation or

perpendicular to the carriageway;

= the types of land use associated with greater numbers of people, for
example shops; schools and places of work; and

* landscaping.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 20
Page 220



CARRIE

o  Street dimensions — can have a significant influence on speeds. Keeping
lengths of street between junctions short is particularly effective.

©  Reductions in forward visibility - are associated with reduced driving
speeds.

o Changes in priority/or no priority — at junctions. This can be used to
disrupt flow and therefore bring overall speeds down.

o  Physical features — involving vertical or horizontal deflection can be very
effective in reducing speed.

o Materials - can reduce speed by both visual perception and by physical
characteristics, such as cobbled surfaces.”

7.24 Designing Streets indicates that “Reductions in carriageway width are most
effective in reducing driving speed.”

7.25  Designing Streets encourages the inclusion of features to keep traffic speeds
low. Where possible, these should not be "add-ons" such as road humps, etc,
but natural-looking features such as limited forward visibility on bends and
corners, or variable road widths so that the driver sees a "series of places"
rather than "a strip of tarmac road".

7.26 While these principles are primarily intended to inform the design of new
streets, the document makes it clear that these same principles are applicable
to all roads in an urban setting (although the balance between “place” and
“movement” may vary).

7.27  Paradoxically, many historic villages throughout rural Scotland, although built
(as opposed to formally designed) hundreds of years ago, already display
precisely the measures and features of natural traffic calming, set out in current

policy.

7.28 The Loan is an example of such a street, where natural features control speeds
and driver behaviour, and where street design has come "full circle"

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 21

Page 221



CARRIE

Traffic Impact

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Normally, to predict the impact of a development, it is necessary to monitor
the operation of the road network during the following periods:-

(i) traffic peak conditions combined with the predicted generated
levels of traffic from the development at that time, and

(i) peak development generation combined with the road network
conditions at that time.

A residential development of the type proposed, would tend to demonstrate
most traffic movements during the morning and evening highway peak period.
Any full capacity assessment would therefore normally be based on the
number of vehicle trips generated during the busiest single hour within the
morning and evening peak periods.

In the case of single house developments, however, the number of trips during
any particular hour would be very low, so it is more appropriate to examine a
comparison of daily traffic.

In general, estimation of the probable vehicle trip attraction by a new
development is based on experience and on surveys undertaken at existing
similar developments, related to a common index.

Reference has been made to the Trip Rate Information Computer System
(TRICS) database Version 7.3.1), which contains data for surveys at site around
Great Britain. A search was made for similar sites, so that comparable trip rates
could be extracted, to be applied to the current proposal.

Daily Traffic Assessment
Table 8.1 below illustrates the calculated daily trip rates {7am to 7pm) and

amount of trips generated by the development of a single dwelling over the
day. The full TRICS output is included in Appendix B.

Daily Trip Rates

Land Use Trip Rates Vehicle Trips Trip Rates Vehicle Trips

In In Out Qut

1 Dwelling 2.520 3 2.363 2

8.7

Lindisfarne, Gattonside

Table 8.1 — Daily Development Trip Generation from TRICS

There will be a few trips overnight, bringing the total to approximately 6 trips
per house, on average.

Page 222

Access Appraisal - Page 22



CARRIE

8.8 No traffic counts have been carried on The Loan for the purpose of this
exercise, but it is evident that the road is not busy. During the two hours spent
examining and photographing the route for the purposes of preparing earlier
sections of this report, not one single vehicle passed the author, up or down
The Loan.

8.9 There are currently 23 houses along The Loan, from its junction with the
B6360 up and including the application site at Lindisfarne. Application of the
above trip rates results in the traffic flows shown in Table 8.2 below

Daily Trip Rates
Land Use Trip Rates Vehicle Trips Trip Rates Vehicle Trips
In In Out Out
23 Dwellings 2.520 58 2.363 54

Table 8.2 — Daily Development Trip Generation from TRICS
for Existing 23 Houses

8.10  This would result in a total of 112 trips over the 12 hour day, or an average of
2 per hour (1 in each direction).

8.11  The busiest single hour (from Appendix B) would be the morning peak hour,
when the two-way trip rate is 0.563 trips per house, which results in a two-
way trip generation of 13 vehicles during that hour. The evening peak hour,
with a two-way trip rate of 0.503 trips per house, results in a two-way trip
generation of 12 vehicles during that hour. The morning and evening peak
hours added together therefore account for approximately a quarter of daily
traffic movements.

8.12  The applicant carried out a traffic survey for the evening peak hour (4pm until
5pm) on Friday 8 April 2016, on The Loan at the junction with the main road
at the south end. The results of that survey are shown in Appendix C. This
showed that there were 12 traffic movements during that peak hour, which
accords closely with the trip generation calculated in the preceding paragraph.

Trip Distribution

8.13  As set out earlier, it is uniikely that all of these trip go in and out from the
B6360. Some, especially from the northern end, will use the quicker “top
road” past Gattonside Mains to access Galashiels. Trips to and from the
proposed development are even more likely to use that route, given the
location of the site.

8.14  All of these existing and additional traffic flows are very low, and it is therefore
considered that no detailed capacity analysis is required to demonstrate that
the network will adequately cater for the proposed development traffic.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 23
Page 223



CARRIE

8.15  The development results in an insignificant increase in traffic flows on either
route, and it would appear unreasonable to assume that such an insignificant

increase would be detrimental to capacity or road safety on the road network
under examination.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 24

Page 224



CARRIE

9.  Road Safety

9.1 Road accidents usually occur when one or more road users, whether a driver,
passenger, pedestrian or cyclist, makes an error in a decision relating to speed,
layout, or the position or movement of other road users. These decisions can
also be affected by external factors such as fatigue or alcohol. Vehicle failure
can also lead to road accidents. Such errors or failures can occur at any point
on the read network, although, in general, they tend to be focussed on points
where drivers have to make a number of decisions, such as junctions or bends.

9.2 For these reasons, road safety requires careful consideration and is not readily
guantifiable, in the same way that, for example, junction capacity or design
standards are. Road safety depends on many factors, of which road layout and
traffic flow are only two.

9.3 Accordingly, no guarantee can ever be given that any junction has been
designed in a way to prevent the occurrence of any road accident over its
design life. While it is regrettable, it is a simple fact of human nature that
drivers will make mistakes and that some of these will lead to road accidents.

9.4 Best practice, therefore, is to design any particular junction to suitable
standards, and ensuring that there are unlikely to be excessive queues which
might cause drivers to become impatient and accept gaps which might not
otherwise be suitable. Earlier sections have explained that the proposed site
access junction will be designed to suitable standards.

9.5 The accident record on the surrounding road network has also been
examined. The police are responsible for the collection of statistical data from
recorded injury traffic collisions. Police attending all injury accidents record
the relevant information in a standardised form, which has been agreed
nationally as covering the factors important to road safety. The collected
information includes the exact location of the incident, date and time of day,
the number and nature of all casualties, prevailing light and weather
conditions (for example dark / raining), road surface conditions (dry/wet), the
directions of vehicles and/or pedestrians involved, and any other possible
causation factors such as any vehicle skidding, excess speed, etc.

9.6 Although accident data is available over a longer period, it is generally
accepted that the most recent 3-year or 5-year period is the most appropriate
for examination, to determine current accident risk. Older accidents may have
had causation factors which have since been addressed, for example by the
introduction of new 20mph speed limits, enforcement of existing speed limits,
introduction of new pedestrian crossings, or traffic calming or junction
improvement schemes.

9.7 The injury accident for the ten year period ending December 2014 has been
examined, and indicates that there have been no injury accidents in the whole
of Gattonside during that time. It is understood that there have been no further
injury accidents during 2015.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal — Page 25
Page 225



9.8

99

9.10

Lindisfarne, Gattonside

CARRIE

It cannot be denied that, as the number of users of any length of road
increases, there is a greater likelihood that one or more of them will make an
error which may lead to an accident. It would be unreasonable to assume
otherwise. That in itself, however, does not constitute grounds to refuse any
application which might lead to increased traffic flows, however marginal — if
it did, it would effectively create a presumption against any increase in traffic
or pedestrian flows, at any junction, anywhere. The test that must be applied,
sensibly, is to ask whether any change in risk to road safety is real and / or
significant.

While focal and national policy aims to reduce the occurrence of injury
accidents all over the road network, the accident record in Gattonside, and
particularly on the roads leading to and from the application site, is not
indicative of a particular road safety difficulty on the main roads, or on The
Loan. This would suggest that road users are exercising the appropriate care in
negotiating the historic road layout, and it is unlikely that the proposed
development would exacerbate that situation.

It is notable that none of the residents along The Loan, who live with this
situation every day, have raised any material objection or any concerns about
road safety, arising from this development. This would perhaps support the
argument that drivers are more aware of their surroundings than an approach
based on “road standards” would suggest.

Page 226

Access Appraisal - Page 26



CARrRIE

10. Conclusions

10.1 The site lies on the north-west edge of Gattonside, within the urban boundary,
accessed from the south by The Loan, and from the west by an unciassified
road past Gattonside Mains. The Council’s Roads Service have advised that
The Loan is not suitable to carry additional traffic, so the application should be
refused.

10.2  There have been three previous planning applications in the area, the first of
which is in progress in Monkswood Road. The second is for a house in garden
ground in The Loan, which was approved against officers’ recommendation
(which was that planning consent should be refused on these same grounds).
The third is for 2 residential units and 2 holiday homes at Gattonside Mains,
which were recommended for approval, with no concern about the effect of
additional traffic on these same routes.

10.3  The proposed development access has been accepted as satisfactory, and will
also act as an additional passing place, with a consequent improvement in
road safety.

10.4  ACTT have examined The Loan along its length, and identified constraints and
passing opportunities. it is acknowledged that, in common with most roads in
historic settlements, The Loan has a historic layout which does not meet recent
road design standards.

10.5  ACTT have also considered the alternative route via Gattonside Mains, and
consider that this route is shorter for traffic from the northern part of the
village, going westwards and thus avoiding The Loan.

10.6  The Council’s Roads Planning Service have raised the same concerns, in
respect of The loan, as they did for the previous application in 2002.
However, street design policy has moved on significantly in the intervening
years, following research of driver behaviour and necessary standards, and
current Scottish Planning Policy, the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance “Placemaking and Design”, the Scottish Government’s policy
manual “Designing Streets”, and the National Roads Development Guide, all
advocate a new approach to street design, balancing place and movement.

10.7  The measures available facilitate this, include many features of historic streets,
such as buildings in close proximity to the street, reduced carriageway width,
physical features in the carriageway, on-street parking, or reductions in
forward visibility. Many historic villages throughout rural Scotland, although
built hundreds of years ago, already display precisely the measures and
features of natural traffic calming, set out in current policy, and The Loan is an
example of such a street.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 27

Page 227



CARRIE

10.8  ACTT have estimated the amount of traffic likely to be added by a single
house, and demonstrate that, even if all of that traffic was to use The Loan, it
would still be a negligible increase. In practice, traffic would use both
available routes, so the impact at any point on the road network would be
even lower.

10.9  The Council have expressed a concern about precedent, but in practice, this
application is for perhaps the only remaining viable plot served by The Loan,
within the settlement area.

10.10  The injury accident for the ten year period ending December 2014 has been
examined, and indicates that there have been no injury accidents in the whole
of Gattonside during that time. This would suggest that road users are
exercising the appropriate care in negotiating the historic road layout, and it is
unlikely that the proposed development would exacerbate that situation. It is
notable that none of the residents along The Loan, who live with this situation
every day, have raised any concerns about road safety, arising from this
development. This would perhaps support the argument that drivers are more
aware of their surroundings than an approach based on “road standards”
would suggest.

Lindisfarne, Gattonside Access Appraisal - Page 28

Page 228



ndrew

ARRIE

TraHic & Trensportation Lid

APPENDIX A

ROADS SERVICE RESPONSE OF
8 MARCH 2016

Page 229



REGULATORY Scottish

Borders
SERVICES COUNCIL

To: Development Management Service Date: 8/03/16
FAO C.CLARKE

From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: John Frater Ext: 5137 Ref: 16/00162/PPP

Subject: ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE AND GARAGE
GARDEN GROUND OF LINDISFARNE THE LOAN
GATTONSIDE

| consider the surrounding public road network to be unsuitable to cater for any new build development at
this proposed location. The main vehicular access to serve this site is via The Loan. This route is a very
narrow, constrained and largely single file road, with restricted visibility sightlines in either direction due to
buildings and walls bounding each side of the road. There is a sign at the bottom of this road stating that it
is “unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles”. Furthermore, The Loan is also very steep and winding, with very
limited passing opportunities resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they meet. To compound my
roads concerns even further, there is almost no on-street parking available on The Loan, and any parked
cars make the route even more torturous than it currently is. All of my concerns are particularly relevant
during inclement weather.

Although there is an alternative, but significantly longer {(secondary) access route to the west of the
proposed site, it is not without its own roads issues. It is a single lane road with limited passing
opportunities, and has numerous visibility impingements along its entire length. While the proposed passing
opportunity associated with this application would result in some road safety gain for motorists using the
public road in that vicinity, this would not help with the tortuous part of The Loan serving the bulk of the
housing.

It should be noted that the proposed new access driveway and parking/turning provision within the site
meets my requirements, and is not an issue of concern to me.

In the Planning Statement supporting this application, previous planning records are referred to. One is a
fairly historic application for a new house at ‘Wellbank' in The Loan. Of more relevance is the application for
a house next door to 'Wellbank’ at ‘Springbank’ in 2002. The Roads Planning Service (John Frater) strongly
recommended against the proposal expressing serious roads concerns and this view was supported by the
Head of Development Control. The application was approved by the Eildon Area Committee against
officer's recommendation. The other applications referred to for new houses at ‘Lower Greenwells’ and
opposite ‘Abbotscroft’ are of little significance, being served by different roads.

The Planning Statement also refers to observations of the Roads Planning Service (again John Frater) on
the application for a new vehicular access to serve ‘Rosebrae’ on The Loan. For that application, while
expressing cancern on the constrained nature of the road, we were able to support the proposal for a new
access which had the potential to help with parking deficiencies in the vicinity. It was recognised that the
constrained nature of the road helped enforce relatively slow traffic speeds, but there was no implication
given that this would be justification for new housing served by the road.

In summary and taking cognisance of all my points above, | recommend this application be refused in the
interests of road safety.

AJS

Page 230



Andrew

ARRIE

Traffic & Tsansportation Lid

APPENDIX B

TRICS TRAFFIC GENERATION DATA

Page 231



TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16
_ o - _ _ Page 1
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001

Calculation Reference: AUDIT-754001-160408-0440
TRIP RATE CALCULATION SELECTION PARAMETERS:

landUse  : 03 - RESIDENTIAL
Category  : A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED
VEHICLES

Selected regions and areas:
06 WEST MIDLANDS

SH  SHROPSHIRE 1 days

WK WARWICKSHIRE 1 days
07 YORKSHIRE & NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE

NY  NORTH YORKSHIRE 2 days
09 NORTH

CB CUMBRIA 1 days

This section displays the number of survey days per TRICS® sub-region in the selected sst

Filtering Stage 2 selection:

This data displays the chosen trip rate parameler and its selected range. Only sites that fall within the parameter range
are included in the trip rate calcuiation.

Parameter: Number of dwellings
Actual Range: 17 to 82 (units: )
Range Selected by User: 5 to 100 (units: )

Public Transport Provision:
Selection by: Include all surveys

Date Range: 01/01/08 to 30/09/15

This data displays the range of survey dates selected. Only surveys that were conducted within this date range are
included in the trip rate calculation.

Selected stirvey days:

Tuesday 1 days
Wednesday 1 days
Thursday 2 days
Friday 1 days

This data displays the number of selected surveys by day of the week.

Selected survey types:
Manual count 5 days

Directional ATC Count 0 days

This data displays the number of manual classified surveys and the number of unciassified ATC surveys, the total adding
up to the overall number of surveys in the selected set. Manual surveys are undertaken using staff, whilst ATC surveys are
undertaking using machines.,

Selected Locations:
Edge of Town 5

This data displays the number of surveys per main location category within the sefected set. The main location categories
consist of Free Standing, Edge of Town, Suburban Area, Neighbourhood Centre, Edge of Tawn Centre, Town Ceantre and

Not Known.,

Selected Location Sub Categories:

Residential Zone 3
No Sub Category 2

This data displays the number of surveys per location sub-category within the selected set. The location sub-categories
consist of Commercial Zone, Industrial Zone, Development Zone, Residential Zone, Retail Zone, Built-Up Zone, Village, Out
of Town, High Street and No Sub Category.

Page 232



'TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16
SIS ngaEE N ) . Page 2
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070 Livingston Licence No: 754001

Filtering Stage 3 selection:

Use Qass:
G 5 days

This data displays the number of surveys per Use (lass classification within the selected set. The Use Classes Order 2005
has been used for this purpose, which can be found within the Library module of TRICS®.

FPopulation within 1 mile:
1,001 to 5,000 2 days
5,001 to 10,000 3 days

This data displays the number of selected surveys within stated 1-mile radii of population.

Population within 5 miles:
5,001 to 25,000 2 days

25,001 to 50,000 3 days

This data displays the number of selected surveys within stated 5-mile radii of population.

Gar ownership within & miles:
0.6t 1.0 2 days
1.1t0 1.5 3 days

This data displays the number of selected surveys within stated ranges of average cars owned per residential dwelling,
within a radius of 5-miles of selected survey sites.
Travel Alan:

No 5 days

This data displays the numbaer of surveys within the selected set that were underiaken at sites with Travel Flans in place,
and the number of surveys that were undertaken at sites without Travel Plans.

Page 233



TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd

Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston

LIST OF SITES relevant to selection parameters

1

CB-03-A-04
MOQRCLOSE ROAD
SALTERBACK
WORKINGTON
Edge of Town
No Sub Category
Total Number of dwellings: 82
Survey date: FRIDAY 24/04/09
NY-03-A-07 DETACHED & SEMI DET.
CRAVEN WAY

SEMI DETACHED

BOROQUGHBRIDGE

Edge of Town

No Sub Category

Total Number of dwellings: 23
Survey date: TUESDAY 18/10/11

NY-03-A-11 PRIVATE HOUSING

HORSEFAIR

BORQUGHBRIDGE

Edge of Town

Residential Zone

Total Number of dwellings: 23
Survey date: WEDNESDAY 18/09/13

SH-03-A-05 SEMI-DETACHED/TERRACED

SANDCROFT

SUTTON HILL

TELFORD

Edge of Town

Residential Zone

Total Number of dwellings: 54
Survey date: THURSDAY 24/10/13

WK-03-A-02 BUNGALOWS

NARBERTH WAY

POTTERS GREEN

COVENTRY

Edge of Town

Residential Zone

Total Number of dwellings: 17
Survey date: THURSDAY 17/10/13

Friday 08/04/16
Page 3
Licence No: 754001

CUMBRIA

Survey Type: MANUAL
NORTH YORKSHIRE

Survey Type: MANUAL
NORTH YORKSHIRE

Survey Type: MANUAL
SHROPSHIRE

Survey Type: MANUAL
WARWICKSHIRE

Survay Type: MANUAL

This section provides a list of all survey sites and days in the selected set, For each individual survey site, it displays a
unique site reference code and site address, the selected trip rate calculation parameter and its value, the day of the week
and date of each survey, and whether the survey was a manual classified count or an ATC count.

Page 234



TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16

» _ .. Page 4
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001
TRIP RATE for Land Use 03 - RESIDENTIAL/A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED
VEHICLES
Calculation factor: 1 DWELLS
BOLD print indicates peak (busiest) period
___ ARRIVALS _ DEPARTURES ., TOTALS
No. © Ave. Trip No. ¢t Ave.  Trip No. : Ave. | Trip
Time Range Days . DWELLS Rate Days , DWELLS : Rate Days | DWELLS & Rate
00:00 - 01:00 T. 1 i !
01:00 - 02:00 — | .
02:00 - 02:00 AL 4.
03:00 - 04:00 ! \
04:00 - 05:00 |
05:00 - 06:00 i
06:00 - 07:00 N . . s S _ S
07:00 - 08:00 .5 490 0111 5 4 021 5. 40 0352
08:00 - 09:00 5. 10 0171 = 5 40.  0.392 5 40 | 0.563
09:00 - 10:00 5: 40 0.151 " 5. 10 0.161 5 40 0.312
10:00 - 11:00 By 40 0.151 5, 40 0.141 5 40 0.292
11:00 - 12:00 | 5. 40 0188 5. 40 0.201 -3 40 0382
12:00 - 13:00 5. 40 0.166 9 .40, 0del. 5 40 . 0327
13:00 - 14:00 5. 40 0.156 5: 40 0.166 - 40, 0.322
. 14:00 - 15:00 | 5:. 40 0201 5. 40 0.176 3 40 0377
15:00 - 16:00 | SN 40 0.261 50 40 . 0.216 _.5. 40 0477
16:00 - 17:00 5 40 0.332 5| .40, 0181 _ 5, 40 0513
17:00 - 18:00 5. 40 0.337 5 40 0.166 - 5 40 0.503
18:00 - 19:00 5 40 0.302 5 40 0.161 S 40 0.463
19:00 - 20:00 ‘ ; |
20:00 - 21:00 |
21:00 - 22:00 N i
22:00 - 23:00 :
. 23:00 - 24:00 | S| | = _
 Total Rates: 2.520 2363 _4.883

This section displays the trip rate results based on the selected set of surveys and the selected count type (shown just
above the table). It is spiit by three main columns, representing arrivals trips, departures trips, and total trips (arrivals plus
departures). Within each of these main columns are three sub-columns. These display the number of survey days where
count data is included {per time period), the average value of the selected trip rate calculation parameter {per time
period), and the trip rate result {per time period). Total trip rates (the sum of the column) are also displayed at the foot of
the table,

To obtain a trip rate, the average (mean} trip rate parameter vaiue (TRP) is first calculated for all selected survey days
that have count data available for the stated time period. The average (mean) number of arrivals, departures or totals
{whichever applies) is also calcuiated (COUNT) for all sefected survey days that have count dala available for the stated
time period. Then, the average count is divided by the average trip rate parameter value, and multiplied by the stated
calculation factor (shown just above the table and abbreviated here as FACT). So, the method is: COUNT/TRP*FACT. Trip
rates are then rounded to 3 decimal places.

Parameter summary

Trip rate parameter range selected: 17 - 82 (units: )
Survey date date range: 01/01/08 - 30/09/15
Number of weekdays {(Monday-Friday): 5

Number of Saturdays: 0

Number of Sundays: 0

Surveys manually removed from selection: o

This section displays a quick summary of some of the data filtering selections made by the TRICS® user. The trip rate
caleulation parameter range of all selected surveys is displayed first, followed by the range of minimum and maximum
survey dates selected by the user. Then, the total number of selected weekdays and weekend days in the selected set of
surveys are show. Finally, the number of survey days that have been manually removed from the selected set outside of
the standard filiering procedure are displayed.

Page 235



TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16

. _ . Page 5°
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001

TRIP RATE for Land Use 03 - RESIDENTIAL/A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED

TAXIS

Calculation factor: 1 DWELLS

BOLD print indicates peak (busiest) period

_ ____ARRIVALS ... .. DEPARTURES = _ . . TOTALS .
No. ! Ave, ; Trip No. + Ave. 1 Trip ~  No. [ Ave. . Trip
TimeRange  Days : DWELLS ~ Rate = Days _ DWELLS : Rate . Days l DWELLS __ Rate
00:00 - 01:00 i ) if - ]
01:00 - 02:00 i
02:00-03:00 |
03:00 - 04:00 ; |
04:00 - 05:00 _ _
05:00 - 06:00
06:00 - 07:00 ! a - _ el . .
07:00 - 08:00 5! 40 0.020 5 40  0.020 5, .40 0.040
08:00-09:00 5. __ _ 40 0.000 5 40 0.000 5. 40 __ 0.000
-09:00 - 10:00 5 40 0.005 . 5 40 0.005 5! 40 0.010
10:00 - 11:00 5 40 0.000 5 40 0.000 i 40 0.000
11:00 - 12:00 . 5 40 0.010 _ 5 40 0010 5| 40 0.020
J1200-1300 0 5. 40 0005 5 40. _ _ 0.005, _ 5. 40 _.0.010

13:00-14:00 = 5 _ 40 0.005 5 40 0,005 5. 40,  0.010
14:00 - 15:00 5: 40 0.010 S 40 . 0.010 5 40 0.020
15:00 - 16:00 5; 40 0.005 5. 40 0.005 5, 40 0.010
16:00 - 17:00 5. 40 0.000 5 40 _0.000 55 40 0.000
17:00 - 18:00 5. ____4 0.005 51 40 . 0.005 5. __ 4 _  0.010
18:00-19:00 5 40 0.005 5| 40 0.005 Dy 4 _ _ 0.010
19:00 - 20:00 i.
20:00 - 21:00 | |
21:00 - 22:00 | |
22:00 - 23:00 ] 1
23:00 - 24:00 , ; ! o
Total Rates. 0.070 0.070 0.140

This section displays the trip rate resufts based on the selected set of surveys and the selected count type (shown just
above the table). It is spiit by three main columns, representing arrivals trips, departures trips, and total trips (arrivals plus
departures). Within each of these main columns are three sub-columns. These display the number of survey days where
count data is included (per time period), the average value of the selected trip rate calculation parameter (per time
period), and the trip rate result (per time period). Total trip rates (the sum of the column) are also displaved at the foot of
the table.

To obtain a trip rate, the average (mean) trip rate parameter value (TRP) is first calculated for all selected survey days
that have count data available for the stated time period. The average {(mean) number of arrivals, departures or totals
{(whichever applies) is also calculated (COUNT) for all selected survey days that have count data available for the stated
time period. Then, the average count is divided by the average trip rate parameter value, and multiplied by the stated
calculation factor (shown just above the table and abbreviated here as FACT). So, the method is: COUNT/TRP* FACT. Trip
rates are then rounded to 3 decimal places,

Parameter summary

Trip rate parameter range selected: 17 - 82 (units: )
Survey date date range: 01/01/08 - 30/05/15
Numnber of weekdays (Monday-Friday): 5

Number of Saturdays: 0

Number of Sundays: 0

Surveys manually removed from selection: 0

This section displays a quick summary of some of the data filtering selections made by the TRICS® user. The trip rate
calculation parameter range of all selected surveys is displayed first, followed by the range of minimum and maximum
survey dates selected by the user. Then, the total number of selected weekdays and weekend days in the selected set of
surveys are show. Fnally, the number of survey days that have been manually removed from the selected set outside of
the standard filtering procedure are displayed.

Page 236



{TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16

! . , Page 6
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001
TRIP RATE for Land Use 03 - RESIDENTIAL/A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED
oGVS
Calculation factor: 1 DWELLS
BOLD print indicates peak (busiest) period
ARRIVALS .. DEPARTURES TOTALS B
No. : Ave. Trip No. - Ave. : Trip No. Ave. | Trip
TimeRange ~ Days . DWELLS Rate Days DWELLS Rate Days  DWELLS ., Rate
00:00 - 01:00 I _ |
01:00-02:00 | o e
02:00 - 03:00, i -
03:00 - 04:00 1 ) -
04:00 - 05:00 1 ; }
~ 05:00 - 06:00 : , i
06300 - 07:00 S | B S |it! RS 5 |
- 07:00 - 08:00 5, 4 0000 o) _ 40 0000 5 40, 0.000
' 08:00 - 09:00 51 40 0.000 5. 40 0.000 5. 40 0.000
09:00 - 10:00 5 4  0.000 5 40 0.000 5 40 - 0.000 :
10:00 - 11:00 5 | 40 0.000 5 _ 40 0.000 .51 40, 0.000°
11:00 - 12:00 5! 40 0.000 51 40 0.000 5 40  0.000:
12:00 - 13:00 51 40  0.000 5.. 40 0.000 a2l 40 ; 0.000 :
13:00 - 14:00 mioH ) 40 0.000 5! 40 0.000 5 40 0.000 :
14:00 - 15:00 5 40 0.000 5. 40 0.000 5 40 0.000°
_15:00 - 16:00 5. 40 0.000 5] 40 0.000 5. .40 0.000
. 16:00 - 17:00 5 _____40___ 0.000 e 40 ___ 0.000 _ 5 40 0.000
- 17:00 - 18:00 5 40 0.000 5; 40 ~ 0.000 .5 40 . 0.000 .
18:00 - 19:00 5 40 0.000 5 40 0.000 5! 40 0.000
19:00 - 20:00 ! :
© 20:00 - 21:00
,23:00 - 24:00 i , -
Total Rates: _ 0.000 0.000 0.000

This section displays the trip rate results based on the selected set of surveys and the selected count type (shown just
above the table}. it is spiit by three main columns, representing arrivals trips, departures trips, and total trips (arrivals plus
departures). Within each of these main columns are three sub-columns. These display the number of survey days where
count data is included (per time period), the average value of the selected trip rate calculation parameter (per time
pericd), and the trip rate result (per time period). Total trip rates (the sum of the column) are also displayed at the foot of
the table.

To obtain a trip rate, the average (mean} trip rate parameter value (TRF} is first calculated for alf sefected survey days
that have count data available for the stated time period. The average (mean) number of arrivals, departures or totals
{whichever applies) is alsc calculated (COUNT) for all selected survey days that have count data available for the stated
time period. Then, the average count is divided by the average rip rate parametor value, and muitiplied by the stated
calculation factor (shown just above the table and abbreviated here as FACT). So, the method is: COUNT/TRP* FACT. Trip
rates are then rounded to 3 decimal places.

Parameter summary

Trip rate parameter range selected: 17 - 82 (units: )
Survey date date range: 01/01/08 - 30/09/15
Number of weekdays (Monday-Friday); 5

Number of Saturdays: 0

Number of Sundays: 0

Surveys manually removed from selection: 0

This section displays a quick summary of some of the data filtering selections made by the TRICS® user. The trip rate
calculation parameter range of all selected surveys is displayed first, followed by the range of minimum and maximum
survey dates selected by the user. Then, the total number of selected weekdays and weekend days in the selected set of
surveys are show. Fnally, the number of survey days that have been manually removed from the selected set outside of
the standard filtering procedure are displayed.

Page 237



. TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16

g . L . Page 7
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001
TRIP RATE for Land Use 03 - RESIDENTIAL/A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED
PSVS
Calculation factor: 1 DWELLS
BOLD print indicates peak (busiest) period
. ARRIVALS . DEPARTURES . TOTALS
No. " Ave. , Trp . No - Ave, | Trip No. Ave, | Trip
_Time Range Days  DWELLS : Rate : Days _ DWELLS : Rate Days ~ DWELLS . Rate
~00:00 - 01:00 i |
.. 01:00 - 02:00 ‘ '
02:00 - 03:00 o i
03:00 - 04:00 il
04:00 - 05:00 R R i
05:00 - 06:00 .
06:00 - 07:00 g ! R : N |
07:00 - 08:00 5. .. 40, 0.000 5. 40 . 0.000, 5 40 0.000
08:00 - 09:00 .9, 4, 0000 5 40 0000 5 40 0.000
09:00 - 10:00 5; 40 . 0.000 : 5. 40 0.000 - 5] - 40. 0.000
10:00 - 11:00 5 40 . .0.000 . S 40 10.000 _ 5l 40  0.000
11:00 - 12:00 5 40  0.010, 5, _ 40 0.010 5 40 = 0.020
J1z00-13:00 5. 0 40 Q000 5; 40 0000 S5 _ 40 _ 0.000,
13:00 - 14:00 S,._.___40 0000 5! 40 0.000 . 5. 4 0000
14,00 - 15:00 5 ~40  0.000! 5. 40 .0.000 5 40, 0.000
15:00 - 16:00 5 .40 0.000 5; 40 0.000 5 40 0.000
16:00 - 17:00 5, 40 0.000 5 40 0.000 5. 40 0.000
_.17:00 - 18:00 5, 40 0000 _ 5. . _ 40 0.000 3. 40 0.000
' 18:00 - 19:00 5. 40 0000 5. _ 40 0.000 5. 10 0.000
19:00 - 20:00 5 |
20:00 - 21:00 i ;
21:00 - 22:00 i
22:00 - 23:00 ‘
23:00 - 24:00 P, N o
Total Rates: 0.010 0.0i0 0.020°

This section displays the trip rate resuits based on the selected set of surveys and the selected count type (shown fust
above the table). It is split by three main columns, representing arrivals trips, departures trips, and total trips (arrivals plus
departures). Within each of these main columns are three sub-columns. These display the number of survey days where
count data is included (per time period), the average value of the selected trip rate calculation parameter (per time
period}, and the trip rate result {per time period). Total trip rates (the sumn of the column) are also displayed at the foot of
the table.

To obiain a trip rate, the average (mean) trip rate parameter value (TRP) is first calculated for afl selected survey days
that have court data available for the stated time period. The average (mean) number of arrivals, departures or totals
{whichever applies) is alsc calculated (COUNT) for all selected survey days that have count data available for the stated
time period. Then, the average count is divided by the average trip rate parameter value, and multiplied by the stated
calculation factor (shown just above the table and abbreviated here as FACT). So, the method is: COUNT/TRP* FACT. Trip
rates are then rounded to 3 decimal places.

Parameter summary

Trip rate parameter range selected: 17 - 82 (units: )
Survey date date range: 01/01/08 - 30/09/15
Number of weekdays (Monday-Friday): 5

Number of Saturdays: 0

Number of Sundays: 0

Surveys manually removed from selection: 0

This section displays a quick summary of some of the data fiftering selections made by the THICS® user. The trip rate
calculation parameter range of all selected surveys is displayed first, followed by the range of minimum and maximum
survey dates selected by the user. Then, the total number of selected weekdays and weekend days in the selected set of
surveys are show. Finally, the number of survey days that have been manually removed from the selected set outside of
the standard filtering procedure are displayed.

Page 238



TRICS 7.3.1 280316 B17.33 (C) 2016 TRICS Consortium Ltd Friday 08/04/16

' ... . Page 8
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation PO Box 2070  Livingston Licence No: 754001

TRIP RATE for Land Use 03 - RESIDENTIAL/A - HOUSES PRIVATELY OWNED

CYCLISTS

Calculation factor: 1 DWELLS

BOLD print indicates peak (busiest) period

. _ ARRIVALS _ OO0 DEPARTURES o TOTALS
No. Ave, Tip © No. © Ave. 1 Trip No. : Ave. . Trip
Time Range Days ' DWELLS Rate .~ Days ' DWELLS  Rate Days ; DWELLS  Rate
00:00 - 61:00 i 4 ; ]
01:00-Q2:00 | i
02:00 - 03:00 . [
03:00 - 04:00 . I
04:00 - 05:00 A E ;
05:00 - 06:00 | .
06:00 - 07:00 B . N i ! .
07:00 - 08:00 5% 40 0.000 5. 40  0.020 5, 40 0.020
08:00 - 09:00 5. 40. 0.000 . 5. 40 0005 5. 40 0.005
09:00 - 10:00 5: 40 0.000 5] 40 0.005 5 40 ~0.005
10:00 - 11:00 5, 40 0.000 5 40 0.020 5 40 0.020
11:00 - 12:00 S 40 0.000 5,4 __ 0000 5 _ 40 . 0.000
12:00 - 13:00 5 40 0.000, 5, 40  0.005, 5 40 .. 0,005
13:00 - 14:00 S 40 , 0.005 5| 40, 0.000 5! 40 - 0.005
14:00 - 15:00 5: 40 0.000 5 040 0.005 5. 40 0.005
15:00 - 16:00 51 40 0.025 5 40 0.000 5. 40 0.025
16:00 - 17:00 - T 40 0.005 5 _ 40 0.000 5. 40 0.005
17:00 - 18:00 5 40 0010 5 40 0.000 5. 40 0,010
18:00 - 19:00 50 40 .0.000 5, .40 0.000 5 40 0.000
14:00 - 20:00 : | |
20:00 - 21:00 i I
21:00 - 22:00 I ; |
22:00 - 23:00 ! j T
23:00 - 24:00 | = ¢ i . T
| Totat Rates: 0.045 0.060 . 0.105

This section displays the trip rate results based on the selected set of surveys and the selected count type (shown just
above the tabie). It is split by three main columns, representing arrivals trips, departures trips, and total trips (arrivals plus
departures). Within each of these main columns are three sub-columns. These display the number of survey days where
count data is included (per time period), the average value of the sefected trip rate calculation parameter (per time
period), and the trip rate result (per time period). Total trip rates (the sum of the column) are also dispiayed at the foot of
the table.

To obtain a trip rate, the average (mean) trip rate parameter value (TRP) is first calculated for all selected survey days
that have count data available for ths stated time period. The average (mean) number of arrivals, departures or totals
{whichever applies) is also caleulated (COUNT) for all selected survey days that have count data available for the stated
time period. Then, the average count is divided by the average irip rale parameter value, and multiplied by the stated
calculation factor (shown just above the table and abbreviated here as FACT). So, the method is: COUNT/TRF* FACT. Trip
rates are then rounded to 3 decimal places.

Parameter summary

Trip rate parameter range selected: 17 - 82 {units; )
Survey date date range: 01/01/08 - 30/09/15
Number of weekdays (Monday-Friday): 5

Number of Saturdays: 0

Number of Sundays: 0

Surveys manually removed from selection: 0

This section displays a quick summary of some of the data fiftering selections made by the TRICS® user. The trip rate
calculation parameter range of all selected surveys is displayed first, followed by the range of minimum and maximum
strvey dates selected by the user. Then, the total number of selected weekdays and weekend days in the selected set of
surveys are show. Finally, the number of survey days that have been manually removed from the selected set outside of
the standard filtering procedure are displayed.

Page 239



Andrewvw

ARRIE

Traflic & Transporiation Ltd

APPENDIX C

TRAFFIC COUNT 8 APRIL 2016

Page 240



Traffic Flow Survey
The Loan, Gattonside, Melrose

Friday 8th April 2016, Time Measured 1600-1 700hrs

e e o vehicleType | |Description |
1604 Upwards Car VW Golf

1608 Downwards " Fiat Panda

1609 Upwards " VW Sharan

1631 Upwards ! Nigsan Note

1632 Upwards B VW Passat *

1633 DownwaE_ o " Ford Festa

1637 Downwards " VW Passat *

1641 Upwards B Audi A2

1645 Upwards " VW Polo

1647 U;;v;a_lrds (-)_o-nTmerciai Landrover Landrover ]
1648 Downwards Car Nissan Note
test |Upwads T T lvweoe

Total: 12 Journeys 8 Upw;c]s, 4 o 11 Cars, 1 Commercial | * Vehicle went in & out
between 1600-1700 Downwards Journeys

Page 241



Page 242



ek 1beod wda i Wi ke 5

ARFRIRE A

ARRIE

Trafie & Tewnspmiation Lid

PO Box 2078, Livingston EH54 0EG

G113-letQ1
Tal 07798 646844
www_.z:lmn'ia.net_
Mr H Arm strnng Email: ac@acarmisa.net
2 Mamore Drive Registered in Scotland No 414163
Eariston
TD4 6JF
18 May 2018
Dear Ray
Proposed Dwelling House

Lindisfarne, The Loan, Gattonslde

| have reviewed the further response from the Council's Roads Planning Service, dated 10
May, following submission of the Access Appraisal report by Andrew Carrie Traffic and
Transportation Lid.

The response concedes that The Loan has a few similarities with certain aspects of the
‘Designing Streets’ manuai, a point which was not evident in their earlier responses. It is
admitted that gradients are steeper than wauld normally be recommended for new roads, but
the village is on the side of a hill and the existing gradient is what it is. For example, if a
pedestrian handrail is required, then that is a matter for the Council: it is difficult to see how the
construction of a single house on potentially the last available plot on The Loan, within the
defined urban development boundary, will suddenly require the provision of a handraif, when
the ongoing development of Monkswood Road, immediately to the east, does not, even
although The Loan gives the most convenient pedestrian access between that development
and the village.

Roads Planning Service cite "anecdotal evidence with regards to bumps and scrapes and
damage to property” which occur on The Loan. It is accepted by all professionals in the fieid
of road safety that such "bumps and scrapes” occur all over the road network, for a variety of
reasons, not all of which are related to road geomery. It is accepted practice, however, that it
is only injury accidents (which must, by faw, be reported to, and recorded by, the police) that
give a reliable comparison of accident trends for any given location, and while it is accepted
that passing locations and visibilities are not ideal, the accident record on The Loan indicates
that there have been no injury accidents on it at all. As set out in the Access Appraisal, this
wouid appear to indicate that drivers and pedestrians already using The Loan, are applying
the appropriate levels of sense and caution. It is also notable that not one single resident or
user of The Loan has made any objection to the application on road safety or indeed any other
aspect of this development application.

Itis difficult to see the relevance to the current application, of the Council's poinis regarding
the recommended road width for cars or HGVs, or the signing warning that The Loan is
“unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles”, since there is no reason to suppose that the proposed
development will generate any traffic of that type except during the construction stage. At the
present time, all construction traffic to and from the ongoing development in Monkswood use
the “top road” to and from Galashiels, and the proposed development is even better focated to
make use of that route, even without the formation of "temporary™ access routes which the
current construction transport is using across the grass triangle at the top of The Loan.

Page 243



R i A BB

Fh sl

Sealtic & Trogasaitetion Led

Simblarly, it is difficult to see the relevance to the current application, of the Council's points
regarding the use of The Loan during winter conditions. Residents of The Loan have 1o use
that road, or park elsewhere, it should be noted that the Loan as well as Monkswood are not
priority gritting routes and consequently residents park on the main road during severe winter
snow conditions. Residents along the “top road", including the application site, have a choice
of route.

Roads Planning Service make two points regarding the use of the "top road". RPS accept that
the “top road" will give the easiest access to Galashiels to the west, but then state that drivers
will choose "the shortest and quickest® route to all other destinations®. However, the shortest
route is not necessarily the guickest.

The holiday cottage development at Gattonside Mains is located approximately 600 metres
west of the application site. The distance from the holiday cottages to the junction of the
B6374 and the B6360 (to the north of the bridge over the River Tweed) Is approximately 1.6
kilometres, via the top road and the junction at Pavilion Farm. The distance from the
application site to that same junction, by the same route, is approximately 2.2 kilometres. The
distance from the application site to that same junction via The Loan, is approximately 1.9
kilometres: 300 metres shorter. Drivers do not make their route choices based on distance
alone, however: travel time is also an important consideration, and the first route via the "top
road" is entirely on roads subject to the national speed limit (although it is conceded that some
of the route is not suitable for those speeds), while the second route, through Gattonside, is
subject to a 30 miles per hour speed limit for three-quarters of that distance (and again,
speeds can be lower than that on parts of the routs). Drivers {ooking at a map would choose
the shortest route. Drivers who know the area would choose the quickest route, and that does
not involve travelling up and down The Loan.

The route choices for the application site, to all other destinations, will in practice, be no
different to the route choices available at Gattonside Mains. Roads Planning Service,
however, state that The Loan will remain the "dominant access route" to the application site.
However, given the above comparison of distance and likely travel time, their comments on
this application, regarding comparison of routes for vehicles and pedestrians, access to the
bus stops and the local footpath network into Melrose and the nearby riverside walks, etc,
could have applied equally to the development at Gattonside Mains, as to the current
application, and yet Roads Planning Service raised no objection to that other development.

Finally, Roads Planning Service state that "the haliday cottage development was a renovation
of an existing farm steading which generated ifs own traffic, some of which would have
accessed The Loan at that time. This traffic would have been taken into account when
assessing the planning application for the farm steading development.” However, the
application form {11/0113/FUL) states the "existing use™ as "farm buildings used for animals
and storage. There is an existing ftat in the south west comer". The form states that the daily
traffic flow would increase from 12 vehicles per day, to 24 per day (a figure of 6 trips per
dwelling, the same as the figure used by ACTT in the current Access Appraisal). The
application is clear that there would be an Increase In traffic as a result of that development.
Furthermore, regardless of what the application form suggests, it is unlikely that traffic to and
from the farm itself was affected to any great extent by the cessation of the previous use: that
operational farm traffic is likely still to be present on the road network, so the 24 daily vehicle
trips following development is likely to be the net increase in traffic,

It ought to have been evident at the time, therefore that the development of the farm steading

would have resulted in an increase in traffic, a proportion of which would use the Loan, vet this
application was approved without objection from Roads Planning Service.

Page 244



S e S R e R R e

I R

it . o .
Gk, s R 2 g

ek glrarng

Teaih: 3 Tradupesiaiic 104

The current application is likely to result in fewer naw trips on The Loan, than that previous
development, and it is difficult to understand why this modest increase (if indeed there is any
noticeable increase at all) is apparently likely to create the difficulties perceived by Roads
Planning Service.

| hope that these comments are helpful.

Yours sincerely,

Andrew Carrie

Page 245



Page 246



Proposed glte
ottiined in red,

|

Land owned by applicant
outfined in blug. ol

O
VA —
A\
| \
]
\
\
Castle Field

Ordnance Survey () Crawn Copyright 2015. Ml rights resceved Licence number 100022432

20 0 20 40
LU e 1 I
I I |

Metres

Ordnance Survey
0S Sitemap

Page 247

clent
Mr H. Ammnstrong

job fida

Proposed house plot,
Land west of Lindisfamme,
Gattonside, Melrose

drawlng thle

Locality Plan

scale date draw
151250 12,0216 RFM
dravdeg ne-




Page 248



EXISTING DOUBLE WICTH HEDGE
REDUCED IN HEWGHT TO ENSURE
NO PART EXCEEDS 900mm ABOVE
VISIBILITY POINT AT NEW ACCESS.

VIEW 3

(h TO GALASHIELS \ NEW ACCESS LAY-BY FORMED
102.590 (Ex) 102143 (£X)
™

1C2.085 (£X)

.--____-..1{‘!".".‘-”4’.!'-'",__-“’!4“

(101,803 (EX)

s 101.615 (X}

101.475 (€%}

R 160,130 (2x) v
g i 100,030 (£X)
101407 (PROT Tt
100782 (PROP) T tmheen_ - 99.773 (PROP)
100.157 (PROP)

-

99.532 (PROP)

HATCHING DENOTE! £ss TURNING AREA

S ACCH
ROAD RETAINING MEASURES

SCREEN
PLANTING

100.00 {€X),
100,077 (PROP)

3

i
)

Ay

HOUSE
(NDICATVE)Y

ey

6172 abed

HousE

TURNING AREA

VIEW 1

EXISTING
ACCESS

R PROPOSED BOUNDARY LINE (EXISTING FENCE/HEDGE)

Site Plan as Proposed

Scale 1:200

5
e moan vl |
o ] PRt ook uever
i | ey
f
exmanE
ST s moos i - e |
TP |

usTvG CRoua w LG
%0310 on EummaENT
; e non em

Cross-Section as Proposed
Scale 1:100

:|architecture Itd

‘loomfeld, heathertie park, sekirk. TD7 SAL
rmarchitectured Gomal.

tok: 0175021709
emait: com

client
Mr H. Armstrong

Job title

Proposed Housing Development
adj to Lindisfarne, The Loan,
Gattonside.

drawing title
Site Plan
as Proposed

scale dats drawn
1200 Dec 2015 RFM

drawing no. rev.
15-020/SD/001 I B I




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8b

Scottish

Borders Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

[ Application for Planning Permission Reference : 16/00162/PPP

I To: MrH. Armstrong per RM Architecture Ltd Bloomfield Heatherlie Park Selkirk TD7 SAL

With reference to your application validated on 15th February 2016 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Erection of dwellinghouse and garage

at: Garden Ground Of Lindisfarne The Loan Gattonside Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 19th May 2016
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed

Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 251



ag?a%ig Regulatory Services

OLIN

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 16/00162/PPP

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
15-020/SD/001 B Site Plan Refused
REASON FOR REFUSAL
1 The development would fail to comply with Policy PMD5(e) of the Local Development Plan 2016

because it would not be served by adequate access and the implications of the development would
potentially be detrimental to road and pedestrian safety

2 The development would fail to comply with Policy PMD2(q) of the Local Development Plan 2016
because it would lead to an adverse impact on road safety. In particular, the development would
lead to increased traffic on The Loan, which is significantly constrained as regards gradient, visibility
and passing opportunities, and this increased traffic would lead to an unacceptable risk to the safety
of vehicular drivers and pedestrians using the route

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.qgov.uk/online-applications/

Page 252



Agenda Item 8c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 16/00162/PPP
APPLICANT : Mr H. Armstrong
AGENT : RM Architecture Ltd
DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse and garage
LOCATION: Garden Ground Of Lindisfarne
The Loan
Gattonside

Scottish Borders

TYPE : PPP Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
15-020/SD/001 B Site Plan Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

One representation has been received on behalf of one of the owners of the field and hedge to the
west in which concerns are raised that the visibility splay shown will necessitate that their hedge would
have to be cut to achieve the proposed sight line. It is not clear from the drawing as the hedge is not
indicated. Further clarification is sought and a more detailed drawing showing how the sight line can
be achieved without affecting their hedge

Consultations

Landscape Service: The revised plan shows a clear developable area outwith the recommended root
protection area. Robert Gray's original tree report applied the root protection area from the existing
TPO'd trees' stem diameter along the western boundary. While recommended removal of the mature
Firs would have an impact, this species can become prone to failure in adverse conditions. Any new
dwelling would pose a potential target for such failures.

Replacement of the Firs with a suitable species is required once removed, the applied RPA allows
sufficient room for the replacements to establish and co-exist with a new dwelling. The protective
fencing must be erected as a single line to agreed RPA distance prior to any development on site.
Thereafter no storage of materials or disruption of ground within the RPA zone.

Detail is required on the screen planting, species, numbers, positions, sizes and maintenance
schedule. Suggest that the existing hedge is reduced in height as a whole to accommodate the
required visibility splay, as opposed to the plan showing it partially clipped. Cypress hedges would not
respond too well to that type of pruning.

Page 253



Community Council: No comments

Education and Lifelong Learning: Contributions of £3209 and £4512 required for Melrose Primary
School and Earlston High School respectively

Gattonside Village Sub Planning Committee: No reply

Roads Planning Service: Made the following comments in response to the initial application
submission:

They consider that the surrounding public road network is unsuitable to cater for any new build
development at this proposed location. The main vehicular access to serve this site is via The Loan.
This route is a very narrow, constrained and largely single file road, with restricted visibility sightlines in
either direction due to buildings and walls bounding each side of the road. There is a sign at the
bottom of this road stating that it is "unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles". The Loan is also very steep
and winding, with very limited passing opportunities resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they
meet. To compound their roads concerns even further, there is almost no on-street parking available
on The Loan, and any parked cars make the route even more torturous than it currently is. All of these
concerns are particularly relevant during inclement weather. Although there is an alternative, but
significantly longer (secondary) access route to the west of the proposed site, it is not without its own
roads issues. It is a single lane road with limited passing opportunities, and has numerous visibility
impingements along its entire length. While the proposed passing opportunity associated with this
application would result in some road safety gain for motorists using the public road in that vicinity, this
would not help with the tortuous part of The Loan serving the bulk of the housing.

In the Planning Statement supporting this application, previous planning records are referred to. One is
a fairly historic application for a new house at 'Wellbank' in The Loan. Of more relevance is the
application for a house next door to 'Wellbank' at 'Springbank’ in 2002. The RPS strongly
recommended against the proposal expressing serious roads concerns and this view was supported
by the (then) Head of Development Control. The application was approved by the Eildon Area
Committee against officer's recommendation. The other applications referred to for new houses at
'Lower Greenwells' and opposite 'Abbotscroft’ are of little significance, being served by different roads.

The Planning Statement also refers to observations of the Roads Planning Service on the application
for a new vehicular access to serve 'Rosebrae’ on The Loan. For that application, while expressing
concern on the constrained nature of the road, they were able to support the proposal for a new
access which had the potential to help with parking deficiencies in the vicinity. It was recognised that
the constrained nature of the road helped enforce relatively slow traffic speeds, but there was no
implication given that this would be justification for new housing served by the road.

The proposed new access driveway and parking/turning provision within the site meet requirements.
In summary, they recommend the application be refused in the interests of road safety.

The RPS have since reviewed, in detail, the submission of a traffic report (Access Appraisal April 2016
Andrew Carrie Traffic & Transportation Ltd). Their response to this specific report is noted in full below.

The Loan, when compared with certain aspects of the 'Designing Streets' manual, does have a few
similarities, such as restricted visibility, slow speeds and restricted widths. However, when you
investigate the design and geometry of The Loan in greater detail, significant road and safety
deficiencies become evident. Gradients on The Loan vary between 1 in 6 and 1 in 9, which are
considerably steeper than the recommended maximum gradient of 8% (1 in 12) as detailed in The
‘National Roads Development Guide' which acts as the technical backup to 'Designing Streets'. Where
gradients are steeper than 8%, the guide requires the provision of a handrail for pedestrians, but this
cannot be provided on The Loan due to the boundary constraints of walls and buildings. While there
are limited passing opportunities on The Loan, they are poorly located and are not inter-visible,
resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they meet. This fundamental design flaw of not having
inter-visible passing facilities on The Loan is quite disconcerting, and is a safety issue to both vehicular
and pedestrian movements. Furthermore, any reversing manoeuvre is unsafe and does not conform to

Page 254



current design requirements, particularly as the road is a shared space with pedestrians. To com pound
the gradient and poor inter-visibility as detailed above, there is a distinct lack of on-street parking. Any
car that is parked, generally in the wider areas, creates enhanced difficulties to other users of this road
as these areas are usually utilised as passing locations.

The Loan is very constrained with regards to road width, particularly as the boundaries are walls and
properties, rather than the standard road kerb and/or verge. Its width varies between 2.8m and 4.1m
along its length, with the average being around 3.1m, though at one particular pinch point it is reduced
to 2.6m at road surface level. In the National Development Roads Guide the minimum recommended
road width for vans is 3.0m, and for HGVs it is 3.4m. This minimum width applies to straight lengths of
road while The Loan is curving in nature including at the pinch point. It should also be noted that the
operation width required for a fire tender is 3.7m.

Although no swept path analysis has been carried out on the Loan, the provision of a road sign at the
junction with the main road informing motorists that The Loan is "unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles"
immediately warns HGV drivers that this route should not be used.

It should be noted, that during winter conditions many residents park their vehicles on the main road
through Gattonside, as The Loan can be inaccessible during snowy and icy conditions, mainly with
respect to its excessive gradient, constrained road width and lack of forward visibility. There is also
clear evidence that a residential property located on the narrowest part of The Loan has been struck
and damaged on several occasions by vehicles negotiating this part of the road.

The following comments relate specifically to the "top" secondary access route to the west of the
application site. While they accept that some residents on the "top" road may on occasion use this
access route, particularly if travelling towards the Galashiels area, the dominant access route will be
via The Loan. The majority of the traffic and pedestrian movements will utilise The Loan as being the
shortest and quickest way to all other destinations. Pedestrians must use The Loan to access the bus
stops in Gattonside. The local footpath network into Melrose and the nearby riverside walks can only
be accessed via The Loan. Furthermore, vehicles travelling east towards the A68 Trunk Road, south
and west towards the A6091 and A7 Trunk Roads will use The Loan as the shortest and most direct
route.

It should be noted that the holiday cottage development is located significantly further to the west than
the proposed single house. Because of this, apart from vehicles travelling east towards the A68 Trunk
Road who will use The Loan as their preferred route, all other destinations will be accessed by the
shorter and quicker route to the west. It should also be noted that the holiday cottage development
was a renovation of an existing farm steading which generated its own traffic, some of which would
have accessed The Loan at that time. This traffic would have been taken into account when assessing
the planning application for the farm steading development.

There are no recorded injury accidents on The Loan, as speeds are very low. However, there is a
considerable amount of anecdotal evidence with regards to bumps and scrapes and damage to
property which occurs on The Loan.

In summary, while 'Designing Streets' encourages slower traffic speeds by: use of narrow street
widths; constrained geometry; and restricted forward visibility, such roads still have to be carefully
designed so that, widths, forward visibility, passing and parking provision are all in sync and meet
minimum standards. Acceptable gradients are equally important in particular where the road serves as
a shared surface. The Loan does not meet these standards and they have to recommend against it
serving further development. 'Designing Streets' is not a licence to deem all constrained roads as
being fit for purpose.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Local Development Plan 2016

PMD2, PMD5, 1S2, IS3, I1S7, 1S9, EP3, EP4, EP13, HD3

Page 255



SPG Guidance on Householder Development 2006; Placemaking and Design 2010; Trees and
Development 2008; Landscape and Development 2008; Biodiversity 2005; Developer Contributions
2015

Recommendation by - Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer) on 16th May 2016

Site and application description

This application seeks Planning Permission in Principle for a house on garden ground associated with a
detached house (Lindisfarne) located at the northern end of Gattonside. It is below a single track public road
to the north, with hedging along the roadside, trees within it and trees and hedging to the boundaries, and
agricultural fields to west and south.

The application seeks consent in principle for a house, though is supported by an indicative house and
garage layout served by a driveway leading from a new access and lay-by from the public road to the north.

Policy principle

The site is within the settlement boundary as identified in the Local Development Plan 20186. It has no
allocations. Policy PMD5 principally applies, whereby the principle of infill development can be explored
subject to meeting certain criteria. There would be no loss of open space of value, and the site has a
roadside frontage. There would be no amenity conflict with neighbouring uses.

Developments must meet quality standards in Policy PMDZ2, including impacts on road safety, and this and
other policies are covered in the following assessment.

Ecology

There are no ecological designations here or nearby. The loss of mature trees (see below) is limited to the
removal of low height fruit trees and four conifer trees. The removal of the conifers is required due to their
height and increasing falling potential, rather than the development itself. An informative on potential
disturbance to bat habitat is considered appropriate in this case, as is guidance covering effects on potential
bird nests.

Services

Contributions are required towards local schools and the Waverley Line. A legal agreement would be
necessary to secure these contributions

Mains services are required in this settlement location. Here, public foul drainage and water supply
connections are proposed. The applicant will need to ensure these (and a surface water drainage scheme),
can be achieved without affecting trees or hedging to be retained (see below). A condition should seek to
secure their protection. A condition would also be necessary to ensure Scottish Water confirm mains water
and drainage connections, including surface water if required (unless achieved on site).

Neighbouring amenity

I would not expect that a sensitively designed two storey house in the general location proposed would
affect neighbouring amenity in this location by way of daylight, privacy, sunlight or outlook loss. Care would
be needed over windows facing Lindisfarne.

Siting, design and layout

This site is elevated above the village, but with a high hilly backdrop. A two storey house, set down from the
road, in the general location and of the layout proposed, would sit fairly comfortably alongside the existing
house. Though a preferred approach is usually to place houses fronting a roadside (with parking to the side
or rear), here, in order to align with the existing house, it makes sense to set the house to face away from
the road. It would be set lower than the road in this location, where hedging would partially screen views
from the road. Provided the driveway can be swept into the site, with retaining walls discretely placed and

Page 256



hedging used to frame the driveway, then it should be possible to design a house that complements the
existing houses. The indicative plan proposed here suggests as much, though there is insufficient
information on levels to confirm quite how the driveway will appear and how the house will sit. This can be
covered at the detailed application stage.

Fruit trees within the site would be removed but their loss would have no significant visual impact on the
public realm. Trees and hedging frame the site, and the more that can be retained the better for setting the
development into the context. Hedging is to be retained to the north, though the drawing suggests it will be
partially lowered to achieve visibility for the access. A tree survey (submitted at the pre-application stage)
suggests trees to the west (which include trees protected by Tree Preservation Order) should be removed
because of their height and risk of collapse. Smaller trees (not specified in the tree survey or plan submitted
with this application) would be retained. This is agreeable as the indicative layout suggests new replacement
planting can be achieved with room alongside the house footprint. This would re-establish the western
boundary with more suitably sized trees. To the south, trees and hedging would be capable of being
retained under the current proposal.

A condition can require a scheme showing only removal of the four conifers, with the remaining boundary
trees retained and protected by fencing during the works, allowing only for the lowering of the roadside
hedge (which should be reduced completely, and not partially clipped as proposed). It would be expected
that an AMC application should account for the hedging and trees as part of the detailed layout.

Parking

The RPS accept the proposed site access and parking arrangements, which allow for parking and turning of
two cars. The plan is relatively detailed, but a more thorough scheme would be necessary as part of a
detailed application.

Visibility requirements on the east side would be achieved by lowering the hedge. To the west, the visibility
splay appears to stray over the neighbouring property and | agree with the adjacent landowner that it is
unclear how this may affect neighbouring hedging. The RPS was asked to look into this in detail and,
following a further visit, they have confirmed to me that the visibility splay does not require any works over
the neighbouring property in order to achieve and maintain it. It would not have been competent to impose a
condition requiring provision of this splay since it would require that it be maintained in future over third party
land. It appears, however, that this is not necessary.

Road capacity

The site is served by narrow single-track roads, both through the village (from the south-east on The Loan)
and from the west. The RPS has clear concerns regarding the traffic implications of this development on the
local road network.

The applicant's supporting statement originally submitted with the application refers to possible benefits to
road safety, including rebuilding of the retaining structure that supports the road alongside the site. However,
that is a matter that requires attention in any case, and will not be a net safety improvement to the road
network itself. The proposal would also incorporate a passing place as part of the site access, but this will
not be in a position that assists with passing problems on The Loan. The supporting statement also refers to
previous cases for houses, alterations to existing houses and new parking spaces in the area. The Roads
Planning Service has considered these. They point to the fact that the last house approved here was
approved contrary to officer recommendation to refuse on road safety grounds. Of the applications referred
to in the supporting case, none of these firmly support the case for a further house here. Any other benefits
that may be realised (such as consolidating, to some extent, the settlement boundary at this point, for
example), don't weigh significantly in favour of a development that would increase traffic on very poor,
constrained roads.

The applicant was given the opportunity to respond to these concerns regarding the impact of the
development on the road network. In response, a further report (Access Appraisal, April 2016 Andrew Carrie
Traffic & Transportation Ltd) has been submitted in support of the application. Principally, the report

o} acknowledges that The Loan has an historic layout which does not meet current design standards

Page 257



0 contends that this would be a single house contributing an insignificant amount of traffic to the
existing levels

o identifies that a route to the west would also be attractive for residents, not just The Loan, where
traffic would pass a recently consented holiday cottage development (nb this comprises 4 holiday cottages,
not 2 houses and 2 holiday cottages as stated in the report)

0 identifies no recent accident history of note
o] contends that this would perhaps be the last house within the settlement built to use the Loan
o] refers to the changing policy position as regards road design, whereby a novel street design is

advocated by Scottish Planning Policy, Designing Streets and the Council's SPG Placemaking and Design.
The Loan is considered to be an example of such a street.

The RPS commented on this report (as noted above) and, in turn, the consultants have commented on the
RPS comments (dated 18th May).

Having considered this report, the views of the RPS, and the response by the consultants to the RPS, |
would account for the following key issues:

o Consideration of this application must be treated on its own merits. The future prospects for further
development that might use The Loan are not for assessment here, and it is not prudent to conclude with
certainty that other infill opportunities will not become available.

0 The RPS concludes that, while The Loan may have some similarities to the novel street design
advocated by planning policy guidance, including Designing Streets (and the Council's Placemaking and
Design guidance), The Loan does not meet even the relaxed standards that these current policies apply in
several regards. Its key failing is its steepness. It also has limited passing opportunities, with restrictions on
intervisibility. The result leads to unsafe reversing manoeuvres. There is also a lack of on-street parking,
with cars that are parked adding to the difficulties for passing vehicles. The Loan is also constrained in
width, and current signage indicates it is not suitable for HGVs. Even a novel street design that may be
applied to a new development using 'Designing Streets' guidance must demonstrate it can safely
accommodate larger vehicles, including refuse and emergency vehicles. The RPS notes that the average
width of The Loan is less than that required for a fire tender. The road is particularly inaccessible during
snowy and icy conditions due to these particular constraints as regards gradient, width and lack of forward
visibility. | note the consultants accept that The Loan has constraints, but challenge the RPS's view as to
their significance (including of HGVs which, they say, could come from the western route). They also point to
the Monkswood road development as a comparison. That is, however, an established 1960s approval and |
do not see it as a useful comparison with this development. This proposed development must be served by
an appropriate route, and it is evident that The Loan has serious shortcomings. Its physical suitability for
promoting any additional residential traffic must be questioned. The Loan may not be the only route to this
site, and HGV drivers during construction may find the westerly route more appropriate, but it is not possible
to rule out the potential that much of the traffic for this proposed house will use The Loan.

o] As regards accident history, traffic speeds are very low, so the lack of recorded accidents is not
surprising. The RPS contends, however, that there is significant anecdotal evidence, and some physical
evidence, of damage to property along The Loan. | note the consultants acknowledge that passing locations
and visibilities are not ideal, but that the absence of an injury record (and objections to this planning
application) suggest there is no difficulty in this regard. | am unable to establish that either of these
considerations point to The Loan being a suitable route on which to encourage any further traffic.

o] The availability of the westerly route is acknowledged, albeit it has its own constraints as the RPS
notes and the consultants appear to acknowledge. The consultants compare this site with a holiday cottage
development at Gattonside Mains in likely use of the western route. Unlike the holiday cottage development,
however (which | note will have transient occupants) this site is clearly closer to the village and it is arguable
that traffic patterns for the two can be sufficiently comparable to be of significant value in this assessment.
The RPS contends that, while the western route may be attractive for prospective residents who wish to
travel west, the dominant access route will be The Loan. This is because it will be the shortest and quickest
way to other destinations, including the bypass and A68. The RPS also notes that residents from the
proposed house would have to use The Loan in order to access bus stops in the village. | note the
consultants challenge this, consider that the quickest route is not necessarily the shortest and draw
comparison to the holiday cottage development. | also acknowledge the fact that the availability of the
alternative route is a key benefit to the development. However, | do share the RPS' view that much of the

Page 258



vehicular traffic, and most of the pedestrian activity, for this development will likely use The Loan and that
will lead to a net increase in traffic on a substandard road network used by both car drivers and pedestrians.

0 This development would comprise a single house. Of itself, the level of traffic generated will, clearly,
be relatively low particularly since the site has an alternative access route to the west as noted. However,
both the RPS and the consultants acknowledge that The Loan has serious shortcomings that affect road and
pedestrian safety. The RPS is firmly of the view that The Loan is simply not safe enough to endorse any
further traffic, however limited, particularly to access a house proposed at the very top of the route. However
limited, the net increase in traffic will increase the safety risk on a substandard road and this would run
against the grain of Policy PMD2 which requires that there be "no adverse impact on road safety".

Ultimately, Policy PMD5 requires that infill developments be served by adequate access. As noted above,
the RPS is content to endorse the access arrangement which would likely be achieved into the site itself.
However, as noted, the access road network, particularly The Loan, is considered to be substandard. Policy
PMD?2 also requires that there are no adverse impacts on road safety, including but not limited to the site
access. Accounting for the clear and unambiguous concerns of the RPS, it seems that additional
development on The Loan, while in its current state, would not comply with Policy PMD2 as regards
potential implications on road safety. Indeed, both road and pedestrian safety are likely to be compromised
by adding further traffic onto The Loan as a consequence of the proposed development. | acknowledge the
consultant's case with respect to the relatively limited extent of traffic that may be associated with this
development. However, | would conclude that the risk to the safety of road users, including pedestrians,
appears evident when we consider that this development will lead to extra traffic, however small, on what is
clearly a substandard road shared by both cars and pedestrians.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The development would comply with the Local Development Plan 2016 in most respects, subject to
conclusion of a legal agreement and schedule of conditions. However, the development would fail to comply
with Policy PMD5(e) because the access leading to the site is not adequate. The development would also
fail to comply with PMD2(q) because it would lead to an adverse impact on road safety. In particular, the
development would lead to increased traffic on The Loan, which is significantly constrained as regards
gradient, visibility and passing opportunities, and this increased traffic would lead to an unacceptable risk to
the safety of vehicular drivers and pedestrians using the route. This conflict with the development plan is
considered to be overriding in this case.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The development would fail to comply with Policy PMD5(e) of the Local Development Plan 2016
because it would not be served by adequate access and the implications of the development would
potentially be detrimental to road and pedestrian safety

2 The development would fail to comply with Policy PMD2(q) of the Local Development Plan 2016
because it would lead to an adverse impact on road safety. In particular, the development would
lead to increased traffic on The Loan, which is significantly constrained as regards gradient, visibility
and passing opportunities, and this increased traffic would lead to an unacceptable risk to the safety
of vehicular drivers and pedestrians using the route

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 259



Page 260



Agenda Item 8d

Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Melrose,

Planning Statement
February 2016

ArChnteety

7

L 1]

e e Tt e - 2
bloomflald heatherlie park, seikirk TDT SAL
t: 01750 21709

&: rMarchitectured@gmail.com

Page 261



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Melrose.

FHEiT
The Application

The application is for Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of one
private house and attached garage.

The Location

The application site lies within the northern western edge of the settlement
boundary in Gattonside and is accessed from two directions. From within
Gattonside via The Loan & from Galashiels via the Wester Housebyres road.

The Site

The application site extends to approx 0.11 hectares and lies to the west of
the property known as Lindisfarne.

The northern boundary which adjoins the public road is defined by a mature
hedge and a low level dry stone dyke which retains approx 1.3m of the
roadside verge.

The eastern boundary which adjoins Lindisfarne is presently undefined but a
natural boundary with trees and small shrubs separates the existing garden
from the application site.

The southern boundary which adjoins a paddock is defines by a post & wire
fence situated behind an existing mature hedge.

The western boundary which adjoins the village settlement boundary is
defined by a post & wire fence within which are a line of mature trees.

The development proposal is for a single dwelling house plot. It is understood
due to the nature of Planning Permission in Principle, aspects such as
detailed design of the dwelling, siting & boundary treatment will be addressed
as a reserved matter in the event of a successful outcome.

.3
2

Consolidated Local Plan Policies G1 & G7 (Quality Standards for New
Development & Infill Development), H2 {Protection of Residential Amenity)
require the Planning Authority to be satisfied that the proposals will have
considered amongst other matters, the following assessments:

" |s it compatible with & respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses & neighbouring built form?

Page 262



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Meirose.

® Can it be satisfactorily accommodated within the site?

" It does not result in significant loss of daylight, sunlight, or privacy to
adjoining properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

® Level of visual impact.
® impact on the infrastructure.

Compatibility with the surroundings

It is noted that the site remains within the edge of the settlement boundary for
Gattonside and is therefore deemed appropriate for development if a suitable
means of access and development can be established.

The existing housing profile in the area is a mix detached single & two
storey houses of varying recent & traditional styles.

Although the detailed design of the development is not known at this stage the
likelihood is that the adjoining property of Lindisfarne will relate with any future
design proposals.

Preliminary discussions have been held with the Planning Authority to
determine if housing development can take place in this location. From further
consultation it has been generally agreed that a mirrored form of development
to that which exists at Lindisfarne would generally be acceptable. It is
understood that further details of a proposed design would be subject to
approval as a reserved matter.

An examination of the existing trees along the western boundary was
undertaken to establish the general condition to ensure the longevity of the
edge of the existing development boundary. It is proposed that there are a
number of trees that are in poor condition to such a degree that would
compromise the establishment of the boundary in the not too distant future
and therefore would benefit from removal and a scheme of re-planting that
can be properly managed. There is a report from messrs Robert Gray
attached to this submission which details these proposals.

LICVEI

The proposed house would be comfortably accommodated within this
generous site and the development density would ensure adequate amenity
space to be enjoyed by the occupants whilst not affecting the amenity of those
properties adjoining the application site.

The only property that is most likely to be affected by a loss of amenity is

Lindisfarne. It is proposed that an adequate treatment of the adjoining

boundary as already exists to the opposite side of Lindisfarne with the
Page 263



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Melrose.

property “Cuillins” would be anticipated. For this reason it would be
considered that there would be no effect on the amenity presently enjoyed at
the application site.

It is understood that overlooking issues with neighbouring properties would be
addressed in detail in a subsequent reserved matters application should these
proposals be approved in principle. However, in general terms good practice
would avoid positioning of clear windows that would result in the loss of
amenity to the adjacent properties. This is a matter we believe would be
achieved to an acceptable standard.

" g ¥ " . $znm
Impact on the Infras clure

The applicant has carried out some investigative work to establish the extent
of works required to service the site with fouf and surface water drainage. It
has been agreed in principle with Scottish Water that drains can be run along
the southern boundary of the application site and Lindisfarne to connect with a
public sewer to the south of “The Cuillins™. This can be achieved on ground
within the ownership of the applicant.

Further discussions with the Water Authority, Scottish Gas & SP Energy
Networks have established that water, gas & electricity supplies can be taken
from the vehicular access into Lindisfarne and within the property boundary to
the application site. This can be achieved on ground within the ownership of
the applicant meaning minimal disruption & excavation of The Loan.

A pre-application consultation was undertaken with the SBC Highways
Department to establish the principle of establishing a new vehicular access
on to the public road. Whilst it was recognised and agreed that an access
could be formed into the plot from the adjacent public road to an acceptable
standard, we were advised that due to advice given by the department in
recent times to development accessed from The Loan meant that they wouid
be unable to offer their support. We were informed that this was on the
grounds of road safety.

We were subsequently offered further technical advice on how best to form
the proposed access to a standard that would meet the departments required
standard for geometry, visibility and road safety measures.

These improvements have been included within the application submission
and can be summarised as follows:-

¢ Formation of 6.0m long x 2.0m wide roadside lay-by/passing place with

4.0m long splays in both directions within the existing verge grass
verge.

Page 264



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Melrose.

¢ Formation of 45m visibility splays with a 2.0m set back from the centre
of the public road.

¢ To reduce the height of the existing roadside hedge within the visibility
splays to a height not exceeding 900mm above the new access road
level.

* Swept access driveway to replicate in mirror form that which already
exists at Lindisfarne. Access drive gradient not to exceed 1 in 8 with
the parking/turning area gradient not to exceed 1 in 18.

Due fo this historic advice given by the Highways department in this location it
is necessary for us to show that the general level of road safety that presently
exists on The Loan will not be affected by this application. We are of the
opinion that on balance, the proposals will present a greater level of road
safety than would otherwise be achieved if the status quo were to remain.

The historic planning records available detailing new development supported
by the department in the area can be summarised as follows:

Planning Ref: Description Details

90/00685/FUL New houses at Wellbank Approved - No Highways advice available
00/01454/OUT New house at Lower Greenwells Approved - No Highways advice available
02/00273/OUT New house at Springbank Approved - No Highways advice available

10/00491/FUL New house opposite Abbotscroft Approved against Highways advice
Other planning records of interest are as follows:

Planning Ref. Description Details
99/01404/FUL  Create one house from two at Torwood Cottage Approved

Does this mean that spare capacity has been released?

It is the records of some other domestic development along The Loan which
reveals comments made by the Highways Department which we believe have
a bearing on the current proposals and should be duly considered. These
planning records relate to domestic alterations and extensions which create
further bedroom accommodation and one assumes could lead towards an
increase in traffic. These can be summarised as follows:

Planning Ref: Description Details
05/00006/FUL. First floor extension Glenview Approved — additional 3

bedrooms substantial increase in size,
09/01558/FUL Extension at Rosebank Approved — additional bedroom
13/01235/FUL  Alterations to The Linney No objections from Highways.

Page 265



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfame,
Gattonside, Melrose.

The comments made by the Highways Department which relate to the
09/01558/FUL approval in particular are of significant interest and have been
attached to the application documents whereby it is noted that the Department
states “The Loan is a narrow single lane road with restricted visibility ,
with very limited on-street parking and is quite torfurous at the best of
times. That said, the constrained nature of the road helps enforce
relatively slow traffic speeds. In summary , while not ideal in terms of
visibility , | will not formally object to this application as overall, |
consider this to be an improvement fo the existing situation.”

From this statement we can establish the following:-

¢ There are issues with traffic movement on The Loan. However, the
Highways Department recognise that the constrained nature of the
roads helps enforce slow traffic speeds -

e Support from the Highways Department can be given in situations
where an overall improvement in road safety can be deiivered.

What is of significant importance is that of the Planning consents noted, none
were able to offer additional road safety measures and were either supported
or approved without these additional measures being enforced.

We are in the position to be able to deliver these road safety improvements
which will benefit not only the applicant but all road users of The Loan.

Therefore, it is now necessary for us to further examine the situation that

exists at the application site at present and what improvements can be
delivered.

Page 266



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Galtonside, Melrose.

Inspection of the general road condition has revealed the dry-stone walls
which retain the public road to be in poor condition and are subsiding into the
site whilst damaging the roots of the hedge at the same time. This has forced
the applicant to construct a steel and timber retaining wail to protect the land
immediately adjoining Lindisfarne and runs parallel with the public road to the
end of the rear garden.

1574

Bollards have been installed by the Council on the grass verge in recognition
of the problem to protect the application site from road traffic driving over the
defective dry-stone walls, further exacerbating the passing problems. The
proposals detailed in this application will result in a new retaining structure to
consolidate the road sub-structure and protect the hedge roots.

Page 267



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarme,
Gattonside, Melrose.

The proposed lay-by/passing place is located at approximately the mid-point
of the stretch of road that can be viewed from the top of The Loan and will
permit safe passage of vehicles approaching in opposing directions.

Due to the defective walling, the further deterioration of the road will present a
much greater safety concem if left unattended. These proposals bring forward
the consolidation works with added safety measures by virtue of the
application to develop this plot without placing demands on Councils roads
repair budget.

Page 268



Proposed House
Land West of Lindisfarne,
Gattonside, Melrose.

| whilst recognising that access from The Loan is an issue for the Highways
Department we have demonstrated that there are instances where support for
applications can be achieved. There are many more benefits to be gained
from approval of this application. These can be summarised as follows:

® Delivery of a housing site to meet with the requirement identified in
both the SESplan HNDA & SSG.

® Strengthening of the settlement boundary.

® Consolidation of the existing public road.

® Formation of a passing place along a constrained single width road.
® Fommation of a suitable access with sufficient visibility.

® A general enhancement of the level of road safety for all road users in
this location.

For the above noted reasons we believe that the proposals outlined in this

application comply with Scottish Borders Councils relevant planning policies
and wil! hopefully gain the Councils support.

Page 269



TECHNICAL SERVICES | %co&tiSh
oraers
ROADS & FLEET MANAGEMENT = COUNCILL
To: Head of Planning & Building Standards Date:09/12/09
FAQ C.CLARKE
From: Road User Manager
Contact: J.FRATER Ext: 5137 Ref:09/01558/FUL

Subject : FORMATION OF NEW ACCESS AND ERECTION OF NEW GATES
ROSEBRAE THE LOAN - GATTONSIDE

At present this existing property does not have any parking provision within its site
boundary , and associated vehicles are currently parked on, or adjacent to the public road.
The Loan is a narrow single lane road with restricted visibility , with very limited on-street
parking and is quite torturous at the best of times. This proposal will certainly help with the
parking difficulties that currently exist at present, though visibility from the new access onto
the road is far from ideal. That said, the constrained nature of the road helps enforce
relatively slow traffic speeds. | would expect a turning facility to be provided within the
garden ground of this house. | did happen to meet the applicant when | visited the site
and | did explain this particular point with him.

In summary , while not ideal in terms of visibility , | will not formally object to this application
as overall , | consider this to be an improvement to the existing situation.

BJI

Page 270



Agenda Item 8e

. 0000000909000

From: Robin Chisholm <RobinC@eildon.org.uk>

Sent: 11 March 2016 08:49

To: DCConsultees

Subject: Comments from Melrose & District Community Council

Good Morning

Application Ref 16/00162/FUL
Erection of Dwellinghouse & Garage
Garden Ground of Lindisfarne

The Loan

Gattonside

No Comments from M&DCC

Regards
Robin Chisholm for Melrose & District Community Council

Registered in Edinburgh, UK.
Registered Office:

The Weaving Shed,
Ettrick Mill,
Dunsdale Road,
Selkirk

TD7 SEB

Tel: 01750 725900
Email: enquiries@eildon.org.uk
Web: www.eildon.org.uk

Registered with Co-operative and Community Benefit Society 1757R (S). Scottish Charity Number: SCO 15026. The Scottish
Housing Regulator HEP107. VAT Reg No. 898 5372 54

This email is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions
presented are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of those within the Eildon Group. If you are not
the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this email in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing,
or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify Eildon Housing Association on
01750 725900. Every effort has been made to ensure that all emails are free of computer viruses however we cannot accept
liability for any damage your system sustains due to software viruses.

1
Page 271



PLANNING CONSULTATION

On behalf of: Director of Education & Lifelong Learning

From: Head of Property & Facilities Management
Contact:  Marc Bedwell, ext 5242

To: Head of Planning & Building Standards Date: 25 July 2016
Contact:  Carlos Clarke & 01835 826735 Ref: 16/00162/PPP

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Name of Applicant: Mr H. Armstrong
Agent: RM Architecture Ltd

Nature of Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage
Site: Garden Ground Of Lindisfarne The Loan Gattonside Scottish Borders

OBSERVATIONS ON BEHALF OF: Director of Education & Lifelong Learning

CONSULTATION REPL

| refer to your request for Education’s view on the impact of this proposed development,
which is located within the catchment area for Melrose Primary School and Earlston High
School.

A contribution of £3209 is sought for the Primary School and £4512 is sought High School,
making a total contribution of £7721

The new Earlston High School replaces a previous building that was under severe capacity
pressure and with facilities unsuitable for further expansion. Following consultation, the
decision was made to replace it and two others in the Borders under the 3 High Schools
project with the three new modern schools opened on time for the 2009-10 academic years.
Developer contributions for Berwickshire, Earlston and Eyemouth high schools will apply in
their respective catchment areas, supplementing Scottish Borders Council’s investment in
the new facilities.

This contribution should be paid upon receipt of detailed planning consent but may be
phased subject to an agreed schedule.

Please note that the level of contributions for all developments will be reviewed at the end of
March each year and may be changed to reflect changes in the BCIS index — therefore we
reserve the right to vary the level of the contribution if the contribution detailed above is not
paid before 1 April 2016.

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Page 272 1



From:Wilkinson, Simon

Sent:30 Mar 2016 09:42:24 +0100

To:Clarke, Carlos

Subject:RE: 16/00162/ppp Erection of house, Lindisfarne Gattonside

Carlos,

The revised plan shows a clear developable area outwith the recommended root protection area. Robert
Grays original tree report applied the root protection area from the existing TPO’d trees stem diameter
along the western boundary. While recommended removal of the mature Firs would have an impact,
this species can become prone to failure in adverse conditions. Any new dwelling would pose a potential
target for such failures.

Replacement of the Firs with a suitable species is required once removed, the applied RPA allows
sufficient room for the replacements to establish and co-exist with a new dwelling. The protective
fencing must be erected as a single line to agreed RPA distance prior to any development on site.
Thereafter no storage of materials or disruption of ground within the RPA zone.

Detail is required on the screen planting, species, numbers, positions, sizes and maintenance schedule.
The existing hedge in order to accommodate the required visibility splay, | would suggest is reduced in
height as a whole opposed to the plan showing a partially clipped. Cypress hedges would not respond
too well to that type of pruning.

Regards

Simon

From: Clarke, Carlos

Sent: 17 March 2016 15:40

To: Wilkinson, Simon; McDermott, Siobhan

Subject: 16/00162/ppp Erection of house, Lindisfarne Gattonside

Simon/Siobhan,

Page 273



REGULATORY Al Scottish
SERVICES ~dlBorders

- COUNCIL
To: Development Management Service Date: 8/03/16
FAO C.CLARKE
From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: John Frater Ext: 5137 Ref: 16/00162/PPP

Subject: ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE AND GARAGE
GARDEN GROUND OF LINDISFARNE THE LOAN
GATTONSIDE

I consider the surrounding public road network to be unsuitable to cater for any new build development at
this proposed location. The main vehicular access to serve this site is via The Loan. This route is a very
narrow, constrained and largely single file road, with restricted visibility sightlines in either direction due to
buildings and walls bounding each side of the road. There is a sign at the bottom of this road stating that it
is “unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles”. Furthermore, The Loan is also very steep and winding, with very
limited passing opportunities resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they meet. To compound my
roads concerns even further, there is almost no on-street parking available on The Loan, and any parked
cars make the route even more torturous than it currently is. All of my concerns are particularly relevant
during inclement weather.

Although there is an alternative, but significantly longer (secondary) access route to the west of the
proposed site, it is not without its own roads issues. It is a single lane road with limited passing
opportunities, and has numerous visibility impingements along its entire length. While the proposed passing
opportunity associated with this application would result in some road safety gain for motorists using the
public road in that vicinity, this would not help with the tortuous part of The Loan serving the bulk of the
housing.

It should be noted that the proposed new access driveway and parking/turning provision within the site
meets my requirements, and is not an issue of concern to me.

In the Planning Statement supporting this application, previous planning records are referred to. One is a
fairly historic application for a new house at ‘Wellbank’ in The Loan. Of more relevance is the application for
a house next door to ‘Wellbank’ at ‘Springbank’ in 2002. The Roads Planning Service (John Frater) strongly
recommended against the proposal expressing serious roads concerns and this view was supported by the
Head of Development Control. The application was approved by the Eildon Area Committee against
officer's recommendation. The other applications referred to for new houses at ‘Lower Greenwells’ and
opposite ‘Abbotscroft’ are of little significance, being served by different roads.

The Planning Statement also refers to observations of the Roads Planning Service (again John Frater) on
the application for a new vehicular access to serve ‘Rosebrae’ on The Loan. For that application, while
expressing concern on the constrained nature of the road, we were able to support the proposal for a new
access which had the potential to help with parking deficiencies in the vicinity. It was recognised that the
constrained nature of the road helped enforce relatively slow traffic speeds, but there was no implication
given that this would be justification for new housing served by the road.

In summary and taking cognisance of all my points above, | recommend this application be refused in the
interests of road safety.

AJS

Page 274



REGULATORY Scottish
SERVICES Borders

COUNCIL
To: Development Management Service Date: 10/05/16
FAO C.CLARKE
From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: John Frater Ext: 5137 Ref: 16/00162/PPP

Subject: ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE AND GARAGE IN GARDEN
LINDISFARNE, THE LOAN - GATTONSIDE

| refer to my detailed reply of 8" April 2016 pertaining to this application and confirm that all points
made in it remain valid regarding The Loan in Gattonside. In response to a recent Access
Appraisal submission from the applicant’s traffic consultant Andrew Carrie, | would like to add to,
and enhance my previous comments:

The Loan, when compared with certain aspects of the ‘Designing Streets’ manual, does have a few
similarities, such as restricted visibility, slow speeds and restricted widths. However, when you
investigate the design and geometry of The Loan in greater detail, significant road and safety
deficiencies become evident. Gradients on The Loan vary between 1in 6 and 1 in 9, which are
considerably steeper than the recommended maximum gradient of 8% (1 in 12) as detailed in The
‘National Roads Development Guide” which acts as the technical backup to ‘Designing Streets’.
Where gradients are steeper than 8%, the guide requires the provision of a handrail for
pedestrians, but this cannot be provided on The Loan due to the boundary constraints of walls and
buildings. While there are limited passing opportunities on The Loan, they are poorly located and
are not inter-visible, resulting in vehicles having to reverse when they meet. This fundamental
design flaw of not having inter-visible passing facilities on The Loan is quite disconcerting, and is a
safety issue to both vehicular and pedestrian movements. Furthermore, any reversing manoeuvre
is unsafe and does not conform to current design requirements, particularly as the road is a shared
space with pedestrians. To compound the gradient and poor inter-visibility as detailed above, there
is a distinct lack of on-street parking. Any car that is parked, generally in the wider areas, creates
enhanced difficulties to other users of this road as these areas are usually utilised as passing
locations.

The Loan is very constrained with regards to road width, particularly as the boundaries are walls
and properties, rather than the standard road kerb and/or verge. Its width varies between 2.8m and
4.1m along its length, with the average being around 3.1m, though at one particular pinch point it is
reduced to 2.6m at road surface level. In the National Development Roads Guide the minimum
recommended road width for vans is 3.0m, and for HGVs it is 3.4m. This minimum width applies to
straight lengths of road while The Loan is curving in nature including at the pinch point. It should
also be noted that the operation width required for a fire tender is 3.7m.

Although no swept path analysis has been carried out on the Loan, the provision of a road sign at
the junction with the main road informing motorists that The Loan is “unsuitable for heavy goods
vehicles” immediately warns HGV drivers that this route should not be used.

It should be noted, that during winter conditions many residents park their vehicles on the main

road through Gattonside, as The Loan can be inaccessible during snowy and icy conditions, mainly
with respect to its excessive gradient, constrained road width and lack of forward visibility. There is

Page 275



REGULATORY Scottish

Borders
SERVICES COUNCIL

also clear evidence that a residential property located on the narrowest part of The Loan has been
struck and damaged on several occasions by vehicles negotiating this part of the road.

The following comments relate specifically to the “top” secondary access route to the west of the
application site. While | accept that some residents on the “top” road may on occasion use this
access route, particularly if travelling towards the Galashiels area, the dominant access route will
be via The Loan. The maijority of the traffic and pedestrian movements will utilise The Loan as
being the shortest and quickest way to all other destinations. Pedestrians must use The Loan to
access the bus stops in Gattonside. The local footpath network into Melrose and the nearby
riverside walks can only be accessed via The Loan. Furthermore, vehicles travelling east towards
the A68 Trunk Road, south and west towards the A6091 and A7 Trunk Roads will use The Loan as
the shortest and most direct route.

It should be noted that the holiday cottage development is located significantly further to the west
than the proposed single house. Because of this, apart from vehicles travelling east towards the
A68 Trunk Road who will use The Loan as their preferred route, all other destinations will be
accessed by the shorter and quicker route to the west. It should also be noted that the holiday
cottage development was a renovation of an existing farm steading which generated its own traffic,
some of which would have accessed The Loan at that time. This traffic would have been taken into
account when assessing the planning application for the farm steading development.

There are no recorded injury accidents on The Loan, as speeds are very low. However, there is a
considerable amount of anecdotal evidence with regards to bumps and scrapes and damage to
property which occurs on The Loan.

In summary, while ‘Designing Streets’ encourages slower traffic speeds by: use of narrow street
widths; constrained geometry; and restricted forward visibility, such roads still have to be carefully
designed so that, widths, forward visibility, passing and parking provision are all in sync and meet
minimum standards. Acceptable gradients are equally important in particular where the road
serves as a shared surface. The Loan does not meet these standards and | have to recommend
against it serving further development. ‘Designing Streets’ is not a licence to deem all constrained
roads as being fit for purpose.

AJS

Page 276



Agenda Item 8f

Application Comments for 16/00162/PPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 16/00162/PPP

Address: Garden Ground Of Lindisfarne The Loan Gattonside Scottish Borders
Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

Customer Details

Name: Mr Callum Crawford

Address: Estate Office Pavilion Farm U6-4 B6374 At Pavilion Farm To U5-6 West Of Gattonside
Mains, Scottish Borders, Melrose, Scottish Borders TD6 9BN

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Trees/landscape affected
Comment:Good afternoon,
As one of the owners of the field and hedge to the west of the applicant's site, we are concerned
that the visibility splay as shown will necessitate that our existing hedge will have to be cut to
achieve the proposed sight line. It is not clear from the drawing, as our hedge line is not indicated
on the drawing and therefore we request further clarification of this area and a more detailed
drawing detailing how the site line can be achieved without our hedge being affected.
Best regards
Callum Crawford
Pavilion Estate

Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8g

LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 16/00021/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 16/00162/PPP

Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage
Location: Garden Ground Of Lindisfarne, The Loan, Gattonside
Applicant: Mr H Armstrong

**New LDP 2016**

Policy PMD?5: Infill Development

Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of
buildings within Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be
approved where the following criteria are satisfied:

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area;
and

b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area;
and

c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by
the social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-
development or ‘town and village cramming’; and

d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its
surroundings; and

e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of
water and drainage and schools capacity; and

f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to
adjoining properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design
statements as appropriate.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD3 Land Use Allocations

Policy ED1 Protection of Business and Industrial Land

Policy HD3 Protection of Residential Amenity

Policy EP3 Local Biodiversity

Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Policy IS5 Protection of Access Routes

Environmental Promotion and Protection policies EP7-EP10

In cases of any part intrusion into the open countryside, other policies will apply
including Policy PMD4 — Development Outwith Development Boundaries, Policies
ED7, HD2, Environmental Promotion and Protection policies.

Page 279



Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the
efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and
resources such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable
construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide
emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this target met
through the use of low or zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling
and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and
the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at
an early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in
place for long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and
spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of
the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this
need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

[) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the

Page 280




development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing
street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated
footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to
the site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those
used for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending
preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some
cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision
may be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the
amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or
replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:
This policy is relevant to most policies within the Plan.
The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders
Green Space

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design

Privacy and Sunlight Guide

Replacement Windows and Doors

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Page 281




Greenspace

Housing

Landscape and Development

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)
Sustainable Urban Drainage

Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction

Waste Management

Policy IS2: Developer Contributions

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot
proceed due to deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental
impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated as a result of the
development, the Council will require developers to make a full or partial
contribution towards the cost of addressing such deficiencies.

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies
on preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance
with current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;

c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements,
Safer Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways,
bridges and associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public
transport operators; all in accordance with the relevant standards and the
provisions of any Travel Plan;

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or
off-site;

e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including
costs of future management and maintenance;

f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site
or off-site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for
any losses and/or alternative provision;

g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of
the development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime;
provision for the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including
communal facilities; provision of street furniture and digital connectivity with
associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be
secured by planning condition. Where a legal agreement is necessary, the
preference for using an agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973
Local Government (Scotland) Act and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be

Page 282




considered. A planning obligation will only be necessary where successors in title
need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the council will consider the
economic viability of a proposed development, including possible payment options,
such as staged or phased payments.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy HD5 Care and Retirement Homes

Infrastructure and Standards policies particularly 15S4-1S7 and 1S9

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Development Contributions

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Development Contributions

Policy IS3: Developer Contributions related to the Borders Railway

In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the
Council will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Borders
railway from any developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be
enhanced by, the re-instatement of the rail link.

Key Policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy IS2 Developer Contributions
Policy 1S4 Transport Development and Infrastructure

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Development Contributions
The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Development Contributions

Policy IS7 — Parking Provision and Standards

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance

Page 283




with approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to
the nature of the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be
demonstrated that do not compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will
consider the desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the
context of policies to promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy IS9 - Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Waste Water Treatment Standards

The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if
necessary, or failing that:

b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the
existing sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water
treatment works, or failing that:

c). agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide
permanent or temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the
possibility of stand alone treatment plants until sewer capacity becomes
available, or, failing that:

d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to
publicly sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be
acceptable, providing it can be demonstrated that this can be delivered
without any negative impacts to public health, the environment or the quality
of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private
sewage treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional
circumstances prevail and the conditions in criteria d above can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:

a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water
treatment infrastructure within settlements,

b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the
developer to provide for new infrastructure.

Page 284




Sustainable Urban Drainage

Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and
brownfield sites, must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban
drainage systems to the satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment
Protection Agency (where required), Scottish Natural Heritage and other
interested parties where required. Development will be refused unless surface
water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids flooding,
pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and
flood attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any
necessary features.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards for New Development

Policy EP1 International and Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species
Policy EP2 National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species

Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment

Policy IS8 Flooding

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity

Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable
Species and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be
demonstrated that the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the
value of the habitat for biodiversity conservation.

Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on
habitats and species should:

a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and

b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the
site, including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity
offsets as appropriate; and

d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems
approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife
corridors and provision for their long-term management and maintenance

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries
Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

Page 285




Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

Policy EP14 Coastline

Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment
Policy I1S2 Developer Contributions

Policy I1S15 Radio Telecommunications

Scottish Planning Policy

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Biodiversity

Development Contributions

Green Space

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Development Contributions

Greenspace
Green Networks

Policy EP4: National Scenic Areas

Development that may affect National Scenic Areas will only be permitted where:

a) the objectives of designation and the overall landscape value of the site and its
surrounds will not be compromised, or

b) any significant adverse effects on the qualities for which the site or its
surrounds have been designated are clearly outweighed by social or economic
benefits of national importance

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries

Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development

Policy ED12 Mineral and Coal Extraction

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP5 Special Landscape Areas

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Policy EP8 Archaeology

Policy EP10 Gardens and Designed Landscape

Policy EP14 Coastline

Page 286




Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP13 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Policy IS15 Radio Communications

Scottish Planning Policy
SNH Special Qualities of NSAs (Borders)

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Green Space

Landscape and Development

Local Landscape Designations

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Countryside Around Towns

Greenspace

Green Networks

Landscape and Development

New Housing in the Borders Countryside
Placemaking and Design

Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage
to the woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly
outweigh the loss of landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland
resource, including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure
appropriate replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the
Scottish Borders; and

c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource

Key policies to which this policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries
Policy ED7 Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside

Page 287




Policy ED9 Renewable Energy Development
Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside

Policy EP4 National Scenic Areas

Policy EP5 Special Landscape Areas

Policy EP6 Countryside Around Towns

Policy EP8 Archaeology

Policy EP10 Gardens and Designed Landscape
Policy EP12 Green Networks

Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Policy EP15 Development Affecting the Water Environment
Policy IS2 Developer Contributions

Policy IS15 Radio Communications

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Green Space

Scottish Borders Woodland Strategy

Trees and Development

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Greenspace

Green Networks
Trees and Development

Policy HD3 - Protection of Residential Amenity

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space
that would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a
residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding
properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground
or ‘backland’ development,
(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

Key policies to which this Policy should be cross-referenced:

Policy PMD2 Quality Standards

Page 288




Policy PMDS5 Infill Development

Policy EP11 Protection of Greenspace

Environmental Promotion and Protection policies EP7-EP10

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance may be relevant to this policy:
Privacy and Sunlight Guide

The following proposed Supplementary Guidance may be relevant to this policy:

Placemaking and Design (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight)

Other Considerations-

SPG on Householder Development 2006
SPG on Placemaking and Design 2010

SPG on Trees and Development 2008

SPG on Landscape and Development 2008
SPG on Biodiversity 2005

SPG on Developer Contributions 2015

Designing Streets

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4a Notice of Review
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review drawings

	4b Consultations
	4c Emails regarding Decision Notice date
	4d List of policies
	5a Notice of Review
	Item 5(a) - Notice of Review - site plan

	5b Decision Notice
	5c Officer's report
	5d Previous application referred to in report
	5e Consultations
	5f List of policies
	6a Notice of Review
	Item 6(a) - Notice of Review drawings

	6b Decision Notice
	6c Officer's report
	6d Previous applications referred to in report
	6e Consultations
	6f List of policies
	7a Notice of Review
	7b Decision Notice
	7c Officer's report
	7d Consultation
	7e List of policies
	8a Notice of Review
	Item 8(a) - Notice of Review plan

	8b Decision Notice
	8c Officer's report
	8d Paper referred to in report
	8e Consultations
	8f Objection
	8g List of policies

